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S THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH
= JULY 10, 2024 COUNCIL MEETING
VIRTUAL MEETING BY ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION &
PUSL{NCH

IN-PERSON AT THE MUNICIPAL OFFICE —
7404 WELLINGTON RD 34, PUSLINCH

Register in advance for this webinar:
https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN u71KFKVZRVCjcFKyuP8rhQ
After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar
Or join by phone:

+1 647 558 0588

+1 778 907 2071

+1 438 809 7799

+1 587 328 1099

+1 613 209 3054

+1 647 374 4685

Webinar ID: 834 5873 6450

Passcode: 934154

International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/keqbn7XuEg

AGENDA

DATE: Wednesday July 10, 2024
CLOSED MEETING: 10:35 A.M.
REGULAR MEETING: 10:00 A.M.

# Denotes resolution prepared

1.

Call the Meeting to Order

Roll Call

Moment of Reflection

Confirmation of the Agenda #

Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest & the General Nature Thereof

Consent Agenda #

6.1 Adoption and Receipt of the Minutes of the Previous Council and Committee Meetings:

6.1.1 June 14, 2024 Special Council Meeting Minutes
6.1.2 June 12, 2024 Council Meeting Minutes
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH
JULY 10, 2024 COUNCIL MEETING

VIRTUAL MEETING BY ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION &
IN-PERSON AT THE MUNICIPAL OFFICE —

7404 WELLINGTON RD 34, PUSLINCH

PUSLINCH

6.1.3 June 12, 2024 Public Information Meeting Minutes
6.1.4 May 14 2024 Committee of Adjustment Meeting Minutes
6.1.5 April 16, 2024 Recreation Advisory Committee Minutes
6.1.6 April 8, 2024 Youth Advisory Committee Minutes
6.2 AMO Policy Update - Bill 200, Agricultural Land Protection, Electricity Distribution
Financing, and Other Updates
6.3 AMO Update - 10 Year Renewal of the Canada Community-Building Fund
6.4 County of Wellington OPP Police Services Board Report - April 2024
6.5 County of Wellington OPP Police Services Board Report - April 2024
6.6 Dufferin Aggregates May 2024 Monthly Monitoring Report - Mill Creek Pit Licence 5738
6.7 The Ontario Aggregate Resources Corporation 2023 Annual Report
6.8 Minister of Health letter regarding Private Well Water Testing
6.9 Ministry of Natural Resources Letter regarding Streamlining of Approvals Under the
Aggregate Resources Act and Supporting Policy
6.10 Municipality of Callander Council Resolution for the Premier to Resume the Assessment
Cycle
6.11 Municipality of Mattawan Council Support Resolution for the Premier to Resume the
Assessment Cycle
6.12 Municipality of Tweed Council Resolution regarding Sustainable Funding for Small Rural
Municipalities for Ontario Provincial Police Force
6.13 Township of Brudenell Lyndoch and Raglan Council Support Resolution regarding the
Province to Introduce a Bill to Amend the Ombudsmen Act
6.14 Municipality of West Nipissing Oust Council Resolution regarding Seeking Support for
Champlain Bridge Rehabilitation
6.15 Township of Larder Lake Council Resolution regarding Financial Assistance to
Municipalities to complete the Asset Retirement Obligation
6.16 Township of Harley Council Resolution regarding Asset Retirement Obligation
6.17 Puslinch Profile Features June 2024
6.18 Puslinch Profile Features July-August 2024
6.19 Sunrise Therapeutic Riding & Learning Centre Donation Receipt and Thank you Letter
6.20 Ministry of Municipal Affairs and House regarding Planning Act and Development Charges
Act Regulations related to the Cutting Red Tape to Build More Homes Act, 2024 (Bill 185)

Delegations #
7.1 Specific Interest (Items Listed on the Meeting Agenda)
7.1.1 None
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7.2 General Interest (Items Listed on the Meeting Agenda)
7.2.1 Written Delegation by Marjorie Clark regarding the Killean School Bell

Public Meetings

8.1 July 10, 2024 at 7:00 P.M. Public Information Meeting held in-person in Council Chambers,
Municipal Office (7404 Wellington Rd 34) and by electronic participation through Zoom
regarding Proposed Development Charges By-law

Reports #
9.1 Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services
9.1.1 Report FIR-2024-004 Procurement Options for the Replacement Pump 31
Truck Update #
9.2 Finance Department
9.2.1 Report FIN-2024-015 Canada Community Building Fund Agreement #
9.2.2 10:25 A.M. Report FIN-2024-016 Energy Conservation and Demand
Mangement Plan #
9.2.3 Report FIN-2024-017 First Quarter Financial Report 2024 #
9.3 Administration Department
9.3.1 Report ADM-2024-032 Final Draft Heritage Permit By-law #
9.3.2 Report ADM-2024-033 Second Draft Repeal and Replace Sign By-law #
9.3.3 Report ADM-2024-034 Sign Variance Request 256 Brock Rd S #
9.3.4 Report ADM-2024-035 Reporting Out from Council Direction Update #
9.3.5 Report ADM-2024-036 Repeal of Mandatory Pre-Consultation By-law #
9.3.6 Report ADM-2024-038 ERO Postings 019-8825, 019-8826, 019-8827 #
(Circulated under separate cover)
9.4 Planning and Building Department
9.4.1 1:00 P.M. Report PD-2024-003 Zoning By-law Amendment — 6706 Gore Rd #
9.5 Roads and Parks Department
9.5.1 None
9.6 Recreation Department
9.6.1 None

Correspondence #

10.1 10:15 A.M. Presentation by Tim Beckett and Carianne Loach, Behr Integrated Solutions
regarding Township of Puslinch Community Risk Assessment #

10.2 Ministry of Natural Resources letter regarding streamlining of approvals under the
Aggregate Resources Act and supporting policy #
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11.

12.

13.

14.

PUSLINCH

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH

JULY 10, 2024 COUNCIL MEETING
VIRTUAL MEETING BY ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION &
IN-PERSON AT THE MUNICIPAL OFFICE —
7404 WELLINGTON RD 34, PUSLINCH

Council reports

11.1 Mayor’ Updates

11.2 Council Member Reports (verbal or written updates from members who sit on
boards/committees)

By-laws #
12.1 First, Second and Third Reading
12.1.1 BL2024-044 Authorize Entering into Funding Agreement with CCBF
12.1.2 BL2024-045 Delegate Authority for extension agreements
12.1.3 BL2024-046 Heritage Permit By-law
12.1.4 BL2024-047 Zoning By-law Amendment 6706 Gore Rd

Announcements
13.1 10:05 A.M. Award of Senior of the Year to Barb Hagey

Closed Session — Pursuant to Section 239 Subsection (2) of the Municipal Act, 2001 for the

purpose of:

14.1 Confidential report regarding personal matters about an identifiable individual, including
municipal or local board employees — Human Resource Matter

14.2 Confidential report regarding personal matters about an identifiable individual, including
municipal or local board employees — Property Tax Matter

14.3 Confidential report regarding a position, plan, procedure, criteria or instruction to be
applied to any negotiations carried on or to be carried on by or on behalf of the
municipality or local board — Procurement Matter

14.4 Confidential report regarding litigation or potential litigation, including matters before
administrative tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board — By-law Enforcement
Matter

14.5 Confidential report regarding advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including
communications necessary for that purpose— Human Resource Policies

14.6 Confidential report regarding personal matters about an identifiable individual, including
municipal or local board employees — Recreation Advisory Committee appointment

14.7 Confidential report regarding personal matters about an identifiable individual, including
municipal or local board employees — Youth Advisory Committee appointment

14.8 Confidential minutes from previous closed meetings:

14.8.1 June 12, 2024 Closed Meeting Minutes
14.8.2 June 14, 2024 Closed Meeting Minutes
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

PUSLINCH

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH
JULY 10, 2024 COUNCIL MEETING

VIRTUAL MEETING BY ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION &
IN-PERSON AT THE MUNICIPAL OFFICE —

7404 WELLINGTON RD 34, PUSLINCH

14.9 Confidential report regarding personal matters about an identifiable individual, including

municipal or local board employees — Human Resource Matter
Business Arising from Closed Session
Notice of Motion
New Business

Confirmatory By-law #
18.1 BL2024-050 Confirm By-law — July 10, 2024

Adjournment #
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH
JUNE 14, 2024 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
VIRTUAL MEETING BY ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION

PUSLINCH

MINUTES

DATE: June 14, 2024
CLOSED MEETING: 9:10 A.M.
COUNCIL MEETING: 9:00 A.M.

The June 14, 2024 Council Meeting was held on the above date and called to order at 9:04 a.m. via electronic
participation.

1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER

2. ROLLCALL
ATTENDANCE:

Councillor Sara Bailey
Councillor Russel Hurst
Councillor Jessica Goyda
Councillor John Sepulis
Mayor James Seeley

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE:

Glenn Schwendinger, CAO - absent

Mike Fowler, Director of Public Works, Parks and Facilities
Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer

Courtenay Hoytfox, Interim CAO

Justine Brotherston, Interim Municipal Clerk

Andrew Hartholt, CBO

Jamie MacNeil, Fire Chief

NouswnNe

3. MOMENT OF REFLECTION

4. CONFIRMATION OF THE AGENDA

Resolution No. 2024-228: Moved by Councillor Sepulis and
Seconded by Councillor Bailey

That Council approves the June 14, 2024 Agenda as circulated.
CARRIED

5. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST & THE GENERAL NATURE THEREOF:
None

6. CLOSED SESSION:
Council was in closed session from 9:10 a.m. to 11:19 a.m.

The Clerk stopped the recording and removed all public attendees from the webinar. The webinar was then
‘locked’ so no new participants are able to join.

Resolution No. 2024-229: Moved by Councillor Sepulis and
Seconded by Councillor Goyda

That Council shall go into closed session under Section 239 of the Municipal Act Subsection 3.1 of the
Municipal Act, 2001 for the purpose of:

6.1 Council Education/Training Session for the purpose of providing training with respect to draft
Development Charges By-law Background Study.
CARRIED
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH
JUNE 14, 2024 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING
VIRTUAL MEETING BY ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION

PUSLINCH

Resolution No. 2024-230: Moved by Councillor Sepulis and
Seconded by Councillor Goyda

THAT Council moves into open session at 11:19 a.m.
CARRIED

Council resumed into open session at 11:19 a.m.

Resolution No. 2024-231: Moved by Councillor Hurst and
Seconded by Councillor Bailey

That Council receives the:

6.1 Council Education/Training Session for the purpose of providing training with respect to draft
Development Charges By-law Background Study; and

That staff proceed as directed.
CARRIED

7. BUSINESS ARISING FROM CLOSED SESSION:
None

8. CONFIRMATORY BY-LAW:

(a) By-Law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch

Resolution No. 2024-232: Moved by Councillor Goyda and
Seconded by Councillor Hurst

That the following By-law be taken as read three times and finally passed in open Council:

By-Law 2024-043 being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the
Township of Puslinch at its meeting held on the 14 day of June 2024.

CARRIED
9. ADJOURNMENT:
Resolution No. 2024-233: Moved by Councillor Sepulis and
Seconded by Councillor Bailey
That Council hereby adjourns at 11:20 a.m.
CARRIED

James Seeley, Mayor

Courtenay Hoytfox, Clerk
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH
JUNE 12, 2024 COUNCIL MEETING

VIRTUAL MEETING BY ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION
PUSLINCH & IN-PERSON AT 7404 WELLINGTON RD 34, PUSLINCH

MINUTES

DATE: June 12, 2024
CLOSED MEETING: 12:30 P.M.
COUNCIL MEETING: 9:00 A.M.

The June 12, 2024 Council Meeting was held on the above date and called to order at 9:00 a.m. via electronic
participation and in-person at 7404 Wellington Rd 34, Puslinch.

1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER

2. ROLLCALL
ATTENDANCE:

Councillor Sara Bailey

Councillor Russel Hurst - arrived late
Councillor Jessica Goyda

Councillor John Sepulis

Mayor James Seeley

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE:

Glenn Schwendinger, CAO - absent

Mike Fowler, Director of Public Works, Parks and Facilities
Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer

Courtenay Hoytfox, Interim CAO

Justine Brotherston, Interim Municipal Clerk

Sarah Huether, Deputy Clerk

Jamie MacNeil, Fire Chief

NouswnNe

3. MOMENT OF REFLECTION

4. CONFIRMATION OF THE AGENDA

Resolution No. 2024-206: Moved by Councillor Sepulis and
Seconded by Councillor Bailey

That Council approves the June 12, 2024 Agenda and Addendum as circulated; and
That Council approves the addition to the agenda as follows:

Consent Item 6.1.4 Questions received from Council seeking additional information and the
corresponding responses provided by staff regarding the June 12, 2024 Council agenda.

CARRIED

5. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST & THE GENERAL NATURE THEREOF:

Councillor Sepulis declared a potential pecuniary interest related to item 10.1 Presentation by NPG Planning
Solutions regarding Puslinch by Design: Employment Lands Study Update, as | live on SR20N and have
previously declared that | have a pecuniary interest in a proposed rezoning of a property on SR20N. The
study area for the Regionally Significant Economic Development Study as currently structured includes all
properties on the east side of SR20N from WR34 to Forestell Road. This further requires me to declare a
pecuniary interest as any development may have an impact on the value of my property. | cannot
accordingly participate in any discussions and decisions regarding the study.

6. CONSENT AGENDA
6.1 Adoption and Receipt of the Minutes of the Previous Council and Committee Meetings:
6.1.1 May 22, 2024 Council Meeting Minutes
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH
JUNE 12, 2024 COUNCIL MEETING
VIRTUAL MEETING BY ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION

TOWNSHIP OF

PUSLINCH & IN-PERSON AT 7404 WELLINGTON RD 34, PUSLINCH

6.1.2 April 9, 2024 Planning and Development Advisory Committee Meeting

Minutes

6.1.3 March 12, 2024 Committee of Adjustment Meeting Minutes

6.1.4 June 12, 2024 Council guestions and Staff Responses
6.2 Association of Municipalities Ontario Policy Update regarding National Housing Strategy
Funding, Ontario Health Teams, Enhancing Digital Security and Trust, Next Building Code
6.3 Association of Municipalities Ontario Policy Update regarding National Housing Strategy
6.4 Grand River Conservation Authority May 2024 General Meeting Summary
6.5 Wellington Federation of Agriculture regarding Stormwater Management Master Plans in Agricultural
Areas for Wellington County
6.6 Enbridge Gas Inc. update related to Enbridge's Rate Rebasing Application and on Ontario's Keeping
Energy Costs Down Act
6.7 Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing update related to municipal development related charge
(MDRC) exemptions
6.8 Minister of Citizenship and Multiculturalism Letter regarding changes made to Ontario Heritage Act
6.9 Office of the Solicitor General Letter regarding Community Safety and Policing Act, 2019
6.10 Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing Letter regarding Get it Done Act, 2024, Received Royal Assent
6.11 Lake of Bays Letter resolution regarding Royal Assent of Administrative Monetary Penalty System in the
Building Code Act
6.12 Township of Centre Wellington regarding Notice of Study Commencement and Public Information
Centre - Water and Wastewater Master Servicing Plan
6.13 Township of Alnwick Haldimand resolution regarding MFIPPA Modernization
6.14 County of Wellington Joint Accessibility Advisory Committee Minutes — May 2024
6.15 Ontario Historical Society - Heritage Organization Development Grant - Applications Now Open
6.16 Puslinch Optimist Club Thank You Letter
6.17 Watson and Associates Assessment of Bill 185, Cutting Red Tape to Build More Homes Act, 2024

Resolution No. 2024-207: Moved by Councillor Hurst and
Seconded by Councillor Bailey

That the Consent Agenda items with the exception of items 6.1.1, 6.11, 6.8, 6.13, and 6.15 listed for
June 12, 2024 Council meeting be received for information.

CARRIED

Resolution No. 2024-208: Moved by Councillor Sepulis and
Seconded by Councillor Bailey

That the Consent Agenda items 6.1.1 listed for June 12, 2024 Council meeting be received for
information.

CARRIED

Resolution No. 2024-209: Moved by Councillor Sepulis and
Seconded by Councillor Hurst

That the Consent Agenda items 6.11 listed for June 12, 2024 Council meeting be received; and
That Council direct staff to send a support resolution accordingly.
CARRIED

Resolution No. 2024-210: Moved by Councillor Sepulis and
Seconded by Councillor Hurst

That the Consent Agenda item 6.13 listed for June 12, 2024 Council meeting be received; and
That Council direct staff to send a support resolution accordingly.

CARRIED
Resolution No. 2024-211: Moved by Councillor Bailey and
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH
JUNE 12, 2024 COUNCIL MEETING

VIRTUAL MEETING BY ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION
PUSLINCH & IN-PERSON AT 7404 WELLINGTON RD 34, PUSLINCH

Seconded by Councillor Goyda

That the Consent Agenda item 6.8 listed for June 12, 2024 Council meeting be received; and

That Council direct staff to send correspondence to the Ministry expressing its gratitude for
considering municipal feedback on this important issue.

CARRIED

Resolution No. 2024-212: Moved by Councillor Hurst and
Seconded by Councillor Sepulis

That the Consent Agenda item 6.15 listed for June 12, 2024 Council meeting be received; and
That Council refer this consent item to the Heritage Advisory Committee for consideration; and

That Council direct staff to forward this grant information to local heritage groups regarding the
potential funding.

CARRIED

7. DELEGATIONS:
(a) Specific Interest (Items Listed on the Meeting Agenda)
7.1.1 None

7.2 General Interest (Items Not Previously Listed on the Meeting Agenda)
7.2.1 9:05 AM Delegation by John McNie regarding ERO #019-8428 with respect to an
aggregate pit license application for the Ed Lake property on Concession Rd 2

Resolution No. 2024-213: Moved by Councillor Sepulis and
Seconded by Councillor Goyda

That Council receives the Delegation by John McNie regarding ERO #019-8428 with respect to an
aggregate pit license application for the Ed Lake property on Concession Rd 2 for information.

CARRIED
Resolution No. 2024-214: Moved by Councillor Sepulis and

Seconded by Councillor Bailey

That Council add a closed session item to discuss the delegation material to the June 12, 2024 closed
session meeting.

CARRIED

7.2.2  9:15 AM Delegation by Gabrielle Monteith regarding Bitumen and Tar in Wetlands
due to road projects on Watson Road

Resolution No. 2024-215: Moved by Councillor Sepulis and
Seconded by Councillor Goyda

That Council receives the Delegation by Gabrielle Monteith regarding Bitumen and Tar in Wetlands due to
road projects on Watson Road for information; and

That Council direct staff to include the consideration for roadway wildlife mitigation measures during the
2025 budget process.

CARRIED

8. PUBLIC MEETINGS:
June 12, 2024 at 7:00 P.M. Public Information Meeting held in-person in Council
Chambers, Municipal Office (7404 Wellington Rd 34) and by electronic participation
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH
JUNE 12, 2024 COUNCIL MEETING

VIRTUAL MEETING BY ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION
PUSLINCH & IN-PERSON AT 7404 WELLINGTON RD 34, PUSLINCH

through Zoom regarding proposed Zoning By-law Amendment D14/AZI (Usman Aziz) 6707
Gore Road, Puslinch

9. REPORTS:
9.1 Puslinch Fire and Rescue Services

9.1.1 Report FIR-2024-004 Final Draft Community Risk Assessment

Resolution No. 2024-216: Moved by Councillor Goyda and
Seconded by Councillor Sepulis

That Report FIR-2024-004 Final Draft Community Risk Assessment be received for information;
and

That a final version of the Community Risk Assessment be presented to Council at the July
Council meeting.
CARRIED

9.2 Finance Department

9.2.1 None

9.3 Administration Department

9.3.1 Report ADM-2024-027 2nd Draft Heritage Permit By-law

Resolution No. 2024-217: Moved by Councillor Hurst and
Seconded by Councillor Goyda

That Report ADM-2024-027 2nd Draft Heritage Permit By-law be received for information; and
That Council direct staff to incorporate the revisions as noted into the final draft of the by-law.
CARRIED

9.3.2 Report ADM-2024-031 Proposed Township comments regarding Badger Daylighting ERO
#019-8678 for Waste ECA Application

Resolution No. 2024-218: Moved by Councillor Hurst and
Seconded by Councillor Bailey

That Report ADM-2024-031 entitled Badger Daylighting ERO for Waste Disposal Site ECA
Application be received; and

Whereas the Zoning By-law Amendment appeal to the Ontario Land Tribunal was
withdrawn by the Appellant on May 24, 2024, finalizing Council’s decision such that the
zoning remains extractive alone and hydrovac operations are not permitted; and

Whereas the Environmental Protection Act (EPA), Section 91 of Part X Spills, defines a
“spill” as a discharge of a pollutant into the natural environment from or out of a
structure, vehicle, or other container that is abnormal in quality; and

Whereas the process occurring on the subject lands of depositing, draining, and drying
liquid soils (a waste defined by Reg. 347 and O.Reg. 406/19), potentially containing

contaminants, has the potential to impact groundwater; and

Whereas such releases into the natural environment necessitate notification, reporting,
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH
JUNE 12, 2024 COUNCIL MEETING

VIRTUAL MEETING BY ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION

& IN-PERSON AT 7404 WELLINGTON RD 34, PUSLINCH

PUSLINCH

and appropriate responses as outlined within the EPA regulations;

Therefore, Puslinch Council expects the hydrovac use to cease and the ECA application to
be withdrawn. However, should the use continue, Puslinch Council requests that the
Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) take steps to enforce
compliance with the Environmental Protection Act, its Regulations, and the obligations
therein; and

Whereas the hydrovac operations could result in a spill, as defined by the EPA, each time
a truck discharges at the property;

That Puslinch Council requests that the MECP work directly with the property owner to
ensure the site be rehabilitated to the satisfaction of the MECP, in accordance with the
EPA, to protect adjacent landowners, the environment, and groundwater from adverse
effects; and further:

That this report be forwarded directly to the Minister of the Environment, Conservation,

and Parks, requesting a response, to MPP Arnott requesting his support with the Township’s
request that the MECP enforce the EPA and their obligations therein, MPP Rae requesting his
support with the Township’s request that the MECP enforce the EPA and their obligations
therein, and to the MECP Local District Manager; and

That the MNRF be re-notified and requested that they fulfill their regulatory obligations in
respect to the non-compliant use occurring within the ARA licensed area; and

That Puslinch Council directs Staff to formally object to the Waste Disposal Site ECA
posted as ERO number 019-8678, in accordance with the comments herein.
CARRIED

9.4 Planning and Building Department

9.4.1 None

9.5 Emergency Management

9.5.1 None

9.6 Roads and Parks Department

9.6.1 Report PW-2024-004 Consideration for hard surfacing gravel roads

Resolution No. 2024-219: Moved by Councillor Bailey and
Seconded by Councillor Goyda

That Report PW-2024-004 regarding the Consideration for Hard-Surfacing Gravel Roads be
received; and

That Council give consideration to staff’'s recommendations as outlined in the report; and

That Council select the following Township road for hard-surfacing Road Project 3: Asset ID 27B,
71 & 81; and

That Council direct staff to work with the Township Engineer on the design in order for
construction to commence in 2026.
CARRIED

Council recessed from 11:38 am to 12:15 pm
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10.

11.

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH
JUNE 12, 2024 COUNCIL MEETING

VIRTUAL MEETING BY ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION

& IN-PERSON AT 7404 WELLINGTON RD 34, PUSLINCH

Roll Call
Councillor Goyda
Councillor Sepulis
Councillor Bailey
Councillor Hurst
Mayor Seeley

9.7 Recreation Department

9.7.1 None

CORRESPONDENCE:

Councillor Sepulis declared a potential pecuniary interest related to item 10.1 and refrained from
participating in discussions and voting on the item.

10.1 Puslinch By Design Employment Land Study Kick-off Presentation

Resolution No. 2024-220: Moved by Councillor Goyda and
Seconded by Councillor Hurst

That Council receive the Puslinch by Design Employment Land Study Kick-off Presentation for
information.

CARRIED
COUNCIL REPORTS:

11.1 Mayor’ Updates

11.1.1 Mayor Seeley mentioned the Canada Day celebrations on July 1 at the Puslinch
Community Centre

11.2 Council Member Reports

11.2.1 Councillor Bailey gave an update regarding the Agricultural Society Chicken Dinner at the
Puslinch Community Centre.

11.2.2 Councillor Hurst gave an update on the upcoming Puslinch Lake Conservation Association
house tour.

11.2.3 Councillor Sepulis provided an update from an incident at the Aberfoyle carnival and the
Fire department staff that assisted the member of the public, and expressed the resident’s
appreciation for the Fire department’s assistance.

11.2.4 Councillor Bailey expressed her thanks for the Fire Department’s participation at the
Aberfoyle Carnival.

11.2.5 Councillor Bailey asked staff to update Council regarding the Township’ land
acknowledgment statement open house.

Resolution No. 2024-221.: Moved by Councillor Hurst and
Seconded by Councillor Sepulis

That Council receive the Mayors and Council member updates for information.

CARRIED

12. BY-LAWS:

12.1.1 None

13. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

17.1 None

14. CLOSED SESSION:

Council was in closed session from 11:49 a.m. to 3:01 p.m.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH
JUNE 12, 2024 COUNCIL MEETING
VIRTUAL MEETING BY ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION

PUSLINCH & IN-PERSON AT 7404 WELLINGTON RD 34, PUSLINCH

15.

16.

The Clerk stopped the recording and removed all public attendees from the webinar. The webinar was then
‘locked’ so no new participants are able to join.

Resolution No. 2024-222: Moved by Councillor Sepulis and
Seconded by Councillor Bailey

That Council shall go into closed session under Section 239 of the Municipal Act for the purpose of:

14.1 Confidential report regarding advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including
communications necessary for that purpose - By-law enforcement

14.2 Confidential minutes from previous closed meetings:
14.2.1 May 22, 2024 Closed Meeting Minutes

14.3 Confidential verbal report regarding litigation or potential litigation, including matters before
administrative tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board — Aggregate Resource Act application

14.4 Confidential report regarding litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative
tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board — Hydrogeology report

CARRIED
Resolution No. 2024-223: Moved by Councillor Hurst and
Seconded by Councillor Bailey
THAT Council moves into open session at 3:01 pm
CARRIED

Council resumed into open session at 3:01 p.m.

Resolution No. 2024-224. Moved by Councillor Sepulis and
Seconded by Councillor Goyda

That Council receives the:

14.1 Confidential report regarding advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including
communications necessary for that purpose - By-law enforcement

14.2 Confidential minutes from previous closed meetings:
14.2.1 May 22, 2024 Closed Meeting Minutes

14.3 Confidential verbal report regarding litigation or potential litigation, including matters before
administrative tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board — Aggregate Resource Act application

14.4 Confidential report regarding litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative
tribunals, affecting the municipality or local board — Hydrogeology report; and

That staff proceed as directed; and

That Council defer the Council Education/Training Session for the purpose of providing training with
respect to responsibilities under the Fire Protection and Prevention Act to a future meeting.

CARRIED

BUSINESS ARISING FROM CLOSED SESSION:
None

NOTICE OF MOTION:
None
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17. NEW BUSINESS:
(a) Councillor Bailey mentioned the water leak in the shed at the Badenoch soccer field and noted that
the roof needs to be replaced.

Resolution No. 2024-225: Moved by Councillor Bailey and
Seconded by Councillor Sepulis

That Council direct staff to repair the roof on the shed if possible through the existing operating
budget and if not, to fund the repairs through the parkland reserve.

CARRIED

18. CONFIRMATORY BY-LAW:

(a) By-Law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch

Resolution No. 2024-226: Moved by Councillor Goyda and
Seconded by Councillor Hurst

That the following By-law be taken as read three times and finally passed in open Council:

By-Law 2024-042 being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council for the Corporation of the
Township of Puslinch at its meeting held on the 12 day of June 2024.

CARRIED
19. ADJOURNMENT:
Resolution No. 2024-227: Moved by Councillor Bailey and
Seconded by Councillor Hurst
That Council hereby adjourns at 3:05 p.m.
CARRIED

James Seeley, Mayor

Courtenay Hoytfox, Clerk
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MINUTES

DATE: June 12, 2024
TIME: 7:00 P.M.

The June 12, 2024 Public Information Meeting was held on the above date and called to order
at 7:00 p.m. via electronic participation and in-person at 7404 Wellington Rd 34, Puslinch.

1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

ATTENDANCE:

Mayor James Seeley — Chair
Councillor Sara Bailey
Councillor Russel Hurst
Councillor Jessica Goyda
Councillor John Sepulis

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE:

CAOQ, Glenn Schwendinger — Absent

Interim CAO, Courtenay Hoytfox

Interim Municipal Clerk, Justine Brotherston
Interim Deputy Clerk, Sarah Huether

Junior Planner, Mehul Safiwala

NPG Planning Solutions - Jesse Auspitz

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE:

Innovative Planning Solutions, Nick Skerratt

Property Owner, Usman Aziz

Employee of Maple Haven Kennel, Parkash Venkataraman
Noise Consultant, SLR Consulting (Canada) Ltd

3. DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST
None

4. PURPOSE OF THE PUBLIC MEETING

The Chair stated the purpose of this Public Meeting is to inform and provide the public with the
opportunity to ask questions, or to express views with respect to the development proposal.
The Councillors are here to observe and listen to your comments; however, they will not make
any decisions this evening.

The Township requests that you notify by email planning@puslinch.ca or by phone at 519-763-
1226 ext. 4 if you wish to be on record regarding this matter.

Please note the meeting is video and audio recorded and all electronic meetings are uploaded
to the municipality’s YouTube page. By attending this meeting in person or by registering to
participate in the meeting by electronic means, you are consenting to have your likeness and
comments recorded and posted on YouTube.
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Please note, in accordance with the amendments to the Planning Act through Bill 185. The
following parties may appeal this application to the Ontario Land Tribunal for a hearing:

a) The applicant ( a specific person, a public body, the registered owner of the property to
which the by-law would apply)
b) The Minister

Please note that if a specific person or public body does not make an oral submission at a public
meeting or a written submission to the Township of Puslinch, before the decision is made, the
specified person or public body is not entitled to appeal the decision of the Township of
Puslinch in Ontario Land Tribunal.

In addition, if a specified person or public body does not make an oral submission at a public
meeting or make written comments to the Township of Puslinch before a decision is made the
person or public body may not be added as a party to the hearing of the appeal before the
Ontario Land Tribunal unless in the opinion of the Board there are reasonable grounds to do so.
You may wish to talk to Township staff regarding further information about the appeal process.

The format of this Public Meeting is as follows:

e The applicant or agent will present the purpose and details of the application and any
other relevant information.

e Following this, the public can obtain clarification, ask questions and express their
views on the proposal.

e Members of the public are permitted 10 minutes each to ask questions and express
their views. This time limit is imposed to provide each member of the public an
opportunity to speak.

e Council will then have an opportunity to ask any clarification questions.

e The applicant and the Township Planning Consultants will attempt to answer
guestions or respond to concerns this evening. If this is not possible, the applicant or
staff will follow up and obtain this information.

e Responses will be provided when this matter is brought forward and evaluated by
Council at a later date.

5. DEVELOPMENT PROPOSAL FOR USMAN AZIZ D14-AZI CONCESSION GORE FRONT PT LOT 9
PT 3 PT 2 - KNOWN AS 6706 GORE RD, PUSLINCH

Mayor Seeley: The purpose and effect of the proposed zoning by-law amendment is to amend
the Township of Puslinch new comprehensive Zoning by-law 23-2018 to permit the
establishment of a dog kennel and dog breeding operation. The application proposes relief
from the general provisions to allow the dog kennel and breeding operations to be located 97
metres away from an existing residential dwelling and to repurpose existing buildings on the
subject land to accommodate the use of a dog kennel and dog breeding operation as outlined
in the application.

I will now ask the owner or applicant to make the presentation.

Nick Skerratt: Good evening Mayor, Council members, staff and the public. My name is Nick
Skerratt with Innovative Planning Solutions, here to speak on behalf of the owners in
attendance for the lands municipally known as 6706 Gore Rd.

The purpose of this presentation is to provide an overview of the proposed development and
zoning by-law amendment and receive feedback from Council and the public in attendance
tonight.
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The intent of this application is to facilitate the rezoning of a portion of the agricultural lands to
agricultural with exemptions in order to permit and facilitate the development of a dog
breeding use which falls within the kennel definition as per the current Zoning By-law.

The subject lands shown in red outline contains a total lot area of 7.8 hectares with
approximately 307 metres along Gore Rd and 408 metres along the existing rail line.

The property contains open field agricultural areas, which were used for agricultural purposes
and previously used horse paddocks with an associated horse track. Within this area are
vegetated areas and the property is bordered by trees. Within the existing structures currently
used for dog breeding kennel operations is a large barn structure, two medium-size sheds used
for dog breeding, housing areas along with, two smaller shed structures used for storage.

There is an associated fenced dog run area, parking and two access driveways from Gore Road.
There is one dwelling, which the owner operator resides in and contains an office area related
to the dog breeding operation. Fencing and vegetated buffer areas separate the dog breeding
kennel operation from abutting properties.

This slide provides a high-level overview of surrounding land uses from the subject property as
you can see from this image there's a lot of farm and mature vegetated areas surrounding the
subject property shown in red outline.

Further to the East are agricultural with some residential uses. South contains the majority of
agricultural uses and a farmhouse; and West contains agricultural and residential uses. All
agricultural and vegetated areas are to remain on the subject lands to ensure protection of
natural features and maintain the countryside field.

This slide provides a high-level overview of the County Official Plan with respect to the subject
property. The County Official Plan designates these lands as secondary agricultural shown in
brown and core green lands shown in green. The secondary agricultural designation allows for
kennel uses subject to Municipal Zoning By-law regulations to establish criteria for such uses.
This means that no Official Plan amendment was required to establish a dog breeding kennel
operation rather a Zoning By-law amendment was necessary to ensure the permissions and
site-specific provisions.

Building off the policy framework of the Official Plan, the Township’s Zoning By-law is an
implementation tool containing specific regulations such as uses, setbacks, structures, parking
requirements, height and landscaped areas. This slide shows the existing zoning of the subject
lands. The property is currently agricultural and natural environment with natural environment
overlay protection area. The proposed Zoning By-law amendment intends to rezone a portion
of these agricultural lands to agricultural exemptions in order to facilitate the existing
development of a dog breeding kennel use.

This slide provides a site plan concept of the entire property and site-specific area as part of the
rezoning proposal. This property is intended to be rezoned in the central to the property and
contains all existing structures and outdoor dog run areas. The dashed box area outlines the
proposed site-specific zoning for the dog breeding kennel uses which is approximately 108
hectares in size with dimensions of 108 metres deep by 100 metres wide. All areas outside of
the proposed site-specific zone will remain agricultural. The environmental protection areas will
remain to be protected from development impacts. This image shows setbacks from the dog
breeding kennel structures and the outdoor dog run areas from the closest residential structure
located at 6700 Gore Rd. The purpose of this measurement is required for distance separation
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from the kennel uses and residential uses. This is to ensure it is an appropriate distance from
the kennel operation. The separation distance is identified as a site-specific zoning exemption
and as part of the zoning proposal. A list of site-specific exemptions will be provided further in
this presentation.

This slide provides greater detail to the area intended to be rezoned. The image on the left is a
site plan drawing that provides details of the building location, setbacks, outdoor dog runs,
vegetation, fencing, access driveways, fire routes and location of utilities. The image on the
right is a rendering with reduced details to provide a clear illustration of the buildings located
on the property and the overall area to be rezoned encompassing these structures within a 108
hectare area.

For additional context, operational function of the business is solely a dog breeding operation
and no dogs or animals will be boarded on this property. The maximum number of adult dogs
housed on the site for dog breeding purposes is 25 and will remain on the site permanently in
line with the kennel by-law regulations. There are 44 dog pen areas within the existing
structures and 4 outdoor dog runs. Permanent adult dogs will be housed in individual dog pen
areas to ensure spacious, safe accommodations above industry standards. The remaining dog
areas are utilized for infant dogs and for the ability to relocate adult dogs to clean spacious dog
pen areas while other pens are cleaned. This ensures adult dog accommodations are
continuously maintained for optimal treatment of animals. The facility is not open to the public
which reduces or eliminates any traffic concerns. The only option for members of the public to
access the property is with respect to purchasing of an infant young dog through scheduled
appointments. This will occur between the hours of 10:00 a.m, to 6:00 p.m. Similarly, dog
breeding kennel operations will function between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., and the
goal of the operation is to adhere to applicable legislation including the Township of Puslinch
Zoning By-law and Kennel By-law. The operator will provide employment of 5 full time
employees with part time staff members in addition to the owner operator residing on the
property, within the existing dwelling. This operation actively participates in partnerships with
local College institutions to assist with student co-op programs.

Related to sound, any potential noise disturbances are mitigated through recommendations
within the sound report. The inclusion of an existing tight board fence and vegetation along the
West boundary to assist with visual buffering from adjoining residential properties allows for
softening of existing structures and outdoor dog run areas. A professional noise consultant was
retained to provide sound level evaluations of the use to residential properties. Through the
noise study, mitigation measures were identified in line with operational criteria of the dog
breeding kennel use. The resulting professional noise study concluded that the dog breeding
kennel use is within acceptable sound level of abutting residential properties. It is important to
note that the sound study has been reviewed by Township staff and subject to the Township
peer reviewer consultant on multiple submissions to conclude sound levels are within
acceptable levels. The closest portion of the dog breeding kennel use to an abutting residential
property located at 6700 Gore Rd is slightly over 97 metres while all other portions of the use
are located over 100 metres or more from residential use. From our understanding, no noise
complaints have been filed with the municipality related to this use prior to submission of the
Zoning By-law amendment.

The area noted with cross-hatching is Zoning By-law Provision A-SP# illustrates the area to be
rezoned in relation to the entire parcel. The remaining portion of the parcel will continue to be
zoned agricultural and natural environment areas.
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This slide lists the proposed site-specific zoning exemptions to establish the dog breeding
kennel use as a portion of the subject property. This list includes permissions to allow for
kennel use, which include:
e dog breeding
e restrictions on the total size of existing structures, outdoor dog run area
e restrictions in setbacks from residential uses at 6700 Gore Rd to the dog breeding
kennel use, and;
e all other regulations of Section 4.13 of the Township zoning by-law related to kennel
uses be applicable.

To note, the additional zoning regulations are to ensure that the dog breeding kennel operation
remain within the existing layout, size and area. It has also helped identify separation distances
from residential uses. The Zoning By-law requires a 125m setback to existing residential
dwellings from a kennel use. The proposal reduces the setback to 97m. Through submission of a
noise study and the establishment of a tight board fence with vegetative screening from the
residential uses along with operational timelines aligning with by-law regulations, the reduction
in setback can be justified. All other provisions of the Zoning By-law have been satisfied with
respect to parking, landscaping, building sizes, heights as well as all other provisions of Section
4.13 for kennel uses.

In conclusion, the purpose of the re-zoning amendment is to re-zone the subject lands from
agricultural to agricultural site-specific to reflect the legalization of an existing dog breeding
kennel operation on the subject land. The proposal is consistent and aligns with Provincial
planning interests and polices, supports preservation and protection of cultural through the
creation of an area of the subject property specific to dog breeding kennel use, protection and
maintenance of natural environment areas, provides opportunities by diversifying the
economic base within the countryside landscape and adheres to sound levels to residential
uses.

It is our objective, subject to the Zoning By-law amendment process, to adhere to municipal
licensing requirements for kennel operation as well as detailed requirements as part of the site
control process with the Township. We have reviewed all comments submitted for this Public
Meeting and we are willing to work with applicable agencies and staff to address any comments
as needed.

This concludes the presentation. Should you have any questions that arise, council, staff or the
public, please address them to myself or we also do have the noise consultant here to answer
any of those specific detailed questions.

Mayor Seeley: Thank you for your presentation. | will now ask Jesse. Are you doing a
presentation?

Jesse Auspitz: The applicant has covered everything that | would be saying. | know there were
some questions that have come forward with respect to noise for the property to the South. If
that is alright | can respond at the conclusion.

Mayor Seeley: Is there anybody in the gallery here that has any questions or needs clarification.
Do we have any attendees?

Courtenay Hoytfox: Anyone in the virtual gallery on zoom. If you any questions or comments or
would like to make a statement if you could just use your raise your hand function. It is just
located at the bottom of your screen.
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Mayor Seeley: | am a little confused (directed at Jesse). Do you have something you want to
present to us or just you want to be available for questions from Council?

Jesse Auspitz: | would like to be available for questions. If anyone has a question, | could
respond at the appropriate time.

Mayor Seeley: is that not now?

Courtenay Hoytfox: It could be now. This relates to a question that came up when this was in
front of Council when we were ready to deem it complete. It was in respect to the vacant lot
that is in the area and just how noise is going to be assessed, should it be developed into a
residential unit later on. So, our planner Jesse has looked into that for us.

Jesse Auspitz: The noise study that was prepared in support of the application stated should a
residential dwelling on the land to the South, in the Township of North Dumfries, the noise
study prepared provided a recommendation noting that noise across the street would exceed
appropriate limits for residential use. Keeping in mind that the property does not have a
dwelling right now. What they suggested was, should a residential dwelling or other noise
sensitive land use be proposed or constructed within the highlighted area of the vacant lot to
the South (as shown in figure five) it must be reviewed to ensure appropriate mitigation
measures are incorporated into the kennels operations to comply with the noise guideline
limits at the new receptor location.

The question was related in terms of whether that could in fact be implemented. We do not
have an answer at this point in terms of whether that can actually be implemented through the
site plan agreement. The reason is that the site plan agreement deals with physical elements of
the site so updating a noise study at a future date when the residential dwelling is constructed;
| do not believe that can be implemented through the site plan agreement. | do want to point
out that the Township does have a Noise By-law. Dog barking is not covered in the Noise By-
law. | also looked at the Licensing By-law as it related to kennel operation. Your Licensing By-
law does not require a noise study for an existing kennel operation, unless there is an
expansion. (inaudible) | understand we are looking into that a little bit further and that it will be
detailed in the staff report.

Mayor Seeley: Ok, thank you Jesse. Alright, Councils opportunity to ask any questions or any
clarification.

Councillor Sepulis: | would like to understand the nature of the complaints, if any, that we
received.

Courtenay Hoytfox: Certainly. Just to give a timeline from staff records, there was a pre-
consultation that was submitted in December of 2021 for this use which was sort of the first
step in legalizing it through a planning act application. There was a noise complaint that was
submitted in October 2022 as the applicant was sort of working through the process. This did
result in a notice letting them know that this had taken place and recognizing that we needed
to work through the planning application process here. That was the complaint in relation to
noise.

There was another complaint that was not noise related and it did prompt, as | understand,
there was a visit from PAWS which is the Ministry’s Organization but there was no concerns
that were raised with that and likewise the Township has had their humane society that we
work with, Cambridge Humane Society, go out and inspect the property as well by | understand
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a veterinarian which is part of our process and again there were no concerns raised. There has
been a conditional kennel permit that’s been issued based on those types of inspections.

Councillor Sepulis: So with respect to the complaint that was received in 2022, was that before
or after the fence was put up.

Courtenay Hoytfox: It was before.
Councillor Sepulis: Ok. Thank you.

Councillor Bailey: Just a follow up to Jesse. Just so | am clear on it. If the vacant lot was to be
built upon, is there a trigger or is there a mechanism that gets triggered to then say okay now
we need to look at a new noise study?

Jesse Auspitz: That is a question that has come forward. The noise consultant put forward a
recommendation that the noise study be updated should a residential dwelling be constructed.
The problem is, as you have pointed out, | do not know how that can actually be implemented
and how the Township can require it. | do not believe that we can require that through the
conditions of approval. However, | understand that the Township is looking into the matter a
little bit further. There are other opportunities, if we wanted to include physical mitigation at
the forefront. There is the opportunity to apply a holding provision at a future date as well.

Councillor Bailey: onto the vacant lot?

Jesse Auspitz: No, on the subject lands and that holding provision would ensure appropriate
mitigation measures are put in place.

Councillor Bailey: Just so | am clear on the timeline as well. There was a pre-consultation in
2021 to legalize the kennel but how long has the kennel been in existence?

Property Owner: The kennel, during the process, | was not doing the breeding. When | bought
the property in 2021, | had the dogs, some dogs, not the whole 25.
As you mentioned it was a noise complaint in 2022.

Mayor Seeley: How long has the Township been dealing with this file? It is historic and it is
further back than 2021.

Courtenay Hoytfox: No. It was, as | understand, brought forward through pre-consultation in
2021 and then subsequent to that we did receive those two complaints that were noted. One
being noise and one being more about welfare, and both of those things were looked at and
again the one on the side of welfare we’ve had like I've noted there’s three separate groups in
and we have signed off on this kennel permit. They’'ve met the requirements of our kennel
permit.

Mayor Seeley: But, what initiated that first pre-consultation? Was there a by-law complaint
about a kennel? | feel that the original owners possibly had an operation going on and there
might have been some complaints driven which than brought the original owners in to get
zoning to legalize their use then these individuals purchased. Do you have an indication of how
long the previous owners had dogs?

Property owner: A lot of the set up was already there and | was not aware of the noise
complaint. | was under the impression that somebody felt that there is dogs there. | was
walking my dogs outside everyday on the leashes. So, | was under the impression that
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somebody complained that | had more dogs than legally should be but there was no complaint
as far as | understand. | do not think we have any noise complaint it was more about the
welfare which you said we have complied on three or four different times. We went to pre-
consultation in 2021 and it got delayed because we were working with a different firm at that
time so because of the delay and then there were some welfare people who came in and at
that time because of the delay then we were issued to come and apply for the permit. It was
those two notices, to my knowledge, they are not noise related. It was just about you started
an application, you’re not finishing it on time and we are giving you this time to come and finish
it off.

Mayor Seeley: What the Councillor is trying to find out is how long dogs have been on the
property because if, this is my interpretation of your question, because if regardless of when
you are legalizing the use if dogs were there for 10 years and there was one complaint versus
dogs came in 2021 and then you got the complaint that’s where the Councillor is trying to get.

Property owner: Yes. The previous owner had the dogs there before. When | bought the
property he had the dogs set up there. | bought this property in 2021 so probably they had.

Mayor Seeley: So it is difficult to determine exactly when but these individuals started a legal
process in 2021 when they purchased.

Councillor Bailey: | just had one more question. | did not see any report from Source Water
Protection in there. Is there a need for that with excrement storage on the property?

Jesse Auspitz: We did get comments from Source Water. There were no concerns.

Councillor Hurst: Maybe a couple follow-ups to the questions. Maybe it is hard to decipher
from the briefing note. The distance from the kennel to the vacant lot, do we have a distance
on that?

Nick Skerratt: | believe there is a residential property, not on the vacant lot, but beside it to the
East. If we go back to the presentation, | think it is slide 6. That distance, from the closest point
of the kennel operation, to that residential home which is a similar distance to the vacant lot is
about 133 metres. So, you can see that there is a number of very small numbers here at the
bottom where it says Gore Road. Those are distance specs from our consultant that shows the
distance from any point of that structure. | know it is little blurry. You can see the bottom one is
146. The top one is about 133 and then 137, 145.

Councillor Hurst: So presumably, that would be a somewhat similar slightly less distance to the
vacant lot?

Nick Skerratt: Relatively, yes. But we can easily produce that number should it be wanted.

Councillor Hurst: | think to just follow up on previous comments, that would be something |
think just for full clarity in the process that would be a good thing to make note of and any
potential building distance separation from the actual roads. Just thinking like the maximum
distance one would potentially have a property and that is probably where my number goes if
that is 125 then great, if it’s less than that then that becomes a concern.

Nick Skerratt: Your Worship, just for clarification purposes. Hypothetically, if we took that lot
that is in the other municipality and showed a hypothetical residential building meeting their
setbacks and what the distance would be to the kennel operation is that correct?
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Councillor Hurst: That’s exactly correct.

Nick Skerratt: Perfect. We can do that.

Councillor Hurst: Thank you for that. Next question | had and maybe this is hard to answer but
I'll attempt to ask the question. For the building owners, any future development plans within
that property or is the existing infrastructure there suiting the needs of the business currently
and into the future? | am just curious if you can share that.

Property Owner: We would love to invite you guys to come and visit the kennel. It is beautiful.

Councillor Hurst: | think that it is helpful to understand kind of what your future plans are.
What | am hearing is the existing infrastructures there...

Property Owner: It should be more than enough for the dogs. | have three extra kennels which
| used to just let them go here and there and to just watch them.

Councillor Hurst: Ok. Thanks. That is helpful. My third question, and maybe this is more for
staff, if you can share and | get that the noise complaint potentially was pre your ownership on
the property. Since the fence and the potential vegetation have been put in has there been any
communication with the homeowner to the West of the property, this 97 feet, that this satisfies
their concerns?

Mayor Seeley: Ms. Hoytfox can add some clarification to the noise complaint we received and
the timing surrounding it.

Courtenay Hoytfox: So it was in October of 2022 that we did receive a noise complaint. There
was likely a visit from our By-law Enforcement Officer around that time. That was the
timeframe of it and | understand that was before the fence went in. With respect to the
feedback during the public consultation from that particular neighbour, is it the one on the
street here to the West that you are referring to Councillor Hurst?

Councillor Hurst: Yes the 10665.
Nick Skerratt: That is municipally 6700 Gore Rd.

Jesse Auspitz: The comments that we received do not all have municipal addresses. The only
comment that | have that has a location speaks about two houses East and that was sent on
June 1, 2024. There was another one there that had a noise complaint but | do not see a
municipal address in that comment.

Councillor Hurst: | guess really what | was after is did the fact that a fence was erected and
vegetation put in fully satisfy those concerns.

Jesse Auspitz: That is correct. However, | do want to point out there was a noise study done
and as the applicant had indicated you would rely on that advice which is that noise would
meet appropriate standards for the land that is to the East and to the West.

Councillor Hurst: That’s good. | am good thanks.
Councillor Goyda: | just have one question. | know there is a noise study that is based on

usually hypothetical things but should there be more noise than is anticipated where there is
several complaints about noise is there a protocol in place?
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Nick Skerratt: Yes, Your Worship. To Council’s question, yes we have mitigation measures that
we can employ should those noise evaluations go higher than what is anticipated through this
study and we’d be more than happy to ensure that we meet those noise study standards. We
want to ensure that this operation meets those regulations and contributes to the community. |
also want to just circle back to any potential mitigation measures in respect to vacant property
that we are more than happy to work through those detailed designs or mitigation measures
through site plan control as a very detailed process with Municipal Staff and the consultant. We
are happy to offer up any solutions that we can rectify. Given that it is a hypothetical situation
on an existing farm operated land with existing mature vegetation and the likelihood of
whenever that house may happen is very much up in the air.

Mayor Seeley: My understanding of this vacant lot is that we are not certain yet if we have the
authority to impose some controls to mitigate the noise for the vacant lot and we are going to
get more information on what is available to us and what is not.

Jesse Auspitz: That is correct and | just want to clarify. The concern is do we have to employ all
the physical mitigation measures through the site plan process or can we employ those
mitigation measures sometime in the future should a new dwelling ever be constructed. We
can definitely employ physical mitigation measures through the site plan process but the
guestion comes down to, can you have a condition that the applicant would have to update the
noise study to employ mitigation measures should a new dwelling ever be constructed?

Mayor Seeley: The distance from the lot to South as a noise receptor are they using the
property line immediately adjacent to the road allowance, are they using the centre of the
property, where are they measuring to say that the noise may be at unacceptable levels to that
lot.

SLR Consulting (Canada) Ltd: | assisted with preparation of the environmental noise study. We
modeled contours from each of the dog runs representing the barking at two different receptor
heights. 4.5 metres representing a second storey window if it were a two storey dwelling or 1.5
metres which represents an outdoor point of reception or a single storey window. So that
figure that you see in the report is an amalgamation of all those contours that you kind of see
previously superimposed over the Northeast portion of that lot (Figure 6)

Mayor Seeley: Where on the lot? When you say 4.5 metres was it at road, or the back of the
lot, middle of the lot?

SLR Consulting (Canada) Ltd: We didn’t assess. What we are showing is what the sound level
would be at various locations within the lot where it exceeds the limit of 45 DBA.

Mayor Seeley: Ok where | was trying to go with this is | am struggling with putting restrictions
on a possible business for a hypothetical situation. What | was trying to figure out is as a
municipality if North Dumfries ever receives a building application for that property that our
comments could be that we do not want a building within x amount of metres from the front of
the property line to try to keep that separation from that business. What | am also hearing from
Jesse is that once this is established there might not be as much authority to make them
mitigate the noise to a house coming after the established business.

Jesse Auspitz: That is correct. May | add too one other point that you mentioned. | looked up
the zoning for the property in North Dumfries. They are allowed a dwelling as a right so they
wouldn’t go through a public planning process if they were to construct a dwelling.
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Mayor Seeley: So that’s the issue.

Nick Skerratt: Your Worship, we understand that this is a potential concern in the future and
we are more than happy to accommodate through mitigation measures should that ever
happen. Even though there is no Municipal triggers but there are other avenues that we can
explore that put restrictive covenants on that subject property such as a Section 118 which is
registered on title that should that actually become a noise issue, mitigation measures will be
addressed at that time. Those are similar to site plan control which is an agreement registered
on title and can have conditions of approval. Should the municipality and their consultant not
feel that it is an adequate way of regulating something hypothetical in the future, there are
other legal means that we can register on title.

Mayor Seeley: Well | look forward to what staff report back. | am sure they’ll take those
comments into consideration.

Parkash Venkataraman: | just wanted to run through some timelines. The previous owner had
this operation from 2011 and it is one of the reasons why the new owner decided to buy that
property and as soon as the new ownership came into place and then the first complaint came
in. There was no complaint from 2011 to 2021. As soon as new ownership changed the first
complaint came in and then the mitigation was addressed with fencing and vegetation and all
that kind of stuff. Because it was not legalized and so the new owner felt the importance of
running the kennel with legalization and proper things in place. This has been going on for the
last three years and it is really affecting the business and we request that Council and the
Mayor have some consideration. He is going to create a lot of economic development. As our
planner mentioned about five full time jobs and also helping with the local college and
universities here. | just want to mention about the timeline and the request you to consider.
Thank you.

Mayor Seeley: | am pretty certain they had some sort of operation there historically because |
actually thought | knew the owners and you guys walked in and | am like those are not the
owners | knew something had changed. Anyways, back to the script. Is there anything further
from Council?

Councillor Sepulis: Just a question when would this rezoning application go forward to Council.

Courtenay Hoytfox: So Mr. Chair, | don’t have the timeline in front of me but we would work
through we think it is July 10%" it would be a 90 day process period. We are sort of reaching the
end of that so we are going to try to maintain those timelines.

Councilor Sepulis: Great, thank you.

Mayor Seeley: Last chance, is there any further information the applicant wishes to provide? |
declare this public meeting closed. Council will take no action on the proposal tonight. Staff will
be reporting at a later date with a recommendation for Council’s consideration. If you wish to
receive further notification of this proposal please email or call planning@puslinch.ca or by
phone 519-763-1226 extension 4 or contact Township staff during regular business hours. Only
those persons who leave their names will be provided further notification. If you wish to speak
to the proposal that is brought before Council in the future you must register as a delegation
with the municipal clerk prior to the meeting.

Thank you everyone.

Adjournment:
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The meeting adjourned at 7:43PM
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MINUTES

DATE: May 14, 2024
MEETING: 7:00 p.m.

The May 14, 2024 Committee of Adjustment Meeting was held on the above date and called to
order at 7:00 p.m. via electronic participation and in-person at 7404 Wellington Road 34,

Puslinch.

1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

ATTENDANCE:

PRESENT:

Councillor John Sepulis, Chair
Chris Pickard

Paul Sadhra

Amanda Knight

Jeffrey Born

ABSENT:
None

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE:

Lynne Banks, Secretary/Treasurer

Laura Emery, Communications & Committee Coordinator
Mehul Safiwala, Junior Planner

Zachary Prince, Senior Planner, County of Wellington

3. MOMENT OF REFLECTION

4. CONFIRMATION OF THE AGENDA

Resolution No. 2024-012: Moved by Committee Member Chris Pickard and
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Seconded by Committee Member Amanda Knight

That the Committee approves the May 14, 2024 Agenda as amended and as circulated.

CARRIED.
5. DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
None

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

6.1 Approval of the Minutes
6.1.1 March 12, 2024

Resolution No. 2024-013: Moved by Committee Member Paul Sadhra and
Seconded by Committee Member Jeffrey Born

That the Committee of Adjustment approves the Minutes, as amended, from the meeting
held on March 12, 2024.
CARRIED.

7. APPLICATIONS FOR MINOR VARIANCE OR PERMISSION under section 45 of the Planning Act
to be heard by the Committtee this date:

7.1 Minor Variance Application D13-SAV — Doug Savin — 10 Telfer Glen Street,
Township of Puslinch.

Requesting relief of New Comprehensive Zoning By-law # 23-2018, as amended,
from the following:

1. Section 4.2.a.i, Additional Residential Units, to permit the total floor area
of the additional residential unit to be 138.47 m? instead of 130 m? as required.

2. Section 4.2.c.iv.1., Additional Residential Units, to to permit an ancillary
building to have a height of 5.4 meters instead of 5 meters as required.

e Doug Savin, applicant, provided an overview of the application.
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There were no questions or comments from the public.

Amanda Knight noted that the drawings for the accessory dwelling unit shows
that the basement is unfinished and asked if it is going to remain unfinished
since it wasn’t included as part of the variance request.

Doug Savin advised that it will remain unfinished.

Chirs Pickard noted that the interior total square metres for the interior of the
accessory dwelling unit is different than the exterior square meters and asked
for clarification.

Mehul Safiwala advised that only the interior total square meters are taken
into consideration when reviewed due to the thickness of the walls of the
dwelling, which is not included in the calculations.

There were no further questions or comments from the Committee.

Resolution No. 2024-014: Moved by Committee Member Paul Sadhra and

Seconded by Committee Member Jeffrey Born

That the Minor Variance Decision as made by the Committee be approved with the following

conditions:

7.2

Building permits are required for both the new Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU)
and septic replacement/upgrade proposed. A fire separation between the ADU
and the unfinished basement storage area will be required as part of the review

MTO Building and Land Use Permit(s) will be required for any future work on the
subject lands to construct the additional residential unit.

CARRIED.

Minor Variance Application D13-FRE — David Freure — 29 Eagle Lane, Township of
Puslinch.

Requesting relief of New Comprehensive Zoning By-law # 23-2018, as amended,
to facilitate the addition of a deck to an existing single detached dwelling.

Mike Luscobme, agent for the applicant, provided an overview of the
application.

There were no questions or comments from the public.

There were no further questions or comments from the Committee.
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Resolution No. 2024-015: Moved by Committee Member Jeffrey Born and
Seconded by Committee Member Chris Pickard

That the Minor Variance Decision as made by the Committee be approved with no conditions.
CARRIED.

8. NEW BUSINESS
8.1 Report CofA 2024-002 - Finance and Budget Training

The report will be brought forward at the next Committee of Adjustment meeting on June 11,
2024.

9. ADJOURNMENT

Resolution No. 2024-017: Moved by Committee Member Chris Pickard and
Seconded by Committee Member Paul Sadhra

That the Committee of Adjustment hereby adjourns at 7:19 p.m.
CARRIED.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH
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MINUTES

DATE: April 16, 2024
MEETING: 7:00 P.M.

The April 16, 2024 Recreation Advisory Committee was held on the above date and called to

order at 7:06 p.m. via in person participation at the Municipal Office at 7404 Wellington Road
34, and via electronic participation.

1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

Attendance:
Councillor Jessica Goyda

Joanna Jefferson
Stephanie McCrone
Mary Christidis

Staff in Attendance:

Laura Emery, Communications and Committee Coordinator
Sarah Huether, Interim Deputy Clerk

Mike Fowler, Director of Public Works, Parks and Facilities
Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer

Absent:
Vince Klimkosz

3. MOMENT OF REFLECTION

4. CONFIRMATION OF THE AGENDA

Resolution No. 2024-001.: Moved by Joanna Jefferson and
Seconded by Stephanie McCrone

That the Recreation Advisory Committee approves the April 16, 2024 Agenda as
circulated.

CARRIED.
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5. DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

None

6. DELEGATIONS
None

7. CONSENT AGENDA

7.1 November 30, 2024 Recreation Advisory Committee Minutes
7.2 Facility Revenues and previous year comparators for November 1, 2023 to January 30,
2024

Resolution No. 2024-002: Moved by Joanna Jefferson and
Seconded by Stephanie McCrone

That Consent Agenda items for the April 16, 2024 Recreation Advisory Committee
meeting be received for information.

CARRIED
8. COMMITTEE AND STAFF REPORTS
8.1 Report — REC-2024-001 — 2022-2026 Goals and Objectives
Resolution No. 2024-003: Moved by Stephanie McCrone and

Seconded by Joanna Jefferson

That report REC-2024-001 entitled 2022-2026 Recreation Advisory Committee Goals and
Objectives Update be received for information.

CARRIED

8.2 Committee Memo — MEMO-2024-001 — Engagement Sub-committee Survey

Resolution No. 2024-004: Moved by Joanna Jefferson and
Seconded by Stephanie McCrone

That Committee Memo MEMO-2024-001 be received for information; and,
That the Committee support the survey as outlined in the memo.
CARRIED
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8.3 Report — REC-2024-003 - Finance and Budget Training

Resolution No. 2024-005: Moved by Joanna Jefferson and
Seconded by Stephanie McCrone

That report REC-2024-002 entitled Finance and Budget Training be received for

information.

CARRIED
8.4 Verbal Update — Recreation Master Plan
Resolution No. 2024-006: Moved by Mary Christidis and

Seconded by Joanna Jefferson

That the verbal update from Mike Fowler, Director of Public Works, Parks and Facilities be
received for information.

CARRIED

9. CORRESPONDENCE

None

10. ANNOUCEMENTS

Mike Fowler, Director of Public Works, Parks and Facilities informed the committee that the
Optimist Recreation Centre rink closed for the 2024 ice season after Easter weekend; the
longest the ice rink has ever been open. He also informed the Committee, that he has
received interest from small vendors to utilize the large concrete plaza, near the rear
parking lot, on Saturday mornings during soccer and baseball programming.

11. NOTICE OF MOTION

None



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH

APRIL 16, 2024 RECREATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING
IN-PERSON AND VIRTUAL MEETING BY ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION -
7404 WELLINGTON RD 34, PUSLINCH ON

12. NEW BUSINESS

None

13. ADJOURNMENT

Resolution No. 2024-007: Moved by Stephanie McCrone and
Seconded by Joanna Jefferson

That the Recreation Advisory Committee hereby adjourns at 7:49 p.m.
CARRIED
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DATE: April 8, 2024
MEETING: 6:00 P.M.

The April 8, 2024 Youth Advisory Committee was held on the above date and called to order at
6:03 p.m. via in person participation at the Municipal Office at 7404 Wellington Road 34,
Puslinch.

1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

Attendance:
Councillor Sara Bailey
Aaron Dochstader
Ayla Panylo

Laz Holford

Oliver Van Gerwen
Kenzo Szatori

Katey Whaling

Absent:

Talia Wineberg
Xander Wineberg
Carter Devries

Staff in Attendance:
Laura Emery, Communications and Committee Coordinator
Sarah Heuther, Interim Deputy Clerk

3. MOMENT OF REFLECTION

4. CONFIRMATION OF THE AGENDA

Resolution No. 2024-016: Moved by Aaron Dochstader and
Seconded by Oliver Van Gerwen
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That the Youth Advisory Committee approves the April 8, 2024 Agenda as circulated.
CARRIED
5. DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST:

None
6. DELEGATIONS

6.1 Delegation presented by Mill Creek Rangers regarding Mill Creek Stewardship Ranger
Program

Resolution No. 2024-017: Moved by Laz Holford and
Seconded by Katey Whaling

That the Delegation by Don McKay regarding the Mill Creek Stewardship Ranger Program
be received for information.

CARRIED
7. CONSENT AGENDA

7.1 March 4, 2024 Youth Advisory Committee Minutes

Resolution No. 2024-018: Moved by Ayla Panylo and
Seconded by Kenzo Szatori

That Consent Agenda item 7.1 listed for the March 4, 2024 Youth Advisory Committee
Meeting be received for information.

CARRIED
8. COMMITTEE AND STAFF REPORTS

8.1 Workshop — Procedural Review, Committee Mandate and Brainstorming Session

Resolution No. 2024-019: Moved by Ayla Panylo and
Seconded by Laz Holford
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That the Workshop be received for information.

CARRIED
8.2 Ice Breaker Activity
Resolution No. 2024-020: Moved by Kenzo Szatori and

Seconded by Aaron Dochstader

That the Ice Breaker Activity be moved to a future Committee meeting.

CARRIED
8.3 Report YOU-2024-003 — Committee Goals and Objectives Update & Working on our
Projects
Resolution No. 2024-021.: Moved by Oliver Van Gerwen and

Seconded by Aaron Dochstader

That report YOU-2024-004 entitled Committee Goals and Objectives & Working on our
Projects be received for information.
CARRIED

9. CORRESPONDENCE

None

10. ANNOUCEMENTS

Don McKay informed the Committee of the Optimist Club of Puslinch Scholarships Program,
offering three scholarships of $1500 each to residents of the Township of Puslinch entering

their first year of post secondary education. The Scholarship information will be posted on

the Optimist Club of Puslinch website soon.

Don McKay informed the Committee that the Aberfoyle Agricultural Society will be
allowing the Youth Advisory Committee to use the Gym on Saturday afternoon. of the Fall
Fair, to run youth programming.

11. NOTICE OF MOTION

None
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12. NEW BUSINESS

Councillor Bailey asked the Committee for comment on the proposed times for youth
drop in scheduling at the Optimist Recreation Centre rink for the 2024 season. The Youth
Advisory Committee is supportive of the proposed times.

13. ADJOURNMENT

Resolution No. 2024-022: Moved by Katey Whaling and
Seconded by Oliver Van Gerwen

That the Youth Advisory Committee hereby adjourns at 7:52 p.m.
CARRIED
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AMO Policy Update - Bill 200, Agricultural
Land Protection, Electricity Distribution
Financing, and Other Updates

Bill 200, Homeowner Protection Act — Changes to Heritage
Designation Deadlines
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Last week, Bill 200, the Homeowner Protection Act received Royal Assent,
extending the deadline to designate properties listed on municipal heritage
registers to January 1, 2027. These changes respond to concerns that the
original 2025 deadline did not provide enough time for municipalities to review
the listed properties, leading to increased reactionary designations and
appeals to the Ontario Land Tribunal. The bill also clarifies changes that
properties removed from registers are ineligible for heritage designations for
five years, bans registration of Notices of Security Interest for consumer
goods on the Land Registry, and establishes a 10-day cooling off period for
new homebuyers.

Provincial Guidance on Agricultural Land Protection related to
Energy Projects

Last week, the Minister of Energy and Minister of Agriculture, Food and Rural
Affairs issued a letter providing direction to the Independent Electricity
System Operator (IESO) to include agricultural land protections in future
energy procurements. This direction comes following AMQO'’s recent advocacy
to the province and IESO seeking stronger guidance on energy project siting
and agricultural protection.

Ontario Energy Board (OEB) — Electricity Distribution Financing

AMO submitted comments to the OEB to inform their work exploring funding
options for growth-related electricity distribution infrastructure. This directly
impacts how much new developments cost and local energy rates. This is
also one of many important conversations about how we pay for growth. It's
estimated that local distribution companies (LDCs) need to spend as much as
$120 billion by 2050 to expand the grid — more than double the rate of current
infrastructure investment. As majority LDC owners, municipalities have a
vested interest in ensuring LDCs can afford these upgrades.

AMQO’s Advocacy in response to Auditor General’s Report on
Aggregate Management

Last year, the Ontario Auditor General issued a report on a value-for-money
audit of Ontario’s Management of Aggregate Resources. AMO has sent a
letter to the Ministry of Natural Resources calling on the province to
implement the Auditor General’'s recommendations particularly as they relate
to addressing gaps in the aggregate management framework including:

e An inadequate number of inspectors conducting infrequent and incomplete
inspections
e Aggregate extraction fees that are inadequate to fund the aggregate
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management program and royalty payments to municipalities

o Cumulative impacts of multiple aggregate operations in small areas leading
to increased environmental risks to source water, natural habitats, and
agricultural land

AMO’s Submission to OMAFRA Rural Economic Development
Strategy Consultation

AMO submitted comments to the Ministry of Rural Affairs to support their rural

economic development strategy consultation. AMO’s submission advocated
for increased provincial support for:

o Effective coordination of local and provincial economic development
funding, increased funding and a commitment to a Social and Economic
Prosperity Review

o Workforce development initiatives to connect students and workers with
the right skills for in-demand jobs with attraction and retention supports

e Building complete communities that are resilient and attractive to workers
and business including supports for affordable housing, infrastructure,
health services, transportation, broadband and energy

Private Members’ Bill: Bill 207, Municipal Accountability and
Integrity Act

Since 2021, AMO has called on the provincial government to pass legislation
that enables municipalities to enforce the ethical behaviour of elected
officials.

AMO engaged in extensive consultations with municipalities and worked in
partnership with ministry officials to develop a list of strong recommendations
to respond to this important municipal concern, including:

e Updating municipal Codes of Conduct to account for workplace safety and
harassment

e Creating a flexible administrative penalty regime that could be adapted to
the local economic and financial circumstances of municipalities across
Ontario

¢ Increasing training of municipal Integrity Commissioners to enhance
consistency of investigations and recommendations across the province

e Allowing municipalities to apply to a member of the judiciary to remove a
sitting member if recommended through the report of a municipal Integrity
Commissioner

We look forward to hearing more about how the government intends to
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respond to the sector’s ongoing request for government legislation at the
upcoming AMO conference in August.

Government Passes Bill 185, Cutting Red Tape to Build More
Homes Act, 2024

Bill 185 received Royal Assent on June 6, bringing into force two key Bill 23
development charge reversals and Planning Act amendments.

Provincial Cabinet Shuffle

On June 6, the province announced its latest Cabinet shuffle. New Ministers
were announced for Tourism, Culture, and Gaming; Sport; Farming,
Agriculture, and Agribusiness; Long-Term Care; Energy and Electrification;
Education; and more. Several ministry names were changed and new
Associate Minister positions created. All recent changes are on an Ontario
Newsroom article.

*Disclaimer: The Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) is unable to provide any warranty regarding the accuracy or completeness
of third-party submissions. Distribution of these items does not imply an endorsement of the views, information or services mentioned.
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From: AMO Communications

To: Admin
Subject: Renewal of the Canada Community-Building Fund
Date: Wednesday, June 5, 2024 2:58:21 PM

®

Today, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO), along with Canada, Ontario, and the City of
Toronto, announced agreement on a 10-year renewal of the Canada Community-Building Fund (CCBF)

Through the negotiations AMO worked to ensure that the renewed agreement builds on the success of the
Fund in providing predictable funding - without the need for application - to be invested in priority
infrastructure projects within 18 eligible categories. The Fund will remain largely the same, flowing crucial
infrastructure dollars to municipal governments, and supporting the growth and vitality of communities
across Ontario. Within the next 10 days, AMO will send out the Municipal Funding Agreements.
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From the Detachment Commander

With spring upon us, April showers in full swing and mother
nature giving us a taste of summer weather in April | can
confidently say that Spring has arrived, boating season will
soon commence and outdoor activities across Wellington
County will increase. | want to remind everyone that safety
should come first no matter what activities you plan to take
part in. Remember to have the appropriate safety
equipment in your vessels, vehicles, and backpacks. Your
preparation prior to heading out could save a life or assist
someone in need.

With the weather slowly warming up Wellington County
OPP has received and continues to receive notices of
community events, festivals and other activities scheduled
across the County. We look forward to seeing familiar
faces, meeting new members of the community, and
conversing with those in attendance. Your safety is our
priority, so you can enjoy the festivities, food and

Inspector Steve Thomas

entertainment in a safe environment. 519-846-5930
As summer approaches, barbeques, backyard campfires Index
and all the fun activities that come along with summer will Crime 3
return. Please do not drink and drivel Make plans Traffic 5
beforehand for a designated driver, call a taxi or an uber, -
or sleep over. Drinking and driving is a menace to the roads Community Response 7
and the public in general. Wellington County OPP officers Media 9
will be on the roadways and running RIDE programs across Court 10
the County to keep the community safe.
Personnel & 11
Acknowledgements
Statistical Summary 12
Report Summary 14
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Crime

Crime Unit
Supervisor: Detective Sergeant, Jennifer Foley

This month members of the Wellington Crime Unit attended training on Sexual Assault Investigation, the

Ontario Sex Offender Registry, and Investigative Genetic Genealogy.

In April 2024 Detective Constable Roman Walizad participated in several community events hosted by
York Regional Police. Along with members of York Regional Police, Toronto Police Service, Peel
Regional Police, a Ramadan Iftar dinner, and an Eid al-Fitr celebration. D/C Walizad represented the

OPP in his dress uniform.
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Community Street Crime Unit
Supervisor: Detective Sergeant, Jeffrey Dudley

April has been a busy month for Wellington County Community Street Crime Unit (CSCU). They have
assisted with several frontline investigations and have completed their own trafficking investigations
which produced impressive results. Wellington County CSCU continues to support the Major Crime Unit
and frontline investigations where possible.

D/C Merkus has completed his temporary assignment and is returning to frontline duties. D/C Merkus
did an excellent job during his time in CSCU and | would like to thank him for his countless contributions
to the Wellington County Team.

In April, Wellington County CSCU completed a four-month project into drug trafficking in Center
Wellington. Two search warrants were executed in Center Wellington and Waterloo Region. As a result,
one person from Center Wellington was charged with drug trafficking offences. One person from
Waterloo Region was charged with ftrafficking offences. Police seized quantities of cocaine,
methamphetamine, crack cocaine, prescription medication, weapons, drug trafficking paraphernalia and
a large amount of Canadian Currency. Wellinton CSCU were assisted by Huron/Perth CSCU, Grey
Bruce CSCU, Regional Support Team, Emergency Response Team, Tactics and Rescue Unit and
members of the Wellington County Detachment. This investigation shut down a large drug distribution
network in Wellington and Waterloo Region and will have a large community impact for months to come.

Wellington County responded to a possible impaired in Center Wellington. A female was located passed
out behind the wheel of her motor vehicle. During the arrest a quantity of cocaine and methamphetamine
was located. CSCU assisted with judicial authorizations and processing the drug related items. The
driver was charged with possession for the purpose of trafficking and impaired related offences.

Wellington County was contacted by York Regional Police Service regarding a stolen vehicle from their
area. CSCU authored a judicial authorization to search a property for the stolen vehicle. CSCU and
frontline members executed the warrant and located five stolen high-end vehicles. The estimated value
to the recovered stolen vehicles is $345,000.00. Great teamwork by frontline and CSCU members.

In April Wellington County CSCU assisted frontline with a string of residential break and enters and
vehicle thefts in Center and South Wellington. Three people broke into several residences and stole
various items including vehicles. The accused parties were located and quickly arrested. CSCU and
Frontline worked together to reach out to the victims of crime, get the property returned and lay a number
of charges related to the break and enters. Great work by frontline and CSCU members.

Wellington County OPP responded to a string of break and enters in Center Wellington. The suspects
broke into various residences and stole items including identification and credit cards. CSCU assisted
with video canvassing and case review. The suspects then used the credit cards at several commercial
businesses in the tri city area. A neighboring police service assisted with identification of the accused
parties and charges have been laid in relation to the break and enters. Wellington County Frontline and
CSCU did an excellent job with this investigation.

County of Wellington OPP Detachment Board Report for April
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Wellington County assisted Grey Bruce CSCU with a cocaine trafficking investigation in the Meaford
area. As a result, five firearms were seized, large quantities of cocaine and a large quantity of Ketamine
was seized. Two Grey County residents have been charged with trafficking related offences.

Wellington County CSCU assisted Grey Bruce CSCU and Saugeen Shores Police Service with project
Riptide. As a result, four search warrants were executed in Grey Bruce County, Saugeen Shores and
Brampton. Police Seized firearms, cocaine, psilocybin, fentanyl, illegal cannabis marihuana, weapons
and indicia of trafficking. Five people have been charged with several weapons and trafficking related
offences.

Wellington County OPP CSCU continues to prioritize local crime trends, the opioid crises and targeting
local people identified in property thefts. CSCU members are committed to continuous learning and are
attending training when time permits. CSCU has developed local training, mentoring initiatives for front
line members to promote officer safety and enhance their local knowledge on the current drug and
property crimes trends in the area.

County of Wellington OPP Detachment Board Report for April
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Traffic

Traffic Management Unit
Supervisor: Sergeant Kevin Driscoll

Black Cat Speed Monitoring Devices

Study Number of | Recommended | Posted | 85t Collision
Length | Vehicles Enhanced Speed | Percentile | History
Enforcement Limit (5 years)

Location

Main St E - Drayton | 8 days 29127 No 50 63

Location

Wellington St N - | 8 days 20856 Yes 50 70
Drayton

Location

Twelfth Line — 8 days 11323 No 80 100 1 fatal
Mapleton between collision

Wellington Road 11 :
and 12 April 2024

County Deployed

Location

County 24 between 7 2512 N
County 22 and 124 5128 o 80 90

Location

County 16 between 7 12116 N 50 67
6t line and north °

limits
Location

County 125 7 12325 No 80 94
Ospringe south of

McKinnon

Enhanced Enforcement Program

Enhanced Enforcement is a focused traffic safety initiative which areas of concern are identified through
various means and police conduct education and charge drivers who fail to follow the rules of the road.
The goal is to reduce safety issues through visibility, presence, and enforcement.

Enhanced Enforcement protocols were rolled out on November 14, 2023. The following locations and
charges are from April 2024.

Location Charges
Concession 1 between Hwy 6 and Townline Road Puslinch 2
Indian Trail between Spirit Valley Path and the River — Guelph-Eramosa 24
Wellington Road 7 Elora -David St to Wellington Road 18 Salem 16
Simpson St AlIma between Wellington Road 7 and Raglan St 2

County of Wellington OPP Detachment Board Report for April
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Traffic Management Unit - Administration
The Township of Centre Wellington has sent out their media release for the new 40km/hr zone in Elora.

Educational component to commence.

There was a serious motor vehicle collision on the Twelfth Line in Mapleton, due to a high volume of
traffic utilizing this road to bypass the bridge closure on Wellington Road 7. A Black Cat was deployed
to assist with traffic pressures being observed on this roadway.

Marine patrols on Wellington bodies of water to commence May 18™. Assistance from West Region
Traffic Management Unit as well as the Wellington County OPP Auxiliary to be utilized.

Wellington County will be participating in the Provincial Motorcycle Safety Awareness Week campaign
(May 1-5)

Traffic Unit members and the Wellington OPP Aukxiliary unit will be assisting with a bicycle safety rodeo
in Puslinch on May 11,

A Wellington Tow Association meeting was held at the Centre Wellington Detachment.

Collision Reporting Centre (CRC)
Supervisor: Sergeant Ange Stiles

OPP Collision Reporting Centres (CRCs) enhance safety on our County roads. They help with rapid
clearance, reduce the risk of secondary collisions, allows OPP to maximize resources, and allows
drivers an alternate means to reporting a collision at a time that is convenient for the involved parties.

By October 2023, our CRCs surpassed year two of operations in the County of Wellington.
In April 2024, the County of Wellington OPP were dispatched to over 100 vehicle collisions (MVCs).
Our County CRCs processed over 45 MVCs for the month of April.

The top three contributing factors for MVCs in our County are: Wild/domestic animal; Follow too close;
and Speed — Too fast for conditions.

Depending on the month, County of Wellington CRCs usually receive and process 50% of the
dispatched MVCs.

When a member of the public attends any of the County of Wellington OPP Detachments to report a
minor collision, they are welcome to attend Rockwood, Fergus or Teviotdale. At their request, a member
of the public is also allowed to request an officer attend the scene of'their collision if they prefer not to
attend one of our CRCs.

County of Wellington OPP Detachment Board Report for April
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Community Response

Community Response Unit
Supervisor: Sergeant Adam McGough

Community Response Unit / Offender Management & Apprehension Program:
The members of the Community Response Unit have been very active in the Offender Management &
Apprehension Program. The program, kickstarted by a government grant has been very successful.

For this reporting period, Wellington County OPP have executed 49 warrants. 74 warrants have been
sent to the Ministry of the Attorney General for review.

In April, Wellington County OPP will pivot the focus to bail compliance checks for those in the
community.

Training & Engagement:
PC Cunningham has been facilitating our first Citizens Police Academy in Wellington County. This
program showcases the OPP, its services, equipment, history and more to those who applied.

Community Safety Officers PC McClinchey, PC Cunningham, and Community Response Unit member
PC Rockefeller recently attended the Trauma Event System conference in Guelph. The committee
identifies need, gaps and challenges that are facing our community and shared work and explores
opportunities to address those gaps.

IMPACT (Integrated Mobile Police and Crisis Team)

March 2024
Individuals Served Requests for Service Live Calls with Police Calls Dlver_ted from
Hospital
53 61 41 92.7%

Safe Communities Wellington County

Safe Communities Wellington County focused our media on ATV Safety whether you are on roads or
trails within Wellington County. We also had a very busy April with us participating in three events;
including The Drayton Farm Show where we partnered with the Wellington County OPP to educate
families about ATV safety, Mental Health in the farming community and a variety of other injury
prevention areas. To close out the month we participated in The First Annual Spring Fling at The Stables
at Grand River Raceway, and Lights and Sirens at The Centre Wellington Sportsplex.

County of Wellington OPP Detachment Board Report for April
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Auxiliary Unit
Unit Commander: Auxiliary Staff Sergeant J. SWAN
Liaison: Provincial Constable Kyle Draves

Regular training was held in the North Wellington Operations Centre this month. Our main training topic
covered community mobilization and engagement.

Auxiliary members completed our annual refreshers on defensive tactics and firearms familiarization.
We are very appreciative of the local in-service training unit for accommodating weekend dates for
Auxiliary members to attend.

| had the opportunity to join the “Swap Talk” program on The Grand 101.1 radio in Centre Wellington
this month to share information about the Auxiliary program. The hosts had numerous questions both
on and off air about the Auxiliary program. It was a great opportunity to promote the activities of the unit
in the community as well as to raise awareness of the Auxiliary Program in general.

Members attempted one Safeguard audit this month that the homeowner was not present for in addition
to regular patrol hours. At the start of the month, we assisted with a food drive at Freshco in Fergus for
the Centre Wellington Food Bank that brought in over 700 bags of food and $647 in cash donations.
We also had members attend the Drayton Farm Show and the Lights and Sirens Hockey Game in
Fergus.

In May Auxiliary Constable Natalie BUREK has arranged for a number of Auxiliaries in Wellington
County to become certified child car seat inspectors. More details about this clinic will be shared in the
May report.

County of Wellington OPP Detachment Board Report for April
2024 Page 9

33



Crime Stoppers
Sarah Bowers-Peter, Program Coordinator CSGW

April highlights for Crime Stoppers Guelph Wellington (CSGW) included Youth Fire Chief for a Day and
the second annual Lights and Sirens where Wellington County OPP faced off for a fundraising hockey
game with Centre Wellington Fire Rescue.

The event was held April 21 at the Centre Wellington Sportsplex. With a family skate starting the day,
the hockey game was the main attraction as the two first responder teams going head-to-head. CSGW
sold 50/50 tickets and took donations at the door, along with Centre Wellington Foodbank. The amount
raised for CSGW was being confirmed at time of writing.

The Youth Fire Chief campaign was straightforward. Anyone who made a donation to CSGW between
March 13-31, 2024, would have their name entered into a draw. If their name was drawn, they could
name a youth of their choosing to be Youth Fire Chief for Centre Wellington Fire Rescue. The title was
open to candidates aged 5-12 years of age. The winner, from Wellington North, was delighted with her
time as the “Chief’ wearing a special shirt, learning fire safety techniques, touring the fire hall, riding a
fire truck and getting lunch with Chief Mulvey before touring the Township of Centre Wellington
municipal offices. While this was a modest fundraising, for a first time event it was deemed a success
and a subsequent campaign is being planned.

Presentations continue to be popular. This includes the Communications Training Developed at CSGW
to assist volunteers joining the Board. This training covers internal communications, public relations,
dealing with media and community engagement. This training was recognized by the Ontario
Association of Crime Stoppers and Canadian Crime Stoppers Associations and has been delivered to
programs across Canada as a result.

As we move into May, CSGW is prepping for Mulch Sale Season, a key fundraising campaign in Mount
Forest (May 11th) and Guelph (May 4th in person — and all month long). For more information, check
out www.csgw.tips or CSGW social media.
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Media
Provincial Constable Josh Cunningham & Provincial Constable Sarah McClinchey

e The media unit attended the Youth Advisory Committee on April 3™

e Both members of the Media Unit attended the Regional CSO meeting on April 4t

e Media attended the Drayton Farm Show on April 10" & 11t

e PC McClinchey attended and completed the OPP media course from the 15™ to the 19" of
April

e PC Cunningham and PC McClinchey attended VTRA (Violent Theat Risk Assessment) training
on the 24" & 25" of April

¢ PC Cunningham continued to facilitate the Citizen’s Police Academy in April. Sessions 5, 6, 7
& 8 were completed this month.

e Wellington County OPP members participated in Smile cookie day on April 29"

e On April 30" the Media Unit were live on Radio Talk with the River 88.1

@ Ontario Provinial Police - West Region is in Fergus
i LI

00 ' p— "é OPP West Region @OPPWR - Apr 9
D Like Q Comment &) Share u #WellingtonOPP would like to speak to the individuals in the photos
regarding a recent theft from a business in #Palmerston. Anyone with

information regarding this incident is asked to contact the Wellington
County OPP at 1-888-310-1122 or Crime Stoppers at 1-800-222-8477. “kl

Q1 118 Q17 i 37K I
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Court

Supervisor: Sergeant Shaugn Rogers

Wellington County Court Bureau highlights from March 2024,

Currently providing direction and proposed training for all Detachment Administrative Clerks to
assist in the duties of the court bureau.

Provided direction for members on new procedure for uploading Detachment video interviews
for disclosure to the Crown.

Reviewed current practices and provided updated direction for members on implementing “plug
in” tool for mandatory redaction of digital evidence.

Implemented new procedure for members dealing with rescheduling of accused persons who
failed to show for fingerprinting dates.

County of Wellington OPP Detachment Board Report for April Page 12
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Personnel & Acknowledgements

D Platoons hard work leads to arrests

After a string of break and enters in South Wellington that resulted in a significant amount of high valued
property being stolen D Platoon commenced an investigation that required forensic involvement that was
invaluable to identifying suspects.

PC Oppong-Kyekyeku, PC Ritchie, PC Kalcsics and PC Lantz worked tirelessly to take numerous reports,
process scenes and property via SOCO. Their detailed work was essential to three parties being arrested
shortly thereafter by Dufferin OPP. The vehicles were recovered and the officers spent a lot of time doing
follow up and returning items to their owners.

County of Wellington OPP Detachment Board Report for April Page 13
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Statistics Summary

Calls for Service

It is projected that annual calls for service should remain stable in
2024.
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2024 year to date calls for service have decreased 3% from the same 0
period last year. ]
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10000
5000
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Violent Crime
Violent Crime appears to be trending up, however there is no
significant increase in violent crime projected over last year.

2024 year to date violent crime has decreased 6% from the
period last year.

same

Property Crime

Property Crime has continued to trend lower since 2018, however
an increase in property crime is predicted for 2024.

2024 year to date property crime has decreased 7% over the same
period last year.

Drug Crime *

Drug Crime continues to trend lower than previous years. It is
anticipated that drug crime will begin to level off and remain stable
at a low level in comparison to recent years.

2024 year to date drug crime has increased 84% from the same
period last year. This increase is insignificant due to the low number
of cases reported during the period last year.

Yearly Reported Calls for Service

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

2023 2024

W Forecast MMM Actual = Trend

Yearly Reported Violent Crime Occurrences

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 202

s Forecast mmmmm Actual Trend

Yearly Reported Property Crime
Occurrences

T

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

mm— Forecast s Actual Trend

Yearly Reported Drug Crime Occurrences

2016

202

2018 )ﬂl‘] 2020 202

2017

W Forecast mmmm Actual Trend

* Note: Recreational use of cannabis was decriminalized on October

17", 2018
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Criminal Traffic Occurrences
Criminal Traffic occurrences are projected to increase over 2023 Yearly Reported Criminal Traffic
Ievels_ Occurrences

2024 year to date criminal traffic occurrences have increased by 18%
over the same period last year.

014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

W Forecast W Actual Trend

Traffic Related Occurrences

Although reductions were observed in traffic occurrences since Yearly Reported Traffic Occurrences (incl.
2019, an increase in 2023 was realized. A decrease is forecast in
2024.

Year to date traffic occurrences have decreased 3% over the same
period last.

5 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

NN Forecast W Actual Trend

Motor Vehicle Collisions

Motor vehicle collision occurrences appear to be trending slightly Yearly Reported Traffic Collisions
upward. Reductions were enjoyed during 2021 and 2022 however
an increase in 2023 was observed. It is forecasted that collisions
will remain at 2023 levels in 2024.

2024 year to date collisions have increased 2% over the same period
last year.

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

mm—Forecast W Actual

Big 4 Traffic (Impaired Operation — Distracted Driving — Seatbelts — Speeding)

Current data unavailable at the time of this report. Yearly Reported Big 4 Traffic Offences

Chart depicted is January 2024 data.

6000

4000 TR
\\.
b I I I\\.
J L= e e e
022 2023 202

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
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All statistics, graphs and maps are based upon preliminary information supplied by reporting parties and may not have been verified. Preliminary crime classifications may be changed at a later date
based upon additional investigation and the possibility of mechanical or human error.

There is no warranty, representation or guarantee as to the content, sequence, accuracy, timeliness, or completeness of any of the data provided herein. The data provided is unreliable for
comparison purposes over time, or for any other reason. The Ontario Provincial Police explicitly disclaim any representation or warranty, including, without limitation, any merchantability or fitness for
a particular purpose.

Further, the Ontario Provincial Police shall assume no liability for any errors, omissions, or inaccuracies in the information provided, regardless of how caused. The Ontario Provincial Police will not be
responsible for the use of, or the results obtained from the use of this information. The Ontario Provincial Police shall assume no liability for any decision, action, or deferral by anyone made in
reliance of any information or data provided.

All data visualizations on maps are considered approximate and attempts to derive specific addresses are prohibited.
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Report Summary

With another busy season of winter driving and dangerous road conditions seemingly behind us,
Wellington County OPP is looking forward to spring weather and the commencement of the many
events and festivities that blanket the County at this time of year.

Our focus as always is safety, we want everyone to enjoy the entertainment, the weather, the parks,
trails and waterways to the fullest; we ask that everyone take it upon themselves to ensure they are
prepared for emergency situations that are inevitably going to happen. The best way to do this is to
ensure you wear and use proper safety equipment for the activity you are taking part in. If you are out
on the waterways make sure you have lifejackets for each person, if you are driving a vehicle slow
down and do not drink and drive. If you are out hiking make sure you bring a first aid kit, water, and
snacks. Your preparations and actions can save a life and prevent an emergency.

County of Wellington OPP Detachment Board Report for April P 16
2024 age

40



Contacts

In an emergency DIAL 911

You can also call
1888 310 1122

1888 310 1133 (TTY)

Anywhere in Ontario, 24-hour toll free

Non-emergency calls

Please call
1888 310 1122

1888 310 1133 (TTY)

Anywhere in Ontario, 24-hour toll free

County of Wellington OPP
Detachments

Centre Wellington Operations Centre
371 Charles Allan Way,

Fergus, ON N1M 2W3

Non-Emergency 519-846-5930
Fax 519-846-5460

South Wellington Operations Centre
5145 Wellington Road 27,

Rockwood, ON NOB 2KO0
Non-Emergency 519-856-1506
Fax 519-846-2327

North Wellington Operations Centre
6725 Wellington Road 109,
Palmerston, ON NOG 2P0
Non-Emergency 519-343-5770
Fax 519-343-5780

© 2024 Ontario Provincial Police — All rights reserved

OPP General Headquarters

Ontario Provincial Police
General Headquarters
Lincoln M. Alexander Building
777 Memorial Avenue
Orillia, ON
L3V 7V3

General inquiries: 705 329-6111
8:00 am to 4:00 pm, Monday to Friday

@ www.opp.ca

@ Report a Crime Online
@ News releases

@& Upcoming events
@ Social media
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County of Wellington O.P.P.
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Detachment Commander:
Inspector Steve Thomas




From the Detachment Commander

With summer on the horizon, Wellington County OPP
wants to remind everyone about both boating and driving
safety. Be proactive, prepare, and plan ahead. Your actions
can unknowingly save a life or prevent a life altering injury.
Please ensure there are life jackets for all boat occupants
and never operate any vessel or motor vehicle while
impaired. All Wellington officers continue to make RIDE
and enforcement of impaired driving of any type of vehicle
a priority to keep our community safe.

Our Traffic Management Unit and Community Response
Unit have been out on the waterways with the marine
vessel, and they continue to travel the trails on OPP
bicycles and ATVS to keep the boating and cycling public
safe and to assist anyone in need.

On May 31st, 2024, Wellington County OPP held a
Progress Pride flag ceremony at North Wellington
Operations Centre in Teviotdale. The raising of the
Progress Pride flag outside the Wellington County
detachments celebrates the diversity of the 2SLGBTQIA+
community and symbolizes the continuing commitment of
the OPP to support, promote, and protect equity and
acceptance of all.

Inspector Steve Thomas
519-846-5930

Index

Crime

Traffic

Community Response

| want to wish everyone a safe and happy summer while Court 10
you enjoy the sunshine with your families and participate in Personnel &
your seasonal activities of choice. But, please, remember | acknowledgements 1
to enjoy these summer activities safely and responsibly and

joy : . y P y Statistical Summary 12
plan for any possible emergencies.

Report Summary 14
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Crime

Crime Unit
Supervisor: Acting Detective Sergeant, Christine Millson

This month members of the Wellington Crime Unit were recognized for their Investigative Excellence
and commended for their professionalism and dedication to duty at the OPP West Region Awards
Ceremony. There were two investigations that were recognized that involved members of the Wellington
County OPP. specifically lead by the Crime Unit.

Lucas Shortreed Hit and Run Investigation

In 2008, a hit and run collision killed a young pedestrian in Wellington North Township. After striking the
victim, the driver of a 1995 white Dodge Neon fled the scene and was not identified until 2022.
Investigation recovered the suspect vehicle and led to criminal charges on two offenders. Both accused
subsequently plead guilty in court.

Unknown Offender Sexual Assault

The incident occurred on January 28", 2023, during a rideshare from Guelph to Fergus. The two women
approached a vehicle that they thought was their rideshare. The driver told them he was not their driver
that they had ordered but was a driver for the app. On the drive to Fergus, the male sexually assaulted
both women. Following a thorough investigation, the driver and vehicle were identified, and the male
was charged with two counts of Sexual Assault.
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Community Street Crime Unit
Supervisor: Detective Sergeant, Jeffrey Dudley

May has been a steady month for the Community Street Crime Unit (CSCU); we also continue to support
the Crime Unit and frontline investigations where possible.

D/C Schneider joined CSCU on a Temporary Assignment and brings with him a wealth of frontline
knowledge from working in both Perth and Wellington County. CSCU looks forward to working with D/C
Schneider and developing his investigative skills.

As part of our commitment to continuous learning, CSCU Members attended various training courses
and workshops within West Region. The officers bring back knowledge they can share with frontline,
and it has provided them with additional tools to utilize during their investigations.

In May an officer with the Wellington Traffic Unit was patrolling in Center Wellington and located an
impaired driver. A search was completed of the individual and a firearm, cocaine and a large quantity of
currency was located. Officers completed a further search of the vehicle and found a significant amount
of cocaine. The individual was charged with a number of offences and held for bail. Members of The
Traffic Unit, D Platoon and CSCU worked together to bring this investigation to a successful conclusion.
Great teamwork demonstrated in Wellington County.

Members of the CSCU conducted a presentation to one of our community partners. The goal of the
presentation was to provide knowledge on some of the risks and hazards that can be present in the
community. The presentation was well received and CSCU continues to maintain good working
relationships with our community partners.

CSCU assisted neighboring CSCU units with search warrant executions and investigations as part of
the ongoing commitment to public safety and reducing harm in our communities.

Wellington County CSCU continues to prioritize local crime trends, the opioid crises and targeting local
people identified in property thefts. CSCU members are committed to continuous learning and are
attending training when time permits. CSCU has developed local training, mentoring initiatives for front
line members to promote officer safety and enhance their local knowledge on the current drug and
property crimes trends in the area.
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Traffic

Traffic Management Unit
Supervisor: Sergeant Kevin Driscoll

Black Cat Speed Monitoring Devices

Study Number of | Recommended | Posted | 85t Collision
Length | Vehicles Enhanced Speed | Percentile | History
Enforcement Limit (5 years)

Location

Concession 11
10d 3976 Y 50 73
Arthur Township | ays es

Location

Side Road 19 - | 9 days 1902 No 40 54
Fergus

Location

Side Road 20 - 8 days 1012 No 50 46
Mapleton

County Deployed

Location

County 7 7d 33983 N 80 106
Between Hwy 6 and ays ©

County 51
Location

County 3_2 between 7 days 48305 Yes 70 115
Concession 11 and

33

Enhanced Enforcement Program

Enhanced Enforcement is a focused traffic safety initiative which areas of concern are identified through
various means and police conduct education and charge drivers who fail to follow the rules of the road.
The goal is to reduce safety issues through visibility, presence, and enforcement.

Enhanced Enforcement protocols were rolled out on November 14, 2023. The following locations and
charges are from May 2024.

Location Charges

Concession 11 — Wellington North - Farewell 0

Indian Trail between Spirit Valley Path and the River — Guelph-Eramosa 33 (22
warnings)

Traffic Management Unit - Administration

Marine patrols have commenced with great success. Members have been on all bodies of water within
the County with the assistance from West Region Traffic Management Unit as well as the Wellington
County OPP Auxiliary.
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Wellington County members participated in the Provincial Motorcycle Safety Awareness Week
campaign (May 1st to 5™). This campaign involved both enforcement efforts and public awareness to
address dangerous activities that threaten the safety of our two-wheeled motorists.

Traffic Unit members and the Wellington OPP Auxiliary assisted with a bicycle safety rodeo in Puslinch
on May 11t

Members of Wellington Detachment also participated in the Canada Safe Boating Week as well as the
Canada Road Safety Week. Many hours were patrolled on the various waterways resulting in several
warnings issued for minor infractions. One operator, however, was educated with an offence notice for
open alcohol on a vessel.

On the highways, Wellington County members worked extremely hard keeping the motoring public safe
and the results are self-explanatory. There were 445 traffic incidents generated resulting in 416
provincial offences being issued with a further 315 warnings issued.

It is anticipated that further Black Cat deployments will be completed in the coming summer months
which will result in further enhanced enforcement locations. The County currently has limited enhanced
enforcement locations due to the great work that is being done by the traffic unit and detachment
members.

Collision Reporting Centre (CRC)
Supervisor: Sergeant Ange Stiles

OPP Collision Reporting Centres (CRCs) enhance safety on our county roads. They help with rapid
clearance, reduce the risk of secondary collisions, allows OPP to maximize resources, and allows
drivers an alternate means to reporting a collision at a time that is convenient for the involved parties.

By October 2023, our CRCs surpassed year two of operations in the County of Wellington.
In May 2024, the County of Wellington OPP were dispatched to over 170 vehicle collisions (MVCs).
Our County CRCs processed close to 90 MVCs for the month of May.

The top three contributing factors for MVCs in our County are: Wild/domestic animal; Follow too close;
and Speed — Too fast for conditions.

Depending on the month, County of Wellington CRCs usually receive and process 50% of the
dispatched MVCs.

When a member of the public attends any of the County of Wellington OPP Detachments to report a
minor collision, they are welcome to attend Rockwood, Fergus or Teviotdale. At their request, a member
of the public is also allowed to request an officer attend the scene of'their collision if they prefer not to
attend one of our CRCs.
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Community Response

Community Response Unit
Supervisor: Sergeant Adam McGough

Community Response Unit / Offender Management & Apprehension Program:

The members of the Community Response Unit (CRU) continue to be very active in the Offender
Management & Apprehension Program. This program has been tremendously successful since its
creation last year with the assistance of a government grant.

From January 1st, 2024 — May 28", 2024, 134 warrants have been executed by Wellington County OPP.
There have also been 40 bail condition compliance checks on those in the community.

During this month, CRU members drafted and were authorized to use sophisticated technical means to
locate three members believed to be violating bail conditions in our community. Two were arrested, the
other has fled to another province.

The new OPP Provincial Bail Support Team (BST) has come online this month and Wellington OPP
CRU are working closely with BST to track down wanted parties and arrest them.

CRU members were also active in Marine Duties to kickoff the 2024 boating season.
Community Engagement:

PC Cunningham, joined by PC McClinchey, has been facilitating our first Citizens Police Academy in
Wellington County. This program showcases the OPP, its services, equipment, history and more to
those who applied.

Community Services Officer PC McClinchey completed the OPP Media training course. PC
Cunningham and PC McClinchey have both been trained in Violence Threat Risk Assessment (VTRA)
training facilitated by our social agency partners to provide risk assessments within our schools.

Planning meetings and liaison activities have continued for major events taking place in the coming
months in Wellington County, including but not limited to Riverfest, Meadows Fest, Highland Games
and Pride events.

During May, Wellington OPP was proud to
attend Guelph Emergency Preparedness Day.
Members of Wellington OPP also were
involved in Tim Horton’s “Smile Cookie” events
which proceeds were used for donations to
local schools. May 8™, 2024 was McDonald’s
McHappy Day, which Wellington County
members attended to raise funds for the
Ronald McDonald House. Both CSOs gave a community presentation in Erin in
the prevention of auto theft. CSO, CRU, CSS, Auxiliary and frontline members were also busy with
Bicycle Rodeos throughout the County.

County of Wellington OPP Detachment Board Report for May
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IMPACT (Integrated Mobile Police and Crisis Team)

March 2024
Individuals Served Requests for Service Live Calls with Police Calls D|ver.ted from
Hospital
41 44 11 100%

Safe Communities Wellington County

Our primary focus within our media outlets was Car Seat Safety and Consumer Product Safety to
prepare for Safe Kids Week in June. We also partnered with Ontario Students Against Impaired Driving
and Hennessey Veit for SAID Day and attended three high schools to speak to students about impaired
driving and the rules surrounding graduated licensing. Hennessey Veit received a $500 Road Safety
Grant from Parachute Canada to raise awareness about impaired driving, and graduated licensing
rules. To close off the month, we partnered with Wellington County OPP at the Fergus Lions Home
Show to speak to attendees about injury prevention. The Safety Scavenger Hunt was a hit, once again!

Auxiliary Unit
Unit Commander: Auxiliary Staff Sergeant J. SWAN
Liaison: Provincial Constable Kyle Draves

As noted in last month’s report, we hosted a child car seat technician clinic in Rockwood at the start of
May. We had three members become certified car seat technicians as a result of this clinic. We hosted
a car seat clinic on May 5" in Rockwood for our members to do their final certification. We then had
members conduct a second child car seat clinic as a part of the open house at the Rockwood Fire Hall
on May 11t

Auxiliary members attended bicycle rodeos in Fergus in association with the Fergus Optimist Club. and
at the Puslinch Fire Hall in association with the Optimist Club of Puslinch. We also had members assist
with the OPP display at the Fergus Leisure Show. Two members attended Minto Safe Kids Day in
Palmerston to assist with bike safety instruction. The coordinator for the Special Olympics.Track and
Field Day reached out to us this year and asked if the Auxiliary Unit would be interested in assisting
with the event, three members were able to volunteer and attend. Our Auxiliary Liaison Officer PC Kyle
Draves and Auxiliary Staff Sergeant Swan attended the final session of the Citizen’s Academy to share
information and answer questions about the Auxiliary program.

The Wellington County OPP Auxiliary Unit had three members resign this month as they were
successful in other employment opportunities. Two members were successful with uniform recruitment
and entered the OPP class that started at the end of May. And a third member secured a cadet position
with Halton Regional Police and has started their new role with that service. We thank all three for their
work with the Auxiliary Program and wish them well in their future careers.

Finally, I am pleased to announce that the Auxiliary Unit was awarded the Friends of the Food Bank
Crystal Award at a recent appreciation reception held by the food bank. The award is currently in the
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display case at the Centre Wellington Operations Centre. Thank-you to Auxiliary Sergeant Danielle Ellis
who coordinates our work with the Food Bank.

Crime Stoppers
Sarah Bowers-Peter, Program Coordinator CSGW

May is Mulch Season for Crime Stoppers Guelph Wellington. This key fundraising event is crucial to
the success of the program. Fundraising is used to pay Tipster rewards and to help operate the program.

While overhead is extremely low, there are costs to increase awareness of the program, specifically the
various promotional materials. Pens, posters, notepads, racks etc. are used to create awareness when
handed out at presentations and community events. Fundraising is the main responsibility of the CSGW
Board of Directors.

The Mount Forest Sale was held at Young’s Home Hardware on May 11, while the Guelph Sale was
both a one-day event (May 4" at the Wellington Street location of JL's Home Hardware) as well as
month-long. CSGW volunteers loaded the mulch on the 4" and 11", In Guelph $2 per bag was donated
while we were on site. For the rest of the month, $1 per bag is being donated. In Mount Forest, all
proceeds were turned over to CSGW. Totals will be announced in June.

Presentations continue to be high demand with Fraud Talk and 5 Tips, 5 Ideas and 5 Signs being the
current favorites. CSGW has had ongoing requests for Cyber Safety information for youth. Following
the announcement this month regarding Project Aquatic, CSGW will develop this content for delivery in
schools. We are working with UGDSB to get this information approved for delivery. Review of all CSGW
presentations will take place over the summer to offer the most current and engaging content.

The Program Coordinator was invited to attend West Region Headquarters to present the Crime
Stoppers message and tie it into youth engagement. The presentation was well received, and a number
of follow-ups have taken place.

County of Wellington OPP Detachment Board Report for May
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Court

Supervisor: Sergeant Shaugn Rogers

Wellington County Court Bureau highlights from May 2024,

Addressing a more streamlined approach to officer attendance at all POA ftrial dates.
Consideration is being given to have officers scheduled for trial be notified only if the trial is
moving forward which can alleviate pressure on these frontline officers who are being
dispatched to priority calls for service at the same time.

Reassigning workloads and assigned duties amongst court bureau staff to address staffing
vacancies. One of the DACS was temporarily assigned to a regional analyst role which required
reassigning workload amongst other staff members. At the same time, the court bureau saw the
addition of a new part-time officer who has been assigned to assist with prisoner care, process
service and fingerprinting.

Reviewed current practices and provided updated direction for members on implementing “plug
in” tool for mandatory redaction of digital evidence.
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Personnel & Acknowledgements

Citizens Police Academy

The inaugural Wellignton County OPP Citizen’s Police Academy concluded on May 10™, 2024. Twenty
members from the community were selected to attend the ten week academy and received an indepth look
into the policing world, how we operate and why we do the things we do.

Thank you to everyone that applied and thank you to everyone selected for being on time, attentive and full
of questions. We hope you were able to get a better understanding of policing and the challenges that come
with the profession.

For anyone interested, the plan is to run the Citizen’s Police Academy again in the Spring of 2025. Please
look for media annoucncements come Winter of 2024 if you plan to apply for nexy years class.

Thank you to PC Cunningham, PC McClinchey for organizing and faciliatating the first Wellington County
OPP Citizen’s Police Acaedmy. Special thank you to Detachment Adminstration Clerk Carly McKeown for
providing administrative support for the acaedmy on her own time after completing her daily work duties.

County of Wellington OPP Detachment Board Report for May Page 11
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Statistics Summary

Calls for Service

It is projected that annual calls for service should remain relatively Yearly Reported Calls for Service
stable in 2024 as compared to the previous year.

40000

35000

B
2024 year to date calls for service (Jan-May) have increased 5% “:j: - |
from the same period last year. o I I I I I I I

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

= Forecast W Actual =—Trend

Violent Crime

Violent Crime appears to be trending up, however there is no Yearly Reported Violent Crime Occurrences
significant increase in violent crime projected over last year.

2024 year to date violent crime (Jan-May) has decreased 3% from [}
the same period last year. I I I I II I I I

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

W Forecast wmmmm Actual = Trend

Property Crime
Property Crime has continued to trend lower since 2018, however Yearly Reported Property Crime
an increase in property crime is predicted for 2024. » OSSREESnLes

2024 year to date property crime (Jan-May) has remained stable
over the same period last year.

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

mm— Forecast W Actual = Trend

Drug Crime *

Drug Crime continues to trend lower than previous years. It is Yearly Reported Drug Crime Occurrences
anticipated that drug crime will begin to level off and remain stable
at a low level in comparison to recent years.

2024 year to date drug crime (Jan-May) has increased 67% from the
same period last year. The increase is considered insignificant at this
time due to the low number of cases reported. I l l = -

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2

s Forecast W Actual = Trend

* Note: Recreational use of cannabis was decriminalized on October
17,2018
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Criminal Traffic Occurrences

Criminal Traffic occurrences are projected to decrease over 2023 Yearly Reported Criminal Traffic
Ievels Occurrences

III I'llii-

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

2024 year to date criminal traffic occurrences (Jan-May) have
increased by 16% over the same period last year.

mmm Forecast wmmm Actual = Trend

Traffic Related Occurrences

Although reductions were observed in traffic occurrences since Yearly Reported Traffic Occurrences (incl.
2019, an increase in 2023 was realized. A decrease is forecast in ‘ WAy

2024. 0c

Year to date traffic occurrences (Jan-May) have decreased 3% over 0

the same period last. 2000

2014 2015 zmr )m/ 2018 m'-) 2020 /u/1 2022 2023 2024

mm—Forecast W Actual = Trend

Motor Vehicle Collisions

Motor vehicle collision occurrences appear to be trending slightly Yearly Reported Traffic Collisions
upward. Reductions were enjoyed during 2021 and 2022 however
an increase in 2023 was observed. It is forecasted that collisions

will remain near 2023 levels in 2024.
2024 year to date collisions (Jan-May) have increased 7% over the
same period last year. :

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 202

m—— Forecast W Actual Trend

Big 4 Traffic (Impaired Operation — Distracted Driving — Seatbelts — Speeding)

Using the previous 10 years of data, Big 4 Traffic offences were Yearly Reported Big 4 Traffic Offences
projected to decline over last year. Currently, Big 4 Traffic Offences - &
are expected to exceed the projection.
2024 year to date Big 4 Traffic Offences (Jan-Apr) have increased
38% over the same period last year.

—
v
A
I " 10

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

mm— Forecast W Actual Trend

All statistics, graphs and maps are based upon preliminary information supplied by reporting parties and may not have been verified. Preliminary crime classifications may be changed at a later date
based upon additional investigation and the possibility of mechanical or human error.

There is no warranty, representation or guarantee as to the content, sequence, accuracy, timeliness, or completeness of any of the data provided herein. The data provided is unreliable for
comparison purposes over time, or for any other reason. The Ontario Provincial Police explicitly disclaim any representation or warranty, including, without limitation, any merchantability or fitness for
a particular purpose.

Further, the Ontario Provincial Police shall assume no liability for any errors, omissions, or inaccuracies in the information provided, regardless of how caused. The Ontario Provincial Police will not be
responsible for the use of, or the results obtained from the use of this information. The Ontario Provincial Police shall assume no liability for any decision, action, or deferral by anyone made in
reliance of any information or data provided.

All data visualizations on maps are considered approximate and attempts to derive specific addresses are prohibited.
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Report Summary

As we enter the time of year that brings about long days filled with sunshine and fun outside,
Wellington County OPP wants to remind everyone that summer is also a time where we need to be
vigilant and use caution while enjoying the outdoor activities that coincide with warm weather. Please
remember to wear life jackets, plan ahead, and never operate a boat or motor vehicle while impaired.

Being prepared for unexpected emergencies can be the difference, bring a first aid kit, pack extra
water and nonperishable food supplies. When going out to enjoy summer events, festivals, and
activities many of us never think we could fail victim to a tragedy or help to prevent one, but your
actions and planning could save a life and prevent a disaster.

Wellington County OPP officers will continue to be visible throughout our community for the remainder
of spring and throughout the summer months. We will proactively patrol our roadways and waterways
to ensure they are safe for your enjoyment and use. Please do not hesitate to strike up a conversation,
ask your questions, and help to build a community minded relationship/trust with your local police
officers. We look forward to seeing as many of you as possible at the community events and festivals
across Wellington County in the coming months.

Please be safe and have a wonderful summer, enjoy the weather and sunshine.
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Contacts

In an emergency DIAL 911

You can also call
1888 310 1122

1888 310 1133 (TTY)

Anywhere in Ontario, 24-hour toll free

Non-emergency calls

Please call
1888 310 1122

1888 310 1133 (TTY)

Anywhere in Ontario, 24-hour toll free

County of Wellington OPP
Detachments

Centre Wellington Operations Centre
371 Charles Allan Way,

Fergus, ON N1M 2W3

Non-Emergency 519-846-5930
Fax 519-846-5460

South Wellington Operations Centre
5145 Wellington Road 27,

Rockwood, ON NOB 2KO0
Non-Emergency 519-856-1506
Fax 519-846-2327

North Wellington Operations Centre
6725 Wellington Road 109,
Palmerston, ON NOG 2P0
Non-Emergency 519-343-5770
Fax 519-343-5780

© 2024 Ontario Provincial Police — All rights reserved

OPP General Headquarters

Ontario Provincial Police
General Headquarters
Lincoln M. Alexander Building
777 Memorial Avenue
Orillia, ON
L3V 7V3

General inquiries: 705 329-6111
8:00 am to 4:00 pm, Monday to Friday

@ www.opp.ca

@ Report a Crime Online
@ News releases

@& Upcoming events
@ Social media
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June 12, 2024

Seana Richardson

Aggregates Technical Specialist

Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry
Guelph District

1 Stone Road West

Guelph, Ontario

N1G 4Y2

Attention: Ms. Richardson
Re: Monthly Monitoring Report — May 2024

Mill Creek Pit, License #5738
Township of Puslinch, Wellington County

Dufferin Aggregates

2300 Steeles Ave W, 4" Floor
Concord, ON L4K 5X6
Canada

RECEIVED
JUN 14 2024

Township of Puslinch

Please find enclosed the required monitoring data for the month of May 2024. There were no exceedances to report.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call.

Sincerely,

Jonathan Clark
Site Superintendent

CC: Township of Puslinch

Sonja Strynatka (GRCA)

Kevin Mitchell (Dufferin Aggregates)
University of Guelph

A division of CRH Canada Group Inc.



Dufferin

Aggregates
Monthly Reporting
Mili Creek Aggrepates Pit
May 2024
Date DP21 (mASL) Threshold Value Exceedance ey BH13 DP21 (mASL) Head Difference | Threshold Value Pcesdisnsa
{mASL) (mASL) (m) {m)
1-May-24 305.87 305.60 “ND 1-May-24| 306.27 305.87 0.40 0.11 ND
G-May-24 305.84 305.60 NO B-May-24| 306.19 305.84 0.35 0.11 NO
13-8ay-24 305.82 305.60 NO 13-May-24| 30626 305.82 D.44 0.11 NO
23-May-24 305.7% 305.60 NO 23-May-24| 30624 305.79 D.45 0.11 NO
29-0ay-24 305.87 305.60 WO 29-May-28| 306.28 305.87 D.41 0.11 NO
Date DPI7 {mASL) Threshold value Exceedance Date BH92-12 DP17 (mASL) Head Difference | Threshold Value Eatiance
{maAsy) (mASL) (m) {m)
1-May-24 305.33 305.17 NO 1-May-24| 305.79 305.38 0.41 0.14 NO
6-May-24 305.36 305.17 NO &-May-26| 305.74 305.36 0.38 0.14 NO
13-May-24 305.32 305.17 NO 13-May-24| 305.73 305.32 0.41 0.14 NO
23-May-24 305.22 305.17 NO 23-May-24| 305.67 305.22 0.45 0.14 NO
29-May-24 305.37 305.17 NO 29-May-24| 305.77 305.37 0.40 014 NO
Date DP3 [(mMASL) Thr&‘:::'_‘; ahue Exceedance Date (::551) DP3 {MASL) Head [{)ﬁerem Thresl':::t]i Vakie Exceedance
1-May-24 304.90 304.54 NO 1-May-2§| 305.92 304.80 1.02 0.73 NO
5-May-24 304.85 304.54 NO &-May-24| 305.87 304.85 102 0.73 NO
13-May-24 304.80 304.54 NO 13-May-24| 305.82 304.80 1.02 0.73 NO
23.May-24 304.72 304.54 NO 23-May-24| 30578 304.72 1.08 0.73 NO
29:-May-24 304.78 304.54 NO 29-May-24| 305.84 304.78 1.06 0.73 NO
Date DP2 (mASL) Threshald Value Exciadaite Date BH92.27 DP2 {mASL) Head Difference | Threshold Value Exceedasce
{mAsL) (mASL} {m) (m)
1-May-24 304.02 303.69 NO 1-May-24| 304.83 304.02 0.81 0.34 NO
6-May-24 303.99 303.69 NO H-May-24| 304.80 303.99 0.81 0.34 NO
13-May-24 304.00 303.69 NO i3-May-24| 304.73 304.00 0.73 0.34 NO
23-May-24 303.98 303.6% NO 23-May-24| 304.73 303.98 0.75 0.34 NO
29-May-24 304.02 303.69 NO 29-May-24| 304.81 3I0.02 Q.79 0.34 NO
Date DPE (mASL) mrﬁt:'c:::; ki Exceedance Date T:::]s DP1 {mASL) s ?::; = Thresl't[omk}! Ao Exceedance
1-May-24 304.36 303.97 nNO 1-May-28| 304.88 30436 0.52 0.17 NO
6-May-24 304.34 303.97 NO £-May-24| 304.81 304.34 0.57 0.17 NO
13-May-24 3D4.35 30397 NO 13-May-24| 3204.96 304.35 0.61 0.17 NO
23-May-24 304.29 303.97 NO 23-May-24| 304.79 304.25 0.50 0.17 NO
29:-Miay-24 304.24 303.97 NO 29-May-24| 304.98 304.34 0.54 0.17 NO
Detd DPSCR (mASL) Thrashald Value Encaadaiion Date OWS-B4 DPSCR {mASL) Head Differanca | Threshold value Exceedance
(mASL) (mASL) () [m)
1-May-24 303.27 302.86 NO 1-May-24| 303.73 30327 0.45 0.18 NO
6-May-24 303.29 302 86 NO 6-May-24| 303.70 303.29 041 0.18 NO
13-May-24 303.40 302.86 NO 13-May-24| 303.68 303.40 0.28 D.18 NG
23-May-24| 303.25 302 86 NO 23-May-24| 303.89 303.25 D.44 D.18 NO
29-May-24 303.39 302.86 NO 29-May-24| 303.71 303.39 0.32 0.18 NO

No exceedances ta report for the month of May.

Note: A beaver dani has been ahserved on private property upstream of DPSCR, which is likely to impact the water levels at DPSCR. Similar {0 what has occurred in the
recent past at this location, the beaver dam may petentially cause actien threshold exceedances. it is recommended that the appropriate authovity arrange to have the
beaver dam removed.
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Representing The Ontario
Stone, Sand & Gravel
Association (OSSGA)

Terry Waites |
Chairman of the Board

Ryan Essex |
Secretary/Treasurer

Bill Marquardt
George Lourenco

Representing a
Conservation

or Environmental
Organization

Lisa Burnside
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Representing The Ontario
Stone, Sand & Gravel
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Terry Waites |
Chairman of the Board

Ryan Essex |
Secretary/Treasurer
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Representing a
Conservation

or Environmental
Organization

Lisa Burnside

Representing the
Association of
Municipalities of Ontario
(AMO)

Sandra Easton

Representing the
Aggregate
Industry at Large
(non OSSGA)

Kerry Doughty

Representing the Ministry
of Natural Resources and
Forestry as an “Ex Officio
Member”

Renée Bowler

Representing the
Association of
Municipalities of Ontario
(AMO)

Sandra Easton

Representing the
Aggregate
Industry at Large
(non OSSGA)

Kerry Doughty

Representing the Ministry
of Natural Resources and
Forestry as an “Ex Officio
Member”

Paul Bernier
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Minister Smith

May 27, 2024

Honourable Graydon Smith

Minister of Natural Resources and Forestry
Suite 6630, 6th Floor, Whitney Block

99 Wellesley Street West

Toronto, Ontario M7A TW3

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to submit the 2023
Annual Report of The Ontario Aggregate Resources Corporation.

Enclosed within this report are the audited financial statements for both the
Aggregate Resources Trust and The Ontario Aggregate Resources Corporation,
covering the fiscal year ending December 31, 2023. Notably, the financial
statements for the Aggregate Resources Trust include a comprehensive schedule
detailing the rehabilitation costs for projects completed under the Management
of Abandoned Aggregate Properties (MAAP) program throughout the year.

Additionally, the report provides an insightful overview of various rehabilitation
initiatives led by the MAAP program, alongside research endeavors
funded by the Abandoned Pits & Quarries Rehabilitation Fund.

We trust that this report serves as a thorough reflection of our
corporation’s activities and achievements over the past year.

Yours truly,

Terry Waites
Chairman of the Board
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i 2023 Chairman’s Message

| understand from our team at The Ontario Aggregate Resources Corporation (TOARC) that 2023 brought challenges and
situations that | am pleased to say, as expected, were handled by them in a professional manner!

Early in the year TOARC was informed by it's contacts at the Ministry of Natural Resources and Forestry (MNRF) that the
Office of the Auditor General of Ontario would be undertaking a Value-for-Money Audit on the MNRF in 2023. As trustee
of the Aggregate Resources Trust, TOARC was asked to participate and fully support this process.

As expected, TOARC's employees fully supported the process by participating in individual interviews, demonstrating
administration tools, information and reports that allow TOARC to meet the obligations of the Trust or “Trust purposes’”.
An example of supporting The Auditor General, the staff joined the spring pre-bid project tour. During this tour, bidding
contractors and the Management of Abandoned Aggregate Properties (MAAP) program construction supervisor visited
the legacy sites scheduled for tender. The purpose was to oversee the rehabilitation process of these legacy aggregate
sites. | understand that it provided them with a valuable opportunity to gain insight into MAAP's functions and opera-
tional procedures.

Although | do not think it is appropriate to comment on the overall results or findings of the audit, | do think it is
important to note that many of the challenges that the Auditor General noted were identified by referencing reports,
systems, and databases that TOARC and MAAP have implemented and share with the MNRF regularly. Additionally, the
report highlights some of MAAP's commmendable practices, such as monitoring the progress of rehabilitated lands for
several years post-completion.

Annual Fees and Royalties of $39.7 million were collected and disbursed in 2023 based on 2022 production reporting.

Production reported on licences decreased by 2.4% in 2022 to 163 million tonnes. When including permits, Forestry Pits,
and Private Land Non-Designated sources, the total production dropped to 173 million tonnes from 178 million tonnes
in 2021.

The Upper and Lower Tier Municipalities portion of the fees they received did not change significantly as the fee increase
from $0.208 per tonne to $S0.213 per tonne (2.4%) was offset by approximately the same 2.4 % decrease in production
tonnage reported on licenses. Minor differences in fees received year over year are mainly attributed to the differences
between permit and licence year over year changes.

2023 Fees based on 2022 production were disbursed amongst recipients as follows:

2021 2022
(SMILLION) (SMILLION)
4

22.8

2023
(SMILLION)

22.8

DISBURSEMENT YEAR

Local Municipalities

Counties & Regions

MAAP Program
Province - Annual Fee from Licences & Permits

Province - Royalties from Permits 1.9

roraL

*(2021 - 2023 Disbursement shown for comparison)
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775
349
397
2690
796
269

The MAAP program is dedicated to the restoration of Ontario’s Developed
“abandoned pits and quarries.” As per the Ministry of Natural
Resources and Forestry, these sites are located in designated
areas under the Aggregate Resources Act (ARA) and never held No Historical extraction*
a licence prior to December 31, 1989. Within MAAP, we term
these sites as “legacy” and are generally small pits and quarries
that were excavated to facilitate infrastructure development ERGACISUICIC e EFENTED)

across Ontario but were never rehabilitated. They are scattered Situated on Crown Land
throughout every Lower and Upper Tier Municipality.

Licensed

Naturalized (to create new habitat)

Landowner Not Interested

The total count of legacy sites in Ontario has decreased by —
nineteen to 8209 files now in our eMAAP database of which  IRGACISILELCS NIV /AMIN
6,619 are now closed. This decrease in sites was the result of Total Files Closed

duplicate files within the system. This means that there remain

1,590 open sites that may require some sort of rehabilitation. *Files where no disturbances could be found or
where it was determined the site disturbance

was not a result of aggregate extraction.

(@]
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N
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In 2023, MAAP initiated rehabilitation of seventeen (17)
legacy sites throughout Ontario. They included nine (9)
sites located in Muskoka and Parry Sound, along with
eight (8) sites on Manitoulin Island. Notably, all 2023
MAAP projects focused on naturalization efforts. Further
details showing exemplary work by MAAP can be found
later in this annual report.

Rehabilitating aggregate sitesin Northern Ontario presents
enduring challenges, primarily attributed to limited soil
availability and shorter growing seasons. TOARC, in part-
nership with College Boréal and Lakehead University,
alongside industrial collaborators Pioneer Construction,
Ethier Sand and Gravel, and Glencore’'s Sudbury Integrated
Nickel Operations, continues to develop Novel Strategies

for Enhancing Biodiversity and Ecosystem Function at
Northern Ontario Aggregate Pits. An article describing
2023 summer field trials at a Sudbury legacy site and
plans for further trials and monitoring until 2025 can be
found later in this report.

Examining naturalization of legacy sites has been a focus
of MAAP the past few years. The research project, Guelph
Arboretum: 40 Years After Naturalization wrapped up in
2023. One of the main goals was to compile valuable infor-
mation on the biodiversity, abundance, and relative state
of rehabilitation in a largely unrehabilitated site compared
to a site that received more thorough restoration efforts.
The comparative analysis was to assess how different stra-
tegic interventions play out over an extended period of
naturalization. Results of this project can be found later
in this report.

Part of MAAP's mandate is to document rehabilitation
methods and assess their effectiveness. With over 300
completed naturalization projects at MAAP and over 8,400
surrendered files in the province, restoration science has
evolved significantly. While traditional methods involve
extensive field and lab analysis, spaceborne satellite and
drone imagery are increasingly accessible and used for
vegetation monitoring and moisture gradient quantifi-
cation in various sectors.

In spring 2023, TOARC partnered with the University
of Toronto to develop a rapid assessment protocol for
aggregate pit restoration success using image analysis.

&l:- wim --h!_-:h b
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The research aimed to identify key ecosystem functions
contributing to successful restoration, determine which
functions can be reliably estimated through remote
sensing and develop a streamlined evaluation metho-
dology. The findings of this trial are detailed later in this
report.

Another responsibility of TOARC involves addressing and
potentially rehabilitating sites that have been revoked by
the MNRF for various reasons. These cases often present
challenges such as insolvency, lands that are not owned
by the licensee or permittee, and/ or ongoing litigation.
In recent years, the team has focused on minimizing the
number of open files, ensuring rehabilitation is completed,
where necessary, by either the former client (licensee or
permittee) or TOARC. This effort is crucial for mitigating
potential liability to the Trust. In 2023, the number of open
files was reduced from 9 to 4, significantly decreasing the
potential liability from $487,500 to $4,375.

Trust funds increased in the year ending 2023 to
$19,232,283 from $17,655,287 at the year end 2022.
Trust revenue increased by $5,064,288 as the investment
revenue in 2023 were $3,328,654 compared to a loss of
$1,735,634 in 2022. This was largely due to the gains in
the “unrealized changes in fair value portion” reflective of
better performance of the 2023 financial markets. Trust's
expenses increased by $145,200 in 2023. This increase was
mainly a result of programming cost relating to a fillable
PDF project, higher labour, travel, accormmodation, and
other costs due to high inflation.

There were no changes to the composition of the Board
of Directors in 2023. | want to thank all my fellow board
members and the team at TOARC who are always
engaged and committed to ensuring that the organi-
zation is committed to meeting and exceeding the objec-
tives of the Aggregate Resources Trust.

Respectfully submitted,

7 e

Terry Waites

Chairman of the Board
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MAAP 2023

Project Summary

Project
Number

22-06

Landowner / Location

Noordam Pit, Perth County

End Use

Agriculture

www.toarc.com
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Summary of MAAP

Rehabilitation Costs

Year

Number of
New Sites

Area
Rehabilitated
(ha)

Total
Costs**

Cost
/ (ha)
$

Avg Cost
per site

Avg Area
Rehabilitated
(ha)

1992-96* 52 77.99 726,480 9,315 13,971 1.50
22-02b Kent Pit, Durham County Agriculture 1997 15 22 40 497,973 22 231 33,198 1.49
22-05a Strike- Sapp Pit, Huron County Agriculture n/a 860 1998 10 18.35 219,199 11,945 21,920 1.84
23-01a Phillips Pit, Parry Sound County Naturalization 0.84 31,284 1999 16 30.35 366,636 12,080 22,915 1.90
18 28.50 411,226 14,429 22,846 1.58
23-01c Nilson Pit, Parry Sound County Naturalization 0.29 9,973 2000
2001 21 25.50 320,337 12,562 15,254 1.21
23-Olci Nil Pit, P S dcC t Naturalizati 0.09 9,973
cl ison Fit, Farry sound tounty aturalization 2002 10 14.25 288,844 20270 28,884 1.43
23-01d Copeman Pit, Parry Sound County Naturalization 0.65 21,553 2003 19 46.39 342,897 7,392 18,047 2.44
23-0le Shillolo Pit, Parry Sound County Naturalization 212 72,454 2004 15 27.35 414,986 15,173 27,666 1.82
23-01f Faubert Pit, Muskoka County Naturalization 0.27 12,070 2005 27 75.45 499,290 6,617 18,492 2.79
28 49.50 506,210 10,226 18,079 1.77
23-01g Davidson Pit, Muskoka County Naturalization 0.14 5,158 2006 : i '
2007 23 39.11 744,771 19,043 32,381 1.70
23-01h Rose Pit, Muskoka County Naturalization 0.12 9,594
2008 29 45.10 482,874 10,707 16,651 1.56
23-07i Moore Pit, Muskoka County Naturalization 0.54 17,856 2009 20 54 99 308,584 13,528 16,429 1.21
23-02 Kains Pit, Manitoulin County Naturalization 0.50 200 2010 19 19.35 231,122 11,944 12,164 1.02
23-03a McCaffery Pit, Manitoulin County Naturalization 0.58 30,022 2011 38 34.40 341,521 9,928 8,987 0.91
23-03b Wilson - Baksh Pit, Manitoulin County Naturalization 0.67 35,247 2012 30 38.10 444,222 11,659 14,807 1.27
2013 28 4413 490,554 11,116 17,520 1.58
23-03c Deforge Pit, Manitoulin County Naturalization 0.52 27,585
2014 13 21.79 431,413 19,799 33,186 1.68
23-03d McMullin Pit, Manitoulin County Naturalization 0.08 8,779 2015 03 3873 402,307 10,387 17,492 1.68
23-03e Barfoot Pit, Manitoulin County Naturalization 0.65 34,341 2016 37 42.49 467,769 11,009 12,642 1.15
23-03f Wright Pit, Manitoulin County Naturalization 032 25,628 2017 29 28.02 533,025 19,023 18,380 0.97
23-03g Durand Pit, Manitoulin County Naturalization 3.23 192,753 2018 21 2828 593,149 20974 28,245 1.35
2019 26 19.00 594,271 31,277 22,857 0.73
24-01a Mississauga First Nation Pit, Algoma County  Naturalization n/a 1,936
2020 19 20.20 514,590 25,475 27,084 1.06
24-01b Mississauga First Nation Pit, Algoma County  Naturalization n/a 1,936 2021 21 19.16 758,336 39,579 36,111 0.91
24-01c Mississauga First Nation Pit, Algoma County  Naturalization n/a 1,936 2022 18 15.47 582,959 37,684 32,388 0.86
-- Green Pit, Wellington County Agriculture n/a 240 2023 17 11.61 544,472 46,978 32,028 0.68
24-03d Hillbilly Camp Pit , Muskoka County Naturalization n/a 5,000 Total 642 00526 13,080,016 14,449 20,374 1.41

*Hectares is working area of the site. Sites previously reported or to be completed will show "n/a".

*1992-1996 data is based on information provided by MNRF ** Total Costs have been restated (except for MNRF
contracts) to include total project spend in subsequent years. Only completed projects are included.
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hcovering Nature’s Resilience: A 40-Year
aview of Gravel Pit Rehabilitation at the
niversity of Guelph Arboretum

cological restoration is a critical endeavor in mitigating the environmental impacts of
h activities, including industrial landscapes such as gravel pits. The University of
Guelph'Arboretum has been at the forefront of such restoration efforts pioneering initia-
tives dating back to the 1970s. In 2021 the Guelph Arboretum, supported by TOARC,
delved into the history and evolution of gravel pit rehabilitation at the Arboretum
calling the study the “The Gravel Pit Rehabilitation Project” focusing on two key areas,
1) Gravel Pit Restoration Collection and 2) Southwoods Hill.

The Cravel Pit Rehabilitation Collection, initiated in 1976, aimed to restore a legacy
gravel pit within the Arboretum grounds. This rehabilitation involved innovative recla-
mation methods and has been undergoing assessment in recent years to understand
its success and inform future restoration efforts. The Southwoods Hill area, another
disturbed site within the Arboretum was filled with material from adjacent road cons-
truction with no further restorative actions until the 1970s when rehabilitation efforts
began. Unlike the Cravel Pit Rehabilitation Collection area, the restoration efforts at
Southwoods Hill were less thorough and involved minimal maintenance after the
initial planting phase. By conducting a comprehensive review of these two areas this
study aimed to shed light on the effectiveness of restoration strategies employed and
their long-term ecological outcomes.

Methodology:

The research methodology in this study included archival research, bioinventory

surveys and soil testing. Archival records documenting the history of restoration efforts

at the Gravel Pit Restoration Collection and Southwoods Hill areas were meticulously

reviewed and analyzed. Bioinventory surveys were conducted to assess plant species

diversity and abundance at both sites. Similarly, soil samples were collected and
halyzed to evaluate soil properties and nutrient content. Comparative analyses were
erformed to identify differences in restoration outcomes between both sites.

esults:
The analysis revealed differences in plant species composition and soil characteristics
between the two areas. While the Gravel Pit Rehabilitation Collection area displayed a
higher abundance of certain species, Southwoods Hill showcased a more diverse range
of grasses, sedges, and wildflowers that adapted to its gravel-rich and alkaline soils.
Soil testing highlighted differences in soil properties between the disturbed sites and
undisturbed forest areas within the Arboretum. Despite similarities in historic soil clas-
sification, disturbed areas showed higher pH levels and lower magnesium and sodium

content likely due to the extraction process and subsequent reclamation efforts.

www.toarc.com

Discussion:

The findings of this study highlighted the impor-
tance of long-term monitoring and adaptive
management in ecological restoration. The
success of restoration efforts at Southwoods Hill
underscores the resilience of natural ecosystems
and the potential benefits of minimal intervention
approaches. In contrast, the Cravel Pit Restoration
Collection exemplifies the efficacy of targeted
restoration strategies in transforming degraded
landscapes into thriving habitats. These insights
have implications for future restoration projects,
emphasizing the need for holistic, context-specific
approaches informed by long-term monitoring
data.

Conclusion:

The University of Guelph Arboretum’s gravel pit
rehabilitation projects offer valuable lessons in
ecological restoration and landscape mana-
gement. By examining the evolution of restoration
efforts at the Gravel Pit Restoration Collection
and Southwoods Hill, this study has provided
insights into the factors influencing restoration
success and ecosystem resilience. Moving forward,
continued monitoring and research will be
essential in furthering our understanding of ecolo-
gical processes and informing future restoration
endeavors.

TOARC ANNUAL REPORT P. 9

Find the full report here:

Take a Tour of the

Rehabilitation Collection

One of the highlights of the partnership between
TOARC and the Guelph Arboretum was that a
video documenting the history of the Arboretums'
Cravel Pit Restoration Collection efforts was
published. The video follows Sarah Lowe, the
Rehabilitation Coordinator from 1976- 1979, at the
Arboretum as she discusses the work completed
in the rehabilitation collection and its intentions.

The video can be viewed here:
[m] 53 [m]
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- -, : In a collaborative effort between TOARC and the University of Toronto in 2023, the feasibility of using

Y r 3t T these image analysis techniques to assess rehabilitation projects was explored. With over 300 legacy
=y * UIN = rehabilitation projects already naturalized by the MAAP program and thousands more sites rehabilitated
L AR by licensees and permittees in Ontario, the need for a standardized evaluation protocol is evident.

The overarching goal of the ongoing project is to develop a clear protocol for critically evaluating the
success of previously rehabilitated sand and gravel pits. This involves determining key ecosystem func-
tions contributing to successful restoration, identifying functions reliably estimable through remotely
sensed image analysis and developing a streamlined evaluation methodology applicable to numerous
restoration projects.

Preliminary results from the project are promising, with drone imaging proving effective in capturing
detailed information on vegetation cover and species diversity across rehabilitated sites. These findings
hold significant implications for the sustainable management of aggregate resources in Ontario. By esta-
blishing a streamlined evaluation methodology, the project aims to provide a reliable framework for
assessing the success of pit rehabilitation efforts. Moreover, it highlights the potential of drone tech-
nology in facilitating rapid and cost-effective assessments of restoration outcomes.

As the project progresses, efforts will focus on expanding study sites, refining drone remote sensing
workflows and exploring the complex relationships between soil health and vegetation dynamics.

Developing a PrOtOCO| for Rapid Assessment Ultimately, the project strives to contribute to ongoing efforts to ensure the ecological integrity
. . of rehabilitated aggregate pits and quarries across the province. For access to the full report, visit
of Aggregate Pit Restoration Success www.toarc.com.

The rehabilitation of pits and quarries represents a crucial step in the sustainable management of
aggregate resources within the province. Effectively transitioning these sites from areas of extraction
to productive land-use spaces is essential for environmental conservation. TOARC, through the MAAP
program is responsible for the rehabilitation of legacy pits and quarries, ensuring the land is restored
to a viable ecosystem. This process often involves grading the site to safer slopes, spreading available
topsoil and hydroseeding vegetation to kickstart recovery and introduce essential nutrients. However, the
ultimate success of this rehabilitation process in restoring sites to their natural state remains uncertain.

FIELD-RE DATA RECAESSION MODEL DEVELOPMENT MAPPING AESLLTS DEEP LE-“-“"!"‘K- 1:LA_55|F|E-'&TH3N MODEL
i c Pee D, e ]
= _

The field of restoration science has evolved significantly, moving beyond simple species inventories to
assess the ecological recovery of restored sites. Evaluation now encompasses 18 different metrics across
six attributes, including site physical conditions, species composition, structural diversity, ecosystem
function, external exchanges, and threat absence. Quantifying these metrics typically demands extensive
field and laboratory analysis over multiple sampling periods. For instance, assessing plant species
composition requires monitoring at least three times during the growing season to accommodate the
varied growth habits of different vegetation guilds. Despite minimal seasonal changes in soil structure,
the spatial variability in these metrics necessitates extensive fieldwork. Additionally, factors like nutrient
cycling, ecosystem production and respiration, and soil water content should be monitored throughout

the growing season.
Bl Cead Grass and Soil B Trees and Tall Shrubs B Purpie Vetch

The rise of spaceborne satellite and drone imagery has revolutionized environmental monitoring, offering e
& T

a potential solution to reduce the labour-intensive field and lab efforts required for assessing rehabili-
tation success. These technologies have been increasingly utilized for measuring vegetation status, moni-
toring post-disturbance recovery and quantifying moisture gradients in various fields, including forestry
and agriculture. This presents an opportunity to employ image analysis techniques to streamline the
evaluation process without compromising accuracy.
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to Enhance Biodiversity and Ecosystem
Functions in Northern Ontario's Aggregate Pits

The collaboration between TOARC (The Ontario Aggregate Resources Corporation), industrial partners
(Pioneer Construction, Ethier Sand and Gravel, and Glencore’s Sudbury Integrated Nickel Operations),
Collége Boréal, and Lakehead University aims to address the challenges of rehabilitating former legacy
aggregate sites in northeastern Ontario. These pits pose ecological and possible safety concerns due to
their unstable slopes, lack of vegetation and easy public accessibility.

To overcome these challenges, the research team conducted comprehensive greenhouse trials in 2020
and 2021, followed by preparations for field trials. The greenhouse trials indicated that traditional treat-
ments such as lime and fertilizer mix yielded suboptimal results, while blended pulp mill sludges showed
promising outcomes in improving seedling outcomes, soil fertility and water holding capacity.

The selected trial site in Sudbury, Ontario, was chosen as a representative example of a typical northern
Ontario pit, making it suitable for conducting field trials. The site preparation involved extensive work,
including resloping, improving access and removing garbage to create suitable conditions for the expe-
riments.

A delay in an Environmental Compliance Approval (ECA) necessitated a staggered approach to treatment
application. Nonetheless, with the onset of spring 2024, the team anticipates swiftly applying the blended
primary and secondary pulp sludge treatments on the trial site as soon as the snow melts. Additionally,
biomass boiler ash and lime-treated municipal biosolids have already been incorporated into the pit
floor material to enhance soil quality.

Following the earthwork phase, native trees and shrubs will be planted and sown with monitoring efforts
spanning two years to assess the health of plants, water quality and soil conditions. The research findings
aim to provide valuable insights into improving legacy site rehabilitation strategies, benefiting not only
regional aggregate producers but also other regions with similar geological and climatic conditions.

Ultimately, the protocols developed through this collaboration offer promising solutions for enhancing
biodiversity and ecosystem functions in disturbed legacy sites, contributing to long-term environmental
sustainability in the region.

To stay up to date on the project's progress visit, www.toarc.com
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Reimagining Restoration: Innovative Approaches

Addressing the Organic Void: MAAP's Trials with Soil
Amendments on Legacy Sites

Legacy sites, which predate the Aggregate Resources Act, often had their organic matter removed and
relocated during extraction activities. To overcome the challenges of low organics on site, MAAP has
been trialing soil amendments on these difficult terrains and closely monitoring their effectiveness and
progress. What MAAP has discovered is that as time progresses, dead grasses that accumulate year
after year help build a soil layer and while soil amendments can kickstart this process, time remains an
essential factor. Follow along for some examples over a 5-year period.

BEFORE

b |

EAR AFTER
e

One Year After Rehabilitation:
MAAP Project: 21-01a Anderson Pit, Area ~4,300m? Volume ~700m?

The Anderson pit, located near Maynooth Ontario, had very sandy exposed faces at each end with no
recoverable organic soils to be used for rehabilitation. Minor grading was required to reduce the sheer
faces, but the rehabilitation plan primarily relied on the application of hydroseed. Northern Ontario seed
mix was applied in a “Verdiol Biotic Earth Black” hydraulic growth media across the site. After one year of
drought conditions, vegetation was well established on shaded slopes that prevented desiccation. Other
areas of the pit were patchy and did not do well. After consultation, it was decided that low success areas
would be reseeded. MAAP continues to monitor the site and make recommendations as it progresses.

L
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Two Years After Rehabilitation: Five Years After Rehabilitation:
MAAP Project: 21-02c Pollatschek Pit, Area ~12,375m? MAAP Project: 16-03¢c Mundt Pit, Area ~13,825m? Volume ~3,000m?

Volume ~5,200m?3 The Mundt pit featured several small pit faces with the largest approximately 4 meters high, along
with a spacious open floor previously utilized for equipment and vehicle storage. The site was
scattered with numerous large rock piles and overburden of varying grain sizes. Notably, there
was a lack of organic materials available on site. The grading approach aimed to smooth out the
remaining slopes wherever possible to minimize disturbance to the surrounding forested area.

Like the Anderson pit, the Pollatschek site exhibited a characteristic presence of "blow"
sand in the pit face transitioning to gravelly soils at the east end. Test pitting verified

the presence of approximately 700m?* of sandy organic soils within a berm at the top
of the face. A rehabilitation design was developed for a 5:1 slope utilizing the available
700m?* organic soils to top-dress the graded slope. Bulldozer tracks were intentionally
left perpendicular to the slope to help trap the hydroseed product. The site was seeded
using the same "Verdiol Biotic Earth Black" hydraulic growth media and Northern Ontario
seed mix. After one year, the results were marginally better than those observed at the
Anderson pit, likely attributed to the incorporation of organic soils onto the slope. It is
important to note that soil accumulation will require time.

To address the absence of organic material, TOARC contacted a local lumber mill that had surplus
piles of decomposing organics resulting from processing raw wood before milling. The mill
was eager to dispose of some of these piles to create additional floor space for their operations.
Approximately 2,100m3 of material was obtained free of charge, covering the floor to a depth of
about 20cm. Since the mulch was only partially decomposed, it would take several years for it to
break down sufficiently to facilitate the establishment of grasses and woody species. Five years
after rehabilitation the site is well on its way to self-sustaining vegetation!
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Where are the surrendered sites distributed?

Distribution of Surrendered Sites in Ontario

Shedding Light on Aggregate Rehabilitation: A significant portion of the
. o . surrendered sites are permits in
TOARC's Surrender Online Reporting Tool Northern Ontario, accounting for over
70% of the total surrendered sites. For
Northuest " this analysis, southern and northern
Ontario were delineated by sites north
or south of Sudbury.

Northeast

The rehabilitation of pits and quarries is a critical aspect of managing aggregate resources in Ontario

sustainably. Transitioning from extraction to productive land-use activities helps alleviate land-use
conflicts and addresses social, economic, and environmental concerns. Despite the many examples of
exceptional rehabilitation practices, their impact often goes unnoticed.

Southeastern

Southwestern

One of the Trust's important purposes is the education and training of those interested in the aggregate
industry. TOARC is continuously working to bridge the communication gap between industry and the
public as well as provide a non-biased communication forum. One of these education efforts is the
ongoing maintenance of the Surrendered Online Reporting Tool database that is available to the public
on TOARC's website. In 2015, TOARC created the eSurrender database in response to the 2013 Review of
the Aggregate Resources Act by the Standing Committee on General Government.

What are the field visits showing?

Water (10%) Aericut Rehabilitation

t
gl;{lc;)/c’)tlre Review of surrendered licences and permits in Ontario
that TOARC has completed site visits, show that nearly

40% of the rehabilitated hectares are naturalized.

Agriculture end use:
j 7 Includes pasture, field crop and speciality crops.
ax»

The TOARC Surrendered Sites Reporting and Mapping Tool provides a more complete understanding of
the end-use of former pits and quarries and has the potential to be used to support licence and permit
applications, provide information at public consultation meetings, be utilized for research initiatives and
serve as an educational tool for end-use possibilities.

Open Space (8%)

Naturalization end use:
Includes forest, meadow, thicket, alvar, etc.

How many files are in TOARC’s database?

As of 2023, TOARC has 8,497 files in its database, but not all these sites are necessarily surrendered. When
TOARC created the database in 2015 it combined various datasets and there were 8,064 surrender files.
Many of these files were historical and required review to determine if site extraction occurred. For
example, during the lifespan of a licence/ or permit it could have multiple ID numbers, amalgamated
with other site(s), and/ or had no extraction. Since 2015 TOARC staff have reviewed 5,164 out of the
8,064 files to determine whether they are a surrendered licence or permit.

Surrenders

1997-2022 Developed end use:
Includes residential, commercial, industrial, etc.

Water:
Includes wetlands, ponds and lakes.

Developed (23%)

Open Space:

Naturalization (40%) X .
Includes maintained, bedrock, gravel, sand, natural, etc.

A goal of 2024 is to complete the review the remaining 2,900 historical surrendered data.

How does TOARC staff visit the surrendered sites? There are some data gaps Surrender online reporting tool

TOARC staff receive the official surrender documents from the Ministry of Natural Resources & As users explore the Surrendered Sites Reporting The online tool contains information on a site-by-site

Forestry (MNRF) including a site rehabilitation plan, if available. The information is added to our and Mapping Tool, it is essential to keep in mind basis detailing the current and surrounding land-
internal database and flagged for a site visit. During the summer months TOARC's field technicians the potential for data gaps. While TOARC has made uses as well as information on the licence/permit
visit legacy and surrendered sites when working in a geographical area. diligent efforts to compile data from various sources, itself, including operation type, licence/permit class,
Since 2015, TOARC has received 433 new surrenders, so an average of 50 sites have been surren- gaps may still exist due to information being retired licensed area, location, and surrendered date. A
dered annually. One of the challenges of documenting surrendered sites is that it is only a according to retention schedules. photographic record of the sites are also available.
picture in time. As TOARC collects information on historical sites for the database, there is a The database's coverage spans a significant Please check out the tool and share with other
probable chance that the land- use had changed since the surrender date as the decision of temporal scale, reflecting changes in standards, interested stakeholders, https://toarc.com/

the land post surrender are not subject to the Aggregate Resource Act and are a decision of

policies, procedures, and regulations since the surrendered-sites-reporting-and-mapping-tool/
the landowner. To better document the rehabilitation of the surrendered site, versus a land

enactment of the Aggregate Resources Act in

use change TOARC has updated its policy for field technicians to prioritize visiting newly g 1990. It is crucial for users to understand that the
surrendered sites 1-year post-surrender to ensure the immediate rehabilitated land-use : / information on current and surrounding land usage
is documented. is only indicative of the situation at the time of

bt TOARC's visit to the site.
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.. Independent
Auditor’'s Report

To the Trustee of Aggregate Resources Trust:

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Aggregate Resources Trust (the "Trust"), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2023, and the statements of revenue and expenses and changes in fund balances,

and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Trust as at December 31, 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information, other than the
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, included in the 2023 Annual Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assu-
rance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The 2023 Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of the auditor's report. If, based on the work
we will perform on this other information, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management deter-
mines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Trust's financial reporting process.

continued on next page..




www.toarc.com TOARC ANNUAL REPORT ) www.toarc.com TOARC ANNUAL REPORT P. 21

Independent
Auditor’'s Report

.. Aggregate
Resources Trust ..o poson

(continued)

December 31 December 31
: L A c 3 2023 2022
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements $ $
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
1 3 . o . ASSETS
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in CURRENT
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement Cash 636.900 405.837
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in ’ '
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the Due from Licensees and Permittees 406,939 599,227
basis of these financial statements. HST recoverable 123,232 169,885
As parF of an auditin accgrda.nce with ;anadian geherally accepted auditing standards, we exercise profes- Prepaid expenses 33,266 36,019
sional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
’ ' A ) ) . TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,200,337 1,210,968
« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting Investments fnote 2] 19,268,611 17,320,781
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may ) ]
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Capital assets, and Intangibles, net note 3] 114,991 80,515
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 20,583,939 18,612,264
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the LIABILITIES AND TRUST FUNDS
effectiveness of the Trust's internal control.
3 ; - . . CURRENT
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting esti- o
mates and related disclosures made by management. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 281,559 156,753
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting Wayside permit deposits 39,000 70,200
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or Deferred Aggregate Resources Charges 87,648 31,805
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we 943.449 698.219
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report Due to Governments 2 ’
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,351,656 956,977
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our audi-
tor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going
concern. TRUST FUNDS
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclo- Rehabilitation FuNd [see schedules] 16,648,576 16,013,903
sures, anpl Whether the ﬂnapual statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner Abandoned Pits and Quarries Rehabilitation Fund see scheduies] 2,583,707 1,641 384
that achieves fair presentation.
TOTAL TRUST FUNDS 19,232,283 17,655,287

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 20,583,939 18,612,264
that we identify during our audit.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

On behalf of the Trust by The Ontario Aggregate Resources Corporation as Trustee:

Do CAVIBY  (LF

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants _—
/4
Oakville, Ontario [ ﬁ :

April 11, 2024

Director Director
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Aggregate Resources Trust

Schedules of Statement of Revenue and Expenses and Changes
in Fund Balances for the Aggregate Resources, Rehabilitation

and Abandoned Pits and Quarries Rehabilitation Funds

Abandoned Pits

REVENUE
Investment income [note 2] 2,075,200 1,279,329
Unrealized changes in fair values 1,219,954 (3,014,963)
Gain on disposal of capital assets 33,500 -
3,328,654 (1,735,634)
EXPENSES
Trust's expenses [note 6] 1,766,167 1,610,900
Amortization 75,942 78,182
Investment management fees 141,987 149,814
1,984,096 1,838,896
EXCESS/(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES
BEFORE THE FOLLOWING 1,344,558 (3,574,530)
Aggregate Resources Charges 39,660,460 39,644,074
Allocated to the Governments (38,509,785) (38,509,697)
Allocated to the Crown (1,150,675) (1,134,377)
Expenditures incurred in meeting the Trust purposes [see schedules] (918,237) (827,915)
EXCESS/ (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR 426,321 (4,402,445)
Trust Funds, beginning of year 17,655,287 20,923,355
Funds reinvested by the Crown 1,150,675 1,134,377
TRUST FUNDS, END OF YEAR 19,232,283 17,655,287

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Aggregate and Quarries
Resources Rehabilitation Rehabilitation
For The Year Ended Fund Fund Fund
December 31, 2023 S S S
REVENUE
Investment income [note 2] — 971,828 1,103,372 2,075,200
Unrealized changes in fair value — 1,106,536 113,418 1,219,954
Gain on disposal of capital assets — 7,500 26,000 33,500
- 2,085,864 1,242,790 3,328,654
EXPENSES
Trust’'s expenses [note 6] — 975,316 790,851 1,766,167
Amortization — 59,249 16,693 75,942
Investment management fees — 124,837 17,150 141,987
- 1,159,402 824,694 1,984,096
EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENSES BEFORE THE FOLLOWING - 926,462 418,096 1,344,558
Aggregate Resources Charges 39,660,460 - - 39,660,460
Allocated to the Governments (38,509,785) — — (38,509,785)
Allocated to the Crown (1,150,675) — — (1,150,675)
Expenditures incurred in meeting the
Trust PUrpPOSEs [see schedules] - (291,789) (626,448) (918,237)
EXCESS/(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE
OVER EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR — 634,673 (208,352) 426,321
Trust Funds, beginning of year — 16,013,903 1,641,384 17,655,287
Funds reinvested by the Crown 1,150,675 — — 1,150,675
Interfund transfer (1,150,675) - 1,150,675 -
TRUST FUNDS, END OF YEAR - 16,648,576 2,583,707 19,232,283

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Aggregate Resources Trust

Statement of Cash Flows

For The Year Ended
December 31

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

TOARC ANNUAL REPORT

Aggregate and Quarries
Resources Rehabilitation Rehabilitation
For The Year Ended Fund Fund Fund
December 31, 2022 S S S
REVENUE
Investment income [note 2] — 897,601 381,728 1,279,329
Unrealized changes in fair value — (2,754,603) (260,360) (3,014,963)
— (1,857,002) 121,368 (1,735,634)
EXPENSES
Trust's expenses [note 6] — 900,424 710,476 1,610,900
Amortization — 63,579 14,603 78,182
Investment management fees - 136,874 12,940 149,814
— 1,100,877 738,019 1,838,896
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENSES BEFORE THE FOLLOWING - (2,957,879) (616,651) (3,574,530)
Aggregate Resources Charges 39,644,074 — — 39,644,074
Allocated to the Governments (38,509,697) - - (38,509,697)
Allocated to the Crown (1,134,377) - - (1,134,377)
Expenditures incurred in meeting the
Trust pUrposes [see schedules] - (144,400) (683,515) (827,915)
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUE OVER
EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR - (3,102,279) (1,300,166) (4,402,445)
Trust Funds, beginning of year — 19,116,182 1,807,173 20,923,355
Funds reinvested by the Crown 1,134,377 — — 1,134,377
Interfund transfer (1,134,377) — 1,134,377 —
TRUST FUNDS, END OF YEAR — 16,013,903 1,641,384 17,655,287

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Excess/(Deficiency) of revenue over expenses 426,321 (4,402,445)
Add (less) items not involving cash

Amortization 75,942 78,181

Unrealized changes in fair values (1,219,954) 3,015,013

Realized capital gain on sale of investments (390,624)

Gain on disposal of capital asset and intangibles (33,500) —

(751,191) (1,699,875)
Net change in non-cash working capital
balances related to operations

Due from Licensees and Permittees 192,288 (200,902)
HST recoverable 46,653 (83,735)
Prepaid expenses 2,753 (4,839)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 124,806 (18,637)
Wayside permit deposits (31,200) —
Deferred Aggregate Resources Charges 55,843 (1,750)
Due to Governments 245,230 (5,546)
CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (114,818) (2,015,284)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets and Intangibles (110,418) (34,324)
Proceeds on disposal of capital assets and intangibles 33,500 —
Purchase of investments (1,929,111) (645,420)
Proceeds on the sale of investments 1,201,235 1,544,831
CASH PROVIDED / (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES (804,794) 865,087
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Funds reinvested by the Crown 1,150,675 1,134,377
CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,150,675 1,134,377
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 231,063 (15,820)
Cash, beginning of year 405,837 421,657
CASH, END OF YEAR 636,900 405,837

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Aggregate Resources Trust Aggregate Resources Trust

Schedules of Rehabilitation Costs for the Rehabilitation Fund Schedule of Rehabilitation Costs for the Abandoned
Pits and Quarries.Rehabilitation Fund

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023

Approved | Paid or Payable /

Approved | Paid or Payable / Project Project Amount (Recovered)

Project Project Amount (Recovered) Number | Name

Number Name

22-06 Noordam Pit, Perth County = 1,350

22-001 Charles Dietrich Construction Ltd., Frontenac County 15,484 15,484 22.02b Kent Pit, Durham County — 720
22-002 2349580 Ontario Inc., Kenora County 17,004 17,008 22-05a Strike-Sapp Pit, Huron County - 860
23-001 Marvin Blanchard, York County 229,857 e 23-01a Phillips Pit, Parry Sound County 31,284 31,284
Education 23-01c Nilson Pit, Parry Sound County 9,973 9,973

TOARC study of surrendered sites in Ontario - (eSurrender) * 60,995 9,940 23-01ci Nilson Pit, Parry Sound County 9,973 9,973

Student Rehabilitation Design Competition 12,000 9,500 23-01d Copeman Pit, Parry Sound County 21,553 21,553

University of Waterloo - Aggregate
Resources Planning Credit Course

Variance to Budget (89,845) -
255,495 291,789

23-01e Shillolo Pit, Parry Sound County 72,454 72,454
23-01f Faubert Pit, Muskoka County 12,070 12,070
23-019g Davidson Pit, Muskoka County 5,158 5,158
23-01h Rose Pit, Muskoka County 8,677 9,594

10,000 10,000

23-01i Moore Pit, Muskoka County 17,856 17,856
23-02 Kains Pit, Manitoulin County 200 200
23-03a McCaffery Pit, Manitoulin County 29,844 30,022
23-03b Wilson-Baksh Pit, Manitoulin County 35,069 35,247
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 23-03c Deforge Pit, Manitoulin County 27,406 27,585
23-03d McMullin Pit, Manitoulin County 8,600 8,779
Sises el Azproved Paid or Payable / 23-03e Barfoot ?it, Mar?itou!in County 32,525 34,341
NG || Ve mount (Recovered) 23-03f Wright Pit, Manitoulin County 23,813 25,628
3 23-03g Durand Pit, Manitoulin County 190,938 192,753
21-003 3486702 Canada Inc., Cochrane County 32,539 32,539 24-01a Mississauga First Nation Pit, Algoma County 1,936 1,936
22-001 Charles Dietrich Construction Ltd., Frontenac County 32,427 32,427 24-01b Mississauga First Nation Pit, Algoma County 1,936 1,936
Education 24-01c Mississauga First Nation Pit, Algoma County 1,936 1,936
Grade 9 Curriculum 52,500 52,500 -- Green Pit, Wellington County = 240
TOARC study of surrendered sites in Ontario - (eSurrender) * 58,255 4,634 24-03d Hillbilly Camp Pit, Muskoka County 5,000 5,000
Student Rehabilitation Desigh Competition 12,000 6,300 Drone Lease 15,500
University of Waterloo - Aggregate 10.000 10.000 Research costs
Resources Planning Credit Course , ’ Arboretum: Gravel Pit Rehabilitation 40-year later 12,000 12,000
Gravel Pit Rehabilitation 40-Years After 6,000 6,000 Developing a protocol for rapid assessment
Variance to Budget 91,034 _ of aggregate pit restoration success 11,000 11,000
294,755 144,400 Constraints on Northern Aggregate Pit Reclamation and Novel
Reclamation Strategies for Enhancing Biodiversity
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements and Ecosystem Functioning 90,000 90,000
NSERC, Shared costs of above (45,000) (45,000)
Variance to budget 263,299 —
895,000 626,448

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Schedule of Rehabilitation Costs for the Abandoned

Pits and Quarries Rehabilitation Fund

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022

Project Project
Number Name

Horst Pit, Waterloo County

Approved
Amount

Paid or Payable /
(Recovered)

575

22-01a Lawrence Pit, Durham County 27,047 27,047
22-01b Hodgson Pit, Durham County 12,592 12,592
22-01c Alpe Pit, Durham County 46,132 46,132
22-01d Ward- Jarvis Pit, Durham County 7,660 7,660
22-02a Holtrop Pit, Durham County 42,110 42,110
22-02b Kent Pit, Durham County 42,800 42,800
22-02c Toth Pit, Durham County 26,610 26,610
22-03 Glencore Pit, District of Sudbury 37,500 37,500
22-04a Lammie Pit, District of Sudbury 31,000 31,000
22-04b Tessier Pit, District of Sudbury 20,000 20,000
22-04c Lefrancois Pit, District of Sudbury 37,625 37,625
22-04d Champaigne Pit, Nippissing County 22,950 22,950
22-04e Champaigne Pit, Nippissing County 29,850 29,850
22-04f Smithard Pit, Nippissing County 27,750 27,750
22-049 McGuinley Pit, Nippissing County 31,200 31,200
22-05a Strike- Sapp Pit, Huron County 28,850 29,025
22-05b McTavish Pit, Perth County 31,818 31,818
22-05c Hohnstein Pit, Bruce County 6,244 6,244
22-06 Noordam Pit, Perth County 100,000 100,000

Miscellaneous expenses - 1,454

Drone lease 15,500 14,573

Research costs

Arboretum: Gravel Pit Rehabilitation 40-year later 12,000 12,000

Constraints on Northern Aggregate Pit Reclamation and Novel

Reclamation Strategies for Enhancing Biodiversity

and Ecosystem Functioning 90,000 90,000

NSERC, Shared costs Mitigation Extraction through Afforestation (45,000) (45,000)
Variance to budget 224,762 -
907,000 683,515

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Aggregate Resources Trust

Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 2023

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FORMATION AND NATURE OF TRUST

Aggregate Resources Trust [the "Trust"] was settled by Her
Majesty the Queen in Right of the Province of Ontario [the
"Crown"] as represented by the Minister of Natural Resources
[the "Minister"] for the Province of Ontario pursuant to Section
6.1(1) of the Aggregate Resources Act, RS.O. 1990, Chap. A8
as amended [the "Act"]. The Minister entered into a Trust
Indenture dated June 27, 1997 [the "Trust Indenture"] with
The Ontario Aggregate Resources Corporation ["TOARC"]
appointing TOARC as Trustee of the Trust.

The Trust's goals are: [a] the rehabilitation of land for which a
Licence or Permit has been revoked and for which final reha-
bilitation has not been completed; [b] the rehabilitation of
abandoned pits and quarries, including surveys and studies
respecting their location and condition; [c] research on
aggregate resource management, including rehabilitation;
[d] making payments to the Crown and to regional muni-
cipalities, counties and local municipalities in accordance
with regulations made pursuant to the Act; [e] the mana-
gement of the Abandoned Pits and Quarries Rehabilitation
Fund; and [f] such other purposes as may be provided for by
or pursuant to Section 6.1(2)5 of the Act.

In 1999 the Trust's purposes were expanded by amendment
to the Trust Indenture to include:

(@) "the education and training of persons engaged in or inte-
rested in the management of the aggregate resources of
Ontario, the operation of pits or quarries, or the rehabilitation
of land from which aggregate has been excavated; and

(b) the gathering, publishing and dissemination of infor-
mation relating to the management of the aggregate

Charge

Class A Licence (private Land) or Aggregate Permits authorized
to remove more than 20,000 tonnes annually

resources of Ontario, the control and regulation of aggregate
operations and the rehabilitation of land from which
aggregate has been excavated.”

In accordance with the Trust Indenture, TOARC admi-
nisters the Trust which consists of three funds: the
Aggregate Resources Fund, the Rehabilitation Fund and the
Abandoned Pits and Quarries Rehabilitation Fund. TOARC is
a mere custodian of the assets of the Trust and all expendi-
tures made by TOARC are expenditures of the Trust.

Prior to the creation of the Trust, the Trust's goals were
pursued by the Minister and, separately, the Ontario Stone,
Sand & Cravel Association [the “OSSCA’] formerly The
Aggregate Producers' Association of Ontario [the "APAO"].
Upon the creation of the Trust, rehabilitation security deposits
held by the Crown, as represented by the Minister, were to be
transferred to the Trust. In addition, the Crown directed the
OSSGA to transfer, on behalf of the Crown, the Abandoned
Pits and Quarries Rehabilitation Fund to the Trust. By
December 31, 1999, the Minister and the OSSCA had trans-
ferred $59,793,446 and $933,485, respectively, to the Trust.

Pursuant to the Trust Indenture, TOARC "shall pay and
discharge expenses properly incurred by it in carrying out
and fulfilling the Trust purposes and the administration of
the Trust [Section 7.021].

The Aggregate Resources Fund is for the collection of the
annual licence and permit fees, royalties, and wayside permit
fees [aggregate resources charges] collected on behalf
of the Minister. Effective for the 2022 production year the
annual licence/permit fees, permit royalty fee, wayside permit
issuance and mining leases fees are as follows:

2022 Production

21.3 cents/tonne or $741,
whichever is greater

2021 Production

20.8 cents/tonne or $724,
whichever is greater

Class B Licence (private Land) or Aggregate Permits
authorized to remove 20,000 tonnes or less annually

21.3 cents/tonne or $370,
whichever is greater

20.8 cents/tonne or $361,
whichever is greater

Wayside Permit (issuance fee)

21.3 cents/tonne or $741,
whichever is greater

20.8 cents/tonne or $724,
whichever is greater

Minimum Royalty

53.9 cents/tonne 52.6 cents/tonne

For production prior to 2017 all aggregate resources charges were collected and disbursed based on the legislation in effect

at the time.

DISTRIBUTION:

Fees collected from licences, wayside permits and aggregate
permits will be distributed approximately as follows:

3% to the Aggregate Resources Trust for rehabilitation and research
61% to the local municipality in which the site is located
15% to the upper-tier municipality in which the site is located

21% to the Crown (minimum)

Royalties are paid to the Crown for use of Crown-owned aggregate.
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Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 2023

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - (CONTINUED)

The funds reinvested by the Crown to the Trust from the
Aggregate Resources Fund will be transferred within
the Trust and used for the Rehabilitation Fund and the
Abandoned Pits and Quarries Rehabilitation Fund. In
addition, the Trust collects the royalty payments and annual
fees related to aggregate permits and also disburses the
funds to the Crown within six months of receipt.

The Rehabilitation Fund represents the rehabilitation
security deposits held by the Crown, contributed by
Licensees/Permittees, transferred to the Trust. The Trust has
refunded approximately $48.6 million as per the Crown's
directions. The balance of funds will be used to ensure
the rehabilitation of land where licenses and/or permits
have been revoked and final rehabilitation has not been
completed.

The Abandoned Pits and Quarries Rehabilitation Fund is for
the rehabilitation of abandoned sites and related research.
Abandoned sites are pits and quarries for which a licence
or permit was never in force at any time after December 31,
1989.

The Trust's expenses [or Trustee's expenses] are the amounts
paid pursuant to Article 7.02 of the Trust Indenture.

Pursuant to Section 4.01 of the Trust Indenture, the Trust's
assets and the income and gains derived therefrom are
property belonging to the Province of Ontario within the
meaning of Section 125 of the Constitution Act, 1867
and, by reason of Section 7.01 of the Trust Indenture, the
amounts paid by the Trustee pursuant to Article 7 are paid
to or for the benefit of the Crown.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Trust have been prepared
in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance
with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual
results could differ from management's best estimates as
additional information becomes available in the future. The
financial statements have, in management’s opinion, been
properly prepared using careful judgment within reaso-
nable limits of materiality and within the framework of the
accounting policies of the Trust.

Aggregate Resources Charges

Aggregate resources charges collected on behalf of the
Minister are recorded upon receipt of a tonnage report from
Licensees and Permittees. Aggregate resources charges

are based on the tonnage produced in the preceding
period by the Licensees and Permittees as reported by the
Licensees and Permittees. Based on the reported tonnage,
if the calculated aggregate resources charges are zero or
less than the minimum annual fee, minimum annual fee
is charged and recognized. Deferred Aggregate Resources
Charges represents prepayments and overpayments of
fees charged to Licensees and Permittees.

Capital Assets and Intangibles

Capital assets and intangibles are recorded at cost less
accumulated amortization. Amortization is recorded to
write off the cost of capital assets and intangibles over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis as follows:

Computer equipment 3 to 5 years
Computer software 3 to 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Vehicles-Car 3 years
Vehicles-Truck 5 years

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when
acquired or issued. In subsequent periods, equities and
pooled funds traded in an active market are reported
at fair value, with realized gains and losses and unrea-
lized changes in fair values of investments recorded in
the Statement of Revenue and Expenses and Changes
in Fund Balances under investment income and unrea-
lized changes in fair value respectively. All other financial
instruments are reported at cost or amortized cost less
impairment, if applicable. Financial assets are tested for
impairment when changes in circumstances indicate the
asset could be impaired. Transaction costs on the acqui-
sition, sale or issue of financial instruments are included in
the Statement of Revenue and Expenses and Changes in
Fund Balances under investment income for those items
remeasured at fair value at each statement of financial
position date and charged to the financial instrument for
those measured at amortized cost.

Revenue Recoghition
Investment income is recognized in the period in which it
is earned.

Foreign Currency Translation
Foreign currency accounts are translated into Canadian
dollars as follows:

Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into
Canadian dollars by the use of the exchange rate prevailing
at the year-end date for monetary items and at exchange
rates prevailing at the transaction date for non-monetary
items. The resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are
included in investment income in the current period.

TOARC ANNUAL REPORT
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Aggregate Resources Trust

Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 2023

2. INVESTMENTS

Investments consist of the following:

2023 2022

Fair Value COST Fair Value COST
$ $ $

Pooled Funds 19,268,611 16,454,489 17,320,781 15,726,612

Investment income is broken down as follows:

2022
$

Interest income 1,364,437 554,742
Dividends 313,711 333,963
Realized capital gains 397,052 390,624

2,075,200 1,279,329

Investment income of the Rehabilitation Fund includes interest earned on Aggregate Resources
Charges collected on behalf of the Minister of $399,140 [2022 - $297,365].

The Trust manages market risk by diversifying investments in accordance with the Trust's Statement of Investment Policies and
Guidelines (‘SIP&G™). Investments are based on asset mix and risk management policies that are designed to enable to the
Trust to meet or exceed its long term objectives with an acceptable level of risk, consistent with the SIP&G as approved by the
Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has reviewed and amended in September 2022 for the Trust which sets out invest-
ments objectives, guidelines and benchmarks used in investing the Trust's assets, permitted categories of investments, asset mix
diversification and rate of return expectations. The Trust's expected annual target rate of return is 5.25% plus CPI over a 4-year
rolling period. The SIP&G target asset mix is comprised of four categories of assets. A set of benchmarks has been identified to
measure against each category’s annual rate of investment return. The Trust's investments were allocated within the allowable
asset categories ranges, as of the date of the financial statements.
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Aggregate Resources Trust Aggregate Resources Trust

Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 2023 Notes to Financial Statements December 31, 2023

3. CAPITAL ASSETS AND INTANGIBLES : 6. TRUST'S EXPENSES

Capital assets consist of the following: Abandoned Pits

2022 Rehabilitation and Quarries

3 For The Year Ended Fund Rehabilitation Fund
Accumulated | Net Book Accumulated | NetBook = ¥ ¥ December 31, 2023 $ $ $

Amortization Value Cost Amortization Value

[ EXPENSES
Computer equipment 233,409 201,301 32,108 215,354 180,964 34,389 Salaries and employee benefits iR A AR
Furniture and fixtures 107,256 106,460 796 107,256 102,557 4,699 Board expenses 259 - 259
Vehicles 153,451 71,364 82,087 61,088 54,230 6,858 | Professional fees 76,255 13,424 89,679
Leasehold Improvement 38,670 38,670 — 38,670 31,581 7,089 Data processing 88,933 P 126,474
Travel 40,253 60,980 101,233
532,786 417,795 114,991 422,368 369,332 56,036
Communication 40,010 35,609 75,619
Office 18,003 12,102 30,105
INTANGIBLES Office lease, taxes and maintenance 66,299 33,149 99,448
Computer software 483,522 483,522 — 483,522 456,043 27 479 Insurance 6,322 3,431 9,753
1,016,308 901,317 114,991 905,889 825,375 80,515 TRUST'S EXPENSES 975,316 790,851 1,766,167
4, COMMITMENTS Abandoned Pits
Rehabilitation and Quarries
The Trust has entered into a number of Research Funding Agreements. For The Year Ended Fund Rehabilitation Fund
The future annual payments, in total and over the next three years, are as follows: December 31, 2022 S
$ EXPENSES
2024 139,595 Salaries and employee benefits 628,392 536,183 1,164,575
295 40 335
2025 101,500 Board expenses
Professional fees 66,529 13,026 79,555
2026 101,000 Data processing 63,338 21,527 84,865
342,095 Travel 24,632 68,962 93,594
Communication 32,672 28,391 61,063
> LEASE COMMITMENTS Office 16,622 8,374 24,996
The future minimum annual lease payments (excluding HST) are as follows: Office lease, taxes and maintenance 63,344 31,673 95,017
2024 102,744 Insurance 4. 600 2,300 6,900
2025 104,499 TRUST'S EXPENSES 900,424 710,476 1,610,900
2026 106,108
2027 106,896
2028 89,765

510,012
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISKS

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation that is entered
into with the Trust. The risk of default on transactions in listed securities is unlikely, as the trade will fail if either party
to the transaction does not meet its obligation. The Trust also has credit risk to the extent that licensees and permi-
ttees receivables are not collectible. The Trust manages this risk by closely monitoring the outstanding balances for
payment. This risk has not changed from the prior year.

CURRENCY RISK

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Trust is exposed to currency risk arising from the possibility that changes in
foreign exchange rates will affect the value of its foreign currency investments. This risk has not changed from the
prior year.

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Trust is exposed to interest rate risk arising from the possibility that changes in
interest rates will affect the value of fixed income denominated investments (Note 2). This risk has hot changed from
the prior year.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Trust encounters difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities. Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of operational liquidity requirements, the Trust will not have
sufficient funds to settle a transaction on the due date; will be forced to sell financial assets at a value, which is less
than what they are worth; or may be unable to settle or recover a financial asset. Liquidity risk arises from the Trust's
accounts payable and accrued liabilities and due to Governments. This risk has not changed from the prior year.

MARKET RISK

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect the fair value of financial instru-
ments. It arises when the Trust invests in interest-sensitive investments such as bonds and other fixed income invest-
ments.

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign currencies.

The Trust invests in the units of pooled funds, which in turn invest in a diversified portfolio of assets. While the under-
lying investments of the pooled funds are susceptible to both currency and interest rate risk, the risk to the Trust is
indirect in nature. Given the Trust is not directly holding any investments denominated in foreign currency or any
interest-sensitive securities, the Trust has no direct exposure to currency or interest rate risk.

Other price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices,
other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk, whether those changes are caused by factors specific
to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in a
market. This risk has not changed from the prior year.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholder of The Ontario Aggregate Resources Corporation:

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of The Ontario Aggregate Resources Corporation (the “Corporation”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2023, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Corporation as at December 31, 2023 in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for private enterprises.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Corporation in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

OTHER INFORMATION

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information, other than
the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, included in the 2023 Annual Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

The 2023 Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of the auditor's report. If, based on
the work we will perform on this other information, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact to those charged with governance.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Corporation’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Corporation or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Corporation’s financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report Balance Sheet

(continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional A _ | 3 s December 31
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: J ;

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit

ASSET

evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting Cash 1 1
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design Share capital
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of Authorized and issued, T common share 1 1

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. Retained earnings _ .

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of The accompanying note is an integral part of these financial statements

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Corporation’s ability

to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are On behalf of the Board:
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future

events or conditions may cause the Corporation to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
Director Director

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Lo cAvnss e

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
Oakville, Ontario

April 17, 2024
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!  The Ontario !  Audits and Revoked Status

Aggregates
Production Reporting - Audit Program
Reso u rces TOARC, on behalf of the Trust, initiated an audit program in 2000 to monitor the

completeness and accuracy of production reports submitted by licensees and permittees.

O The program is designed to educate licence and permit holders with respect to their
o r po ratl O n obligations for record keeping under the Aggregate Resources Act in addition to assuring

that aggregate production is being reported properly.
[} [}
N otes to FI n a n C I a I Since the inception of the program, TOARC has audited 1,436 clients covering 3,826 licences
and permits resulting in an additional $1,744,669 of net aggregate resource fees collected.
S ta te I I l e nts Revoked Licences and Permits

Under Subsection (v) (i) of the Trust Indenture, TOARC has the responsibility for “the
rehabilitation of land for which a Licence or Permit has been revoked and for which final
rehabilitation has not been completed”. Since inception of the Trust, 118 licences and 277
permits have been revoked. In the case of licences, 116 have been rehabilitated or the files
1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES have been closed for other reasons. In the case of permits, 275 have been rehabilitated or
closed for other reasons. To date the Trust has expended $1,541,461 in net direct costs for
FORMATION AND NATURE OF CORPORATION rehabilitation of revoked sites.

The Ontario Aggregate Resources Corporation [the "Corporation"] was incorporated on February
20, 1997. The Corporation's sole shareholder is the Ontario Stone, Sand & Gravel Association [the
"OSSCA"] (formerly The Aggregate Producers' Association of Ontario [the "APAQ"]), a not-for-profit
organization. The Corporation's sole purpose is to act as Trustee of the Aggregate Resources Trust
[the "Trust"]. On June 27, 1997, the Corporation and Her Majesty the Queen in Right of the Province
of Ontario [the "Crown"], as represented by the Minister of Natural Resources [the "Minister"], entered
into a Trust Indenture, appointing the Corporation as Trustee of the Trust.

For the year ended December 31, 2023

In accordance with the Indenture Agreement, the Corporation manages the administrative
expenses as Trustee of the Trust which consists of three funds: the Aggregate Resources Fund, the
Rehabilitation Fund and the Abandoned Pits and Quarries Rehabilitation Fund.

The Trust's assets managed by the Corporation, amounting to approximately $19.2 million, are not
included in the accompanying balance sheet. The beneficial owner of the Trust's assets is the Crown.

The financial statements do not include an income statement or statement of cash flows as there is
no activity recorded in the Corporation as all fees or costs are absorbed by the related Trust.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING o I A ) t
The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance with Canadian ‘ PrOfeSS I O n a SS I S a n Ce

accounting standards for private enterprises.

Banking Institution Auditors

Scotiabank® BDO Canada LLP

Investment Advisors Legal Counsel

CBW Financial Group Blakes, Cassels & Graydon LLP
Investment Managers Shareholder

Burgundy Asset Management Ltd. Ontario Stone, Sand & Gravel Association

Mawer Investment Management Ltd.
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Ministry of Health

Office of the Deputy Premier
and Minister of Health

777 Bay Street, 5" Floor
Toronto ON M7A 1N3
Telephone: 416-327-4300
www.ontario.ca/health

May 30, 2024

Colin Best

Ministére de la Santé

Bureau du vice-premier ministre
et ministre de la Santé

777, rue Bay, 5° étage
Toronto ON M7A 1N3
Téléphone: 416-327-4300
www.ontario.ca/sante

President and Councillor for the Region of Halton
Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO)
801 — 200 University Avenue

Toronto ON M5H 3C6
amopresident@amo.on.ca

Dear Mr. Best:

A

“Narma?
Ontario

| wanted to take a moment to address a concern raised by some municipalities arising from
the Auditor General’s recommendations about Ontario’s public health laboratories.

There are thousands of residents across rural Ontario that get their well water tested.

Growing up, | have relied on well water and know the importance of testing.

As | have said in the legislature multiple times, we have not made any changes to the
testing of private drinking water samples. These services continue to be performed at Public

Health Ontario’s laboratory sites, free of charge. That will not change.

The Ministry of Health and Public Health Ontario will continue to work together to strengthen
the provincial public health laboratory network.

Sincerely,

Sylvia Jones

Deputy Premier and Minister of Health
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Ministry of Natural Resources Ministére des Richesses Naturelles

Resource Development Section Section du développement des ressources

Development and Hazard Policy Branch  Direction general de | ’elaboration et des H
Policy Division politiques sur les risqué 0 n ta rl o
300 Water Street Division de I'élaboration des politiques

Peterborough, ON K9J 3C7 300, rue Water

Peterborough (Ontario) K9J 3C7

RE: Streamlining of approvals under the Aggregate Resources Act and
supporting policy

Greetings,

Further to my letter dated May 29, 2023, | am writing to inform you that a decision
notice has been posted regarding the “Proposed changes to the Aggregate Resources
Act, Ontario Regulation 244/97 to expand self-filing activities and a new policy regarding
amendments to existing aggregate approvals” (ERO #019-6767).

The Ministry of Natural Resources has made changes under the Aggregate Resources
Act to expand the list of small or routine site plan changes to an existing pit or quarry
that can be self-filed (subject to conditions). The ministry has also implemented a new
policy for amending an existing aggregate licence, permit or site plan where approval by
the ministry is required.

On August 18, 2023, Ontario Regulation 244/97 was amended to add additional site
plan changes that can be made without ministry approval when certain conditions and
eligibility criteria are met. For a complete list of these changes, conditions and eligibility
criteria, please refer to section 7.2 of the regulation, which can be viewed at:
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/970244

In addition, the ministry has introduced a new amendment policy that clarifies the
requirements and approach to public notification and consultation, as well as provides
direction on the requirements when applying for an amendment, and guides ministry
decision-making for amendment applications (including what constitutes significant and
non-significant amendments). Effective immediately, this policy replaces 14 existing
aggregate policies and procedures. For a complete list, please refer to the decision
notice.

To view the complete details of this decision, please click on the link above or visit the
Environmental Registry of Ontario at ero.ontario.ca and search for ERO number 019-
6767.

If you have any questions regarding these changes, please contact us by email at
aggregates@ontario.ca.

Sincerely,

Jennifer Keyes,
Director, Development and Hazard Policy Branch
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:L('Callander
31 May 2024

Premier Doug Ford premier@ontario.ca

RE: Urging the Government to Promptly Resume Assessment Cycle

Please be advised that the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Callander
passed the following resolution at its Regular Meeting of Council held Tuesday, May 28,
2024.

Resolution No. 2024/05/184:

7.4(c) WHEREAS the assessment cycle is an essential process for maintaining the
fairness and predictability of property taxes in our province;

AND WHEREAS the pause in the reassessment cycle has created uncertainty
and instability in property taxation, impacting both residential and commercial
property owners;

AND WHEREAS the government has delayed an assessment update again in
2024, resulting in Ontario’s municipalities continuing to calculate property taxes
using 2016 property values;

AND WHEREAS both current and outdated assessments are inaccurate,
increase volatility, and are not transparent;

AND WHEREAS frequent and accurate reassessments are necessary to
stabilize property taxes and provide predictability for property owners, residents,
and businesses alike;

AND WHEREAS the staff at the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation
would benefit from further skills enhancement and training in assessments,
recognizing the importance of ensuring accurate evaluations for 100% of our
municipality;

AND WHEREAS the Government has announced a review of the property
assessment and taxation system with a focus on fairness, equity, and economic
competitiveness, and therefore further deferring new property assessment;


mailto:premier@ontario.ca

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of
Callander hereby calls upon the Premier to promptly resume the assessment
cycle to ensure the stability and predictability of property taxes while the
Government conducts its review of the property assessment and taxation
system, or respond with an alternative method for every municipality in Ontario
to achieve fair taxation;

AND THAT all Municipalities in Ontario and their constituents are encouraged to
apply pressure to the Premier, daily, weekly, and monthly, to resolve the situation
before it causes undo stress to everyone in the Municipality;

AND THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Premier, the relevant
provincial authorities, the Association of Municipality in Ontario, the Rural Ontario
Municipalities Association, the Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities, the
Municipal Property Assessment Corporation, and all municipalities in Ontario for
their consideration, to make proper changes as quickly and efficiently as
possible.

Thank you,

Cindy Pigeau
Municipal Clerk

Copy to: Association of Municipalities of Ontario
Rural Ontario Municipalities Association
Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities
Municipal Property Assessment Corporation
All Ontario Municipalities
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THE CORPORATION OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF MATTAWAN

DATE June 13, 2024 Resolution No. 2024 - Q)&
MOVED BY Councillor LemaRr
SECONDED BY Councillor LAUAA

BE IT RESOLVED that the Corporation of the Municipality of Mattawan, supports Resolution
No. 2024/05/184 received from the Municipality of Callander, which calls on Premier Doug
Ford to promptly resume the assessment cycle to ensure the stability and predictability of
property taxes while the Ontario Government conducts its review of the property assessment and
taxation system, or responds with an alternative method for every municipality in Ontario to
achieve fair taxation.

CARRIED Mayor Peter Murphy

DIVISION VOTE

NAME OF MEMBER OF COUNCIL YEAS NAYS

Councillor Bell

Councillor Edwards

Councillor Lahaye

Councillor Lemaire
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31 May 2024

Premier Doug Ford premier@ontario.ca

RE: Urging the Government to Promptly Resume Assessment Cycle

Please be advised that the Council of the Corporation of the Municipality of Callander
passed the following resolution at its Regular Meeting of Council held Tuesday, May 28,
2024.

Resolution No. 2024/05/184:

7.4(c) WHEREAS the assessment cycle is an essential process for maintaining the
fairness and predictability of property taxes in our province;

AND WHEREAS the pause in the reassessment cycle has created uncertainty
and instability in property taxation, impacting both residential and commercial
property owners;

AND WHEREAS the government has delayed an assessment update again in
2024, resulting in Ontario’s municipalities continuing to calculate property taxes
using 2016 property values;

AND WHEREAS both current and outdated assessments are inaccurate,
increase volatility, and are not transparent;

AND WHEREAS frequent and accurate reassessments are necessary to
stabilize property taxes and provide predictability for property owners, residents,
and businesses alike;

AND WHEREAS the staff at the Municipal Property Assessment Corporation
would benefit from further skilis enhancement and training in assessments,
recognizing the importance of ensuring accurate evaluations for 100% of our
municipality;

AND WHEREAS the Government has announced a review of the property
assessment and taxation system with a focus on fairness, equity, and economic
competitiveness, and therefore further deferring new property assessment;



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Municipality of
Callander hereby calls upon the Premier to promptly resume the assessment
cycle to ensure the stability and predictability of property taxes while the
Government conducts its review of the property assessment and taxation
system, or respond with an alternative method for every municipality in Ontario
to achieve fair taxation;

AND THAT all Municipalities in Ontario and their constituents are encouraged to
apply pressure to the Premier, daily, weekly, and monthly, to resolve the situation
before it causes undo stress to everyone in the Municipality;

AND THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Premier, the relevant
provincial authorities, the Association of Municipality in Ontario, the Rural Ontario
Municipalities Association, the Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities, the
Municipal Property Assessment Corporation, and all municipalities in Ontario for
their consideration, to make proper changes as quickly and efficiently as
possible.

Thank you,

Cindy Pigeau
Municipal Clerk

Copy to: Association of Municipalities of Ontario
Rural Ontario Municipalities Association
Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities
Municipal Property Assessment Corporation
All Ontario Municipalities



Municipality of Tweed Council Meeting
Council Meeting

_.Resolution No. ngﬂ

fitle: Councillor P. Valiquette
Date: Tuesday, April 23, 2024
Moved by P. Valiquette
Seconded by J. Palmateer

WHEREAS it is apparent that the Ontario Government has overlooked the needs of small rural Ontario;

AND WHEREAS Ontario’s small rural municipalities face insurmountable challenges to fund both
upfront investments and ongoing maintenance of their capital assets including roads, bridges, water/
wastewater and municipally owned buildings including recreational facilities, libraries and other tangible
capital assets;

AND WHEREAS small rural Ontario’s operating needs consume the majority of property tax revenue
sources;

AND WHEREAS small rural municipalities (of 10,000 people or less) are facing monumental
infrastructure deficits that cannot be adequately addressed through property tax revenue alone:

~AND WHEREAS in 2015 the provincial government moved to standardized billing for all non-contract
J.P.P. (5.1) locations;
AND WHEREAS the Ontario Government has committed $9.1 billion to Toronto alone to assist with
operating deficits and the repatriation of the Don Valley and Gardner Expressway; and $534 million to
Ottawa for the repatriation of Hwy 174;
AND WHEREAS the annual cost of the Ontario Provincial Police, Municipal Policing Bureau for small
rural non-contract (5.1) municipalities is approximately $428 million;
AND WHEREAS this annual cost is significantly less than the repatriation costs of the Gardiner
Express Way, the Don Valley Parkway and Highway 174 (Ottawa Region) but provides a greater
impact to the residents of the Province overall;
AND WHEREAS this will afford relief to small rural municipalities for both infrastructure and operating
needs while having a minimal impact on the provincial budget;
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT The Municipality of Tweed call on the Ontario
Government to immediately implement sustainable funding for small rural municipalities by reabsorbing
the cost of the Ontario Provincial Police Force back into the provincial budget with no cost recovery to
municipalities;
AND FURTHER, that Council direct staff to circulate this resolution to Premier Doug Ford
(premier@ontario.ca), Minister of Solicitor General, Minister of Finance, and to the Association of
Municipalities of Ontario (amo@amo.on.ca) and all Municipalities in Ontario.

po—
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i.fs? & BRUDENELL, LYNDOCH AND RAGLAN
 BRUDENELL| [-I.'I"I';IDWH i 42 Burnt Bridge Road, PO Box 40
R VG (\ BT Palmer Rapids, Ontario K0J 2E0

TEL: (613) 7568-2061 - FAX: (613) 758-2235

June 6, 2024

The Honourable Paul Calandra,
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing

Dear Hon. Calandra,
Re: Jurisdiction of Ontario’s Ombudsman

Please be advised that at their last Regular Meeting of Council on Wednesday June 5, 2024, the
Council for the Corporation of the Township of Brudenell, Lyndoch and Raglan supported the
following resolution:

Resolution # 2024-06-05-08
Moved By: Councillor Kauffeldt
Seconded by: Councillor Banks

“Be It resolved that the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Brudenell, Lyndoch and
Raglan hereby supports the request from the City of Peterborough that the Honourable Paul
Calandra, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing be requested to introduce a Bill to amend
the Ombudsmen Act.

And further that Council directs staff to provide a copy of this resolution to the Honourable Paul
Calandra, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing; the Honourable John Yakabuski, Member of

Provincial Parliament for Renfrew Nipissing Pembroke; the Association of Municlpalities of
Ontario; and all Ontario Municipalities.”

CARRIED.

Sincerel

Tammy Thompson
Deputy Clerk



Pel:erl)oroug 500 George Street North, Peterborough, ON, K9H 3R8

April 11, 2024

Hon. Paul Calandra

Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing
via Email:

minister.mah@ontario.ca

Re: Jurisdiction of Ontario’s Ombudsman

The following resolution, adopted by City Councll at their meeting on April 8, 2024, is
forwarded for your information and necessary action.

That Council approve the recommendations outlined in Report LSOCS24-005, dated April 2,
2024 of the Commissioner, Legislative Services, as follows:

a) That the Honourable Paul Calandra, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, be
requested to introduce a Bill to amend the Ombudsman Act to require the Ontario
Ombudsman to provide to each municipality, if requested by the municipality, sufficient
particulars of each investigation, matter or case respecting the municipality that is
referred to in each of the Ombudsman’s Annual Reports to permit the municipality to
fully understand and address the subject matter of each such investigation, matter or
case including:

i} acopy of each complaint, as applicable, redacted only to the extent of individuals’
personal information contained therein;

i) the identities of the municipality’s employees, officers and members of Council with
whom the Ombudsman was consulting in respect of the investigation, matter or
case; and

iiiy particulars of the outcome of the investigation, matter or case including the
Ombudsman'’s findings, conclusions and recommendations, if any.

b) That the City Clerk forward Council's resolutions resulting from Council's approval of
these recommendations to Minister Calandra, MPP David Smith, the Association of
Municipalities of Ontario and to the municipal Clerks of Ontario's municipalities.



Sincerely,

John Kennedy, City Clerk

cc: David Smith, MPP
Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO)
All Ontario Municipalities
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Council - Committee of the Whole

Resolution # 2024-147

Title: Resolution seeking support re: Champlain Bridge Rehabilitation
Date: June 4, 2024

Moved by: Councillor Georges Pharand

Seconded by: Councillor Roch St. Louis

WHEREAS the Champlain Bridge, located on the King’s Highway 17, west of the Town of Sturgeon Falls in the Municipality
of West Nipissing is integral infrastructure to the Trans-Canada Highway network and also serves as a connecting link to
Highway 64;

AND WHEREAS Highway 17 is a critical link in the Trans-Canada highway network, with Average Annual Daily Traffic
(AADT) of over 14,000 travelers;

AND WHEREAS the majority of the traffic is provincial traffic, using the Trans-Canada highway for transporting goods and
services in Ontario which, if shut down or restricted, would result in a 123km detour.

AND WHERERAS in 2021 an agreement was entered into between the Municipality and the Ministry of Transportation for
the design of the rehabilitation or replacement of the Champlain Bridge, which design indicated that the bridge should be
replaced at the anticipated cost of $30,000,000.

AND WHEREAS Municipality of West Nipissing does not have the financial resources to undertake a project of this
magnitude without assistance;

AND WHEREAS the Province has previously recognized the financial burden placed on municipalities, forced to maintain
Provincial Infrastructure, by removing the burden of the Don Valley Parkway, and the Gardner Express Way from the City
of Toronto;

BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED THAT the Province of Ontario recognize the Champlain Bridge as critical provincial
infrastructure and assume responsibility for its replacement;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT if the assumption of the Bridge by the province cannot be undertaken, that the Province
provide financial and operational assistance to the Municipality of West Nipissing for the undertaking of the replacement
of the Champlain Bridge;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT all northeastern municipalities served by the Highway 17 as well as the Association of
Municipalities of Ontario (AMO), Rural Ontario Municipalities Association (ROMA), Ontario Good Roads Association
(OGRA) and the Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities (FONOM) be requested to support the Municipality of West
Nipissing’s request by submitting letters of support to the Ministry of Transportation.

CARRIED
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Council - Committee of the Whole

Résolution # 2024-147

Titre: Résolution demandant de l'aide pour la réfection du pont Champlain
Date: le 4 juin 2024

Proposé par: Councillor Georges Pharand

Appuyé par: Councillor Roch St. Louis

ATTENDU QUE le pont Champlain, situé sur la route royale 17, a I'ouest de la ville de Sturgeon Falls dans la municipalité de
Nipissing Ouest, fait partie intégrante de l'infrastructure du réseau routier transcanadien et sert également de lien avec la
route 64 ;

ET ATTENDU QUE la route 17 est un lien essentiel du réseau routier transcanadien, avec un trafic journalier annuel moyen
(TJAM) de plus de 14 000 voyageurs ;

ET ATTENDU QUE la majorité du trafic est provincial, utilisant la route transcanadienne pour le transport de biens et de
services en Ontario qui, s'il est fermé ou restreint, résulterait en un détour de 123 km.

ET ATTENDU QU'en 2021, une entente a été conclue entre la municipalité et le ministere des Transports pour la
conception de la remise en état ou du remplacement du pont Champlain, laquelle a indiqué que le pont devrait étre
remplacé au co(t prévu de 30 000 000 S.

ATTENDU QUE la municipalité de Nipissing Ouest n'a pas les ressources financieres nécessaires pour entreprendre un
projet de cette envergure sans aide ;

ET ATTENDU QUE la province a déja reconnu le fardeau financier imposé aux municipalités, forcées d'entretenir
I'infrastructure provinciale, en retirant a la ville de Toronto le fardeau de la promenade Don Valley et de la voie express
Gardner ;

IL EST DONC RESOLU QUE la province de I'Ontario reconnaisse que le pont Champlain est une infrastructure provinciale
essentielle et qu'elle assume la responsabilité de son remplacement ;

IL EST EN OUTRE RESOLU QUE si la province ne peut assumer la responsabilité du pont, qu'elle fournisse une aide
financiere et opérationnelle a la municipalité de Nipissing Ouest pour le remplacement du pont Champlain ;

IL EST EN OUTRE RESOLU QUE toutes les municipalités du nord-est desservies par la route 17 ainsi que |'Association des
municipalités de I'Ontario (AMO), I'Association des municipalités rurales de I'Ontario (ROMA), I'Ontario Good Roads
Association (OGRA) et la Fédération des municipalités du Nord de I'Ontario (FONOM) soient priées d'appuyer la demande
de la municipalité de Nipissing Ouest en soumettant des lettres d'appui au ministére des Transports.

ADOPTE



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LARDER LAKE
69 Fourth Avenue, Larder Lake, ON
Phone: 705-643-2158 Fax: 705-643-2311

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY: Motion #: 12
B%homas Armstrong __ 0O Thomas Armstrong Resolution #:
atricia Hull [ Patricia Hull Date: June 11, 2024
__ O Paul Kelly lﬂ/éul Kelly
___ O Lynne Paquette __ O Lynne Paquette

WHEREAS, the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) establishes accounting standards for
the public sector which must be followed by all Ontario municipalities; And

WHEREAS, the Municipal Act, 2001 section 294.1 states that a municipality shall, for each
fiscal year, prepare annual financial statements for the municipality in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles for local governments as recommended, from time to time, by the
Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada; And

WHEREAS, PS 3280 is a new accounting standard covering asset retirement obligations (ARO)
that was approved by PSAB in March 2018; And

WHEREAS, the standard must be applied by all public sector entities who prepare their
financial statements under PSAB, including all Canadian municipalities; And

WHEREAS, many small municipalities do not have accountants or engineers on staff to
complete the ARO obligations and this major accounting change will force small municipalities
to hire consultants to complete this work and cause a significant financial burden to
municipalities;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT The Corporation of the Township of Larder
Lake hereby calls upon the province of Ontario to provide financial assistance to municipalities
to complete the ARO; And

FINALLY, THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Honourable Paul Calandra,
Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, the Association of Municipal Clerks and Treasurers

Recorded vote requested: [ I declare this motion
For | Against O Carried
Tom Armstrong O Lost / Defeated
Patricia Hull O Deferred to: (enter date)
Paul Kelly Because:
Lynne Paquette O Referred to: (enter body)
Patty Quinn Expected response: (enter date)
Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest* Chair:

*Disclosed his/her (their) interest(s), abstained from discussion and did not vote on this question.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF LARDER LAKE
69 Fourth Avenue, Larder Lake, ON
Phone: 705-643-2158 Fax: 705-643-2311

MOVED BY: SECONDED BY: Motion #: 13
__ O Thomas Armstrong __ 0O Thomas Armstrong Resolution #:
_ O Patricia Hull __ O Patricia Hull Date: June 11, 2024
__ 0O Paul Kelly ___ O Paul Kelly
___ O Lynne Paquette __ O Lynne Paquette

of Ontario (AMCTO), the Timiskaming Municipal Association (TMA), the Federation of
Ontario Municipalities (FONOM), and all municipalities within the District of Timiskaming.

Recorded vote requested: [ I declare this motion
For | Against I Carried
Tom Armstrong O Lost / Defeated
Patricia Hull v O Deferred to: (enter date)
Paul Kelly L/ Because:
Lynne Paquette Y/ [ Referred to: (enter body)
Patty Quinn ; Expected response: (enter date)
Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest* Chair:‘

*Disclosed his/her (their) interest(s), abstained from discussion and did not vote on this question.



THE CORPORATION OF THE

TOWN OF COBALT

June 26, 2024

The Corporation of the Township of Harley
903303 Hanbury Rd
New Liskeard, ON P0J 1P0

Please be advised that at the Regular Meeting of Council on June 25, 2024, the Town of Cobalt adopted the following
resolution:

RESOLUTION No. 2024-125
MOVED BY: Councillor Wilcox
SECONDED BY: Councillor Starchuk

WHEREAS the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) establishes accounting standards for the public sector which
must be followed by all Ontario municipalities;

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act, 2001, section 294.1 states that a municipality shall, for each fiscal year, prepare
annual financial statements for the municipality in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles for local
governments as recommended, from time to time, by the Public Sector Accounting Board of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada;

AND WHEREAS PS3280 is a new accounting standard covering asset retirement obligations (ARO) that was approved
by PSAB in March 2018;

AND WHEREAS the standard must be applied by all public sector entities who prepare their financial statements under
PSAB, including all Canadian municipalities;

AND WHEREAS many small municipalities do not have accountants or engineers on staff to complete the ARO
obligations and this major accounting changes will force small municipalities to hire consultants to complete this work and
cause a significant financial burden to municipalities;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Cobalt supports the
resolutions from the Township of Harley, Coleman Township, Township of Larder Lake,

Township of Casey, Township of Hudson & Township of Kerns and hereby calls upon the province of Ontario to provide
financial assistance to municipalities to complete the ARO;

AND FURTHER THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to the Honourable Paul Calandra, Minister of Municipal
Affairs and Housing, the Association of Municipal Clerks and Treasurers of Ontario (AMCTO), the Timiskaming Municipal
Association (TMA), the Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities (FONOM) and all municipalities within the District of
Timiskaming.

CARRIED
Kind Regards,

Steven Dalley
Town Manager, Clerk/Treasurer
Email: sdalley@cobalt.ca

18 Silver Street, Box 70, Cobalt ON, Canada P0J 1CO
Tel: 705-679-8877 « Fax: 705-679-5050 « Email: cobalt@cobalt.ca « www.cobalt.ca
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THE

mlsumn Ple_E FEATURES Brae Ridge Farm & Sanctuary

Nestled in the serene landscape of Puslinch, Brae Ridge Farm & Sanctuary stands

as a testament to the transformative power of love for animals and nature.
Founded six years ago, this sanctuary emerged from a former city dweller's
enchantment with alpacas, evolving into a haven for various rescued animals,

including alpacas, horses, Indian Runner ducks, and a mini pig.
Led by two remarkable women, aged 56 and 76, Brae Ridge Farm & Sanctuary is a

sanctuary not only for its animal residents but also for anyone seeking solace
amidst nature's embrace. Guided by the ethos of "simply better for you, them, and
us," the farm prioritizes simplicity and sustainability, offering educational and

Beyond its role as a sanctuary, Brae Ridge Farm & Sanctuary actively supports its
community by practicing minimal processing and sustainable techniques in crafting
wearables, sweeteners, and home products. Whether it's the therapeutic practice
of Yoga with Alpacas on weekend mornings or private sessions tailored for team
building and special events, every interaction is infused with the essence of
harmony and care. Private farm visits and tours are offered every day at 11:00 am.
or 4:00 p.m. throughout the year. All visits are reservation only.
penny@braeridgefarm.com ‘T:; braeridgefarm.com e 226-924-4065

7404 Wellington Rd 34, Puslinch, ON, NOB 200 | $19-763-1226 | www punlinch.ca § Facebook ca/TownshipofPuslineh Twitter. com/TwpPuslinthON




THE

HJSLINCH PROF“_E FEATURES Morriston Veterinary Clinic

Morriston Veterinary Clinic, established by Dr. Abraham Aho in 2020, is an animal
clinic dedicated to providing top-notch veterinary care in Puslinch. The clinic
offers a comprehensive range of services, including annual pet wellness exams,
vaccinations, parasite control, medical diagnostics and treatment, soft tissue and
limited orthopedic surgeries, as well as dental care. Dr. Aho, who resides in
Puslinch with his family with numerous pets himself, has created a practice that
prides itself on its community-oriented approach and a team committed to the

health and well-being of pets.

Dr. Aho’s journey to opening Morriston Veterinary Clinic is deeply rooted in his
small-town upbringing, which instilled in him a strong sense of community and the
importance of giving back. Morriston Veterinary Clinic plays a vital role in the
Puslinch community, reinforcing the importance of supporting local businesses.
The clinic’s presence not only ensures that residents have access to high-quality
veterinary care but also contributes to the Township's vibrant and welcoming
atmosphere. Local businesses like Morriston Veterinary Clinic are the backbone of

Puslinch, enhancing its reputation and making it a desirable place to live.

® contact@morristonvetclinic.com

@ morristonvetclinic.com

e 519-803-9704

7404 Wellington Rd 34, Puslinch, ON, NOB 20 | 519-763-1226 | www.puslinch.ca § Facebook.ca/TownshipofPuslinch 3 Twitter.com/TwpPuslinchON




519-837-0558 | info@sunrise-therapeutic.ca
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7404 Wellington Rd. 34
Guelph ON N1H 6H9

Dear Friends,
Thank you very much for your donation to Sunrise.

Your contribution will support Sunrise's therapeutic riding program for children and adults with special
needs.

More than 100 client riders visit Sunrise each week for therapy lessons taught by Canadian Certified
instructors.

At Sunrise, riders experience a sense of belonging, empowerment and achievement - as well as many
physical and cognitive benefits. The human-animal bond is a powerful motivator, enabling riders to reach

their full potential.

Thank you for partnering with us to make a positive impact in the lives of those with special needs in our
community.

ne O'Brien

“Executive Director

DONATION RECORDS RECEIPT
(not an official tax receipt)

‘,‘{-.‘SRJ_S-‘_
Date: 06/03/2024
h m._:
Sunrise Therapeutic Riding & Learning Centre . . .
6920 Concession 1, RR#2, Puslinch ON NOB 2J0 Date donation received: 05/01/2024
519-837-0558 | info@sunrise-therapeutic.ca Amount of gift: $3,000.00

sunrise-therapeutic.ca
Charitable registration #: 11920 6027 RR0001

Donated by:

Township of Puslinch
7404 Wellington Rd. 34
Guelph ON N1H 6H9

Authorized signature



Ministry of Ministére des

Municipal Affairs and Housing Affaires municipales et du Logement
u
Planning Policy Branch Direction des politiques d'aménagement o n ta r I o
777 Bay Street, 13" Floor 777, rue Bay, 13° étage
Toronto ON M5G 2E5 Toronto ON M5G 2E5
Tel. 416-585-6014 Tél. 416-585-6014
Date: July 3, 2024
Subject: Planning Act and Development Charges Act Regulations related to the

Cutting Red Tape to Build More Homes Act, 2024 (Bill 185)

| am writing to provide an update on regulations under the Planning Act and
Development Charges Act, 1997 related to the Cutting Red Tape to Build More Homes
Act, 2024.

The Planning Act and Development Charges Act, 1997 regulations came into effect on
July 1, 2024.

Changes made include:

e modernizing public notice requirements and providing municipalities with the
ability to provide notice in respect of the above matters on a municipal website if
there is no local print newspaper available

e consequential amendments to remove requirements for certain statements
regarding appeal rights to be included in public notices

e consequential changes to ensure notice is provided to nearby public hospitals
and airports

e housekeeping amendments for the removal of spent provisions related to DC
exemptions for additional residential units and the prescribed amount of time for
the DC freeze period

You can view copies of the amending Planning Act regulations on Ontario’s e-Laws
website:
e Ontario Regulation 285/24 — amending Ontario Regulation 543/06 “Official Plans
and Plan Amendments”
e Ontario Requlation 286/24 — amending Ontario Regulation 545/06 “Zoning By-
Laws, Holding By-Laws and Interim Control By-Laws”
e Ontario Requlation 287/24 — amending Ontario Regulation 544/06 “Plans of
Subdivision”
e Ontario Requlation 288/24 — amending Ontario Regulation 197/96 “Consent
Applications”
e Ontario Requlation 289/24 — amending Ontario Regulation 200/96 “Minor
Variance Applications”



https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/r24285
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/r24286
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/r24287
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/r24288
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/r24289

e Ontario Regulation 290/24 — amending Ontario Regulation 509/20 — “Community
Benefits Charges and Parkland”

e Ontario Regulation 291/24 — amending Ontario Regulation 549/06 “Prescribed
Time Period — Subsections 51 (52.4) of the Act”

You can view copies of the amending Development Charges Act, 1997 regulations on
Ontario’s e-Laws website:
e Ontario Regulation 279/24 — amending Ontario Regulation 82/98 — “General’

If you have any questions about the changes to the land use planning and appeal
system, including the Planning Act regulatory changes, please email
PlanningConsultation@ontario.ca.

If you have any questions about the changes to the Development Charges Act, 1997,
including the regulatory changes related to public notice requirements under the Act and
other matters, please email MEPB@ontario.ca.

Sincerely,

Laura Evangelista, Director
Provincial Policy Branch
Ministry of Municipal Affairs

Ruchi Parkash, Director
Municipal Finance Policy Branch
Ministry of Municipal Affairs


https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/r24290
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/r24291
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/regulation/r24279
mailto:PlanningConsultation@ontario.ca
mailto:MFPB@ontario.ca

June 25th, 2024.

To: Mayor James Seeley
Councillor Sara Bailey
Councillor Jessica Goyda
Councillor Russell Hurst
Councillor John Sepulis,
County Councillor Matthew Bulmer

From: Marjorie Clark

Re: Killean School bell

Mayor Seeley & Councillors:

Puslinch became a township in 1850. When constituted, it
amalgamated twelve communities or school sections, as they were called,
within its borders. In 2025, the township will celebrate its 175th
anniversary. Would Council consider the Killean school bell as the
centrepiece of a commemorative cairn, to mark our roots for this
occasion?

Prior to the pandemic, the Puslinch Historical Society endeavoured
to launch this project but soon found that the Society lacked manpower,
knowledge, and expertise and sufficient funds to accomplish the job. The
group was forced to abandon the plan. Therefore, I am writing as a
private citizen to ask if Council would consider this undertaking.

The Killean bell is currently stored on the property of Kevin
Whitcombe, who would be pleased to donate it. It may require some
alteration. What I envision is a stone cairn similar to that erected in the
Historic Corner Block in Morriston. Although a plaque should identify the
bell as from Killean School, it ought to state that it symbolizes all 12 of



the school sections (communities), which formed Puslinch Township in
1850. For confirmation of these facts, please consult Annals of Puslinch
1850-1950.

Perhaps an appropriate spot to place the cairn would be on the
Community Centre Grounds, maybe on the east side of the library?

Through all of these 175 years, Puslinch has been a wonderful place
to live and to grow. We should take every opportunity to celebrate our
successes, particularly in this turbulent era. 175 years of life in Puslinch
Township truly merits celebration.

Would you, Mayor Seeley and you, Councillors, favour this project to
commemorate the township’s 175th anniversary?

Sincerely yours,
Marjorie Clark

cc. Courtenay Hoytfox, Acting CAO



REPORT FIR-2024-004

PUSL}BNCH
TO: Mayor and Members of Council
PREPARED BY: Courtenay Hoytfox, Interim CAO
Jamie MacNeil, Fire Chief
PRESENTED BY: Courtenay Hoytfox, Interim CAO
MEETING DATE: July 10, 2024
SUBJECT: Purchase of a Replacement of Pump 31 Truck - Update

File: FI8PUM

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Report FIR-2024-004 entitled Purchase of a Replacement of Pump 31 Truck — Update be
received; and

That Council authorize the replacement of Pump 31 Truck through the Co-operative
Purchasing Program through the Local Authority Services (LAS) Canoe Procurement Group of
Canada for a City View Specialty Vehicles Inc./Rosenbauer America Stock Pumper Truck as
outlined in Report FIR-2024-004; and

That Council authorizes the pre-payment of ___ % for the Replacement of Pump 31 Truck.

Purpose
The purpose of this report is to update Council and seek Council’s direction in relation to

Council’s direction from the February 28, 2024 Council meeting regarding the replacement of
Puslinch Fire and Rescue Service (PFRS) Pump 31 Truck.

Background
At Council’s February 28, 2024 meeting, Council resolved as follows:

Resolution No. 2024-070: Moved by Councillor Sepulis and
Seconded by Councillor Goyda




REPORT NO. FIR-2024-004
Page 2 of 4

That Report FIR-2024-001 entitled Award for the purchase of a Replacement of
Pump 31 Truck be received; and

That Council authorize additional funding required of $200K from the 2025 forecasted budget
for the Replacement of Pump 31 Truck to be funded by the Asset Management Discretionary
Reserve; and

That Council authorize the replacement of Pump 31 Truck through the Co-operative Purchasing
Program through the Local Authority Services (LAS) Canoe Procurement Group of Canada; and

That Council authorizes the purchase through Canoe for a purpose-built Maxi Metal
of Quebec, Canada, Saber Pumper truck from Commercial Emergency Equipment Co. of Delta,
BC; and

That Council authorizes the pre-payment option for the Replacement of Pump 31 Truck subject
to the Township being satisfied with the terms and conditions of this option.
CARRIED

Staff underwent a thorough review of the terms and conditions of the pre-payment option.
Ultimately, the conditions associated with the pre-payment option through Commercial
Emergency Equipment Co. were not satisfactory to the Township and therefore, staff are not
able to recommend proceeding with the purchase of the Replacement of Pump 31 Truck as
reported in the February 28, 2024 staff report.

As noted in the February 28, 2024 staff report, the Township’s current procurement policy
authorizes the Chief Administrative Officer to participate in cooperative purchasing
arrangements with other levels of government, municipalities, local boards and public agencies
where Council has approved such participation. The Canoe Procurement Group of Canada
program through LAS is a cooperative purchasing arrangement in accordance with the
Township’s procurement policy. Staff investigated additional opportunities for a purchase
through the LAS Canoe Procurement Group of Canada.

Rosenbauer America is a participating vendor with the Canoe Procurement Group of Canada. A
stock pumper from Rosenbauer America, City View Specialty Vehicles (“City View”), including
the applicable Canoe discount of 15% is $968,110.00. Fire Chief MacNeil has indicated that this
stock truck meets the needs of the Township. This option does not include a performance bond,
however there are flexible pre-payment options to mitigate risks associated with pre-paying a
portion of the cost. Pre-payment amounts start at 10% prepay requirement after a purchase
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order with options to pay up to 25%, 50%, 75% or 100% upfront. These various options each
come with a corresponding discount as outlined below:

- 25% pre-payment - $5,720 discount

- 50% pre-payment - $21,320 discount

- 75% pre-payment - $33,020 discount

- 100% pre-payment - $41,990 discount

The benefit to the payment options is that the Township could choose to minimize any risks by
only paying 10% of the purchase price which is required up front after a purchase order and the
balance upon delivery. Conversely, if the Township would prefer to take on some risk in
exchange for a discount, there is the option to pre-pay up to the entire amount and obtain a
maximum discount of approximately $42,000.00.

Staff recommend that the Township take advantage of either the 50% or 75% pre-payment
option to receive approximately $21k-$33k in additional discounts. Staff do not recommend
paying the full amount as this option does not include a performance bond (this would be at an
additional cost). The total cost of the truck with the additional 50% pre-payment discount is
approximately $946,790.00 plus HST. Alternatively, the total cost of the truck with the
additional 75% pre-payment discount is approximately $935,090.00 plus HST.

Council approved a total budget of $1,150,000 to purchase a replacement pump 31 truck. The
option for a stock truck from City View represents a reduction in cost of approximately
$203,210 or $214,910 excluding the non-refundable portion of HST with a 50% or 75% pre-
payment option respectively.

Financial Implications

As noted throughout the report.

Applicable Legislation and Requirements

Work for the above project will be procured in accordance with the Township’s Purchasing and
Procurement of Goods and Services By-law 60/08.

Engagement Opportunities

Not applicable

Attachments
None



REPORT NO. FIR-2024-004
Page 4 of 4

Respectfully submitted, Reviewed by:
Jamie MacNeil Courtenay Hoytfox
Fire Chief Interim CAO



REPORT FIN-2024-015

PUSLINCH

TO: Mayor and Members of Council

PREPARED BY: Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer

PRESENTED BY: Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer

MEETING DATE: July 10, 2024

SUBJECT: Canada Community-Building Fund — Execution of Municipal Funding
Agreement
File No. LO4 ASS

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Report FIN-2024-015 entitled Canada Community-Building Fund - Execution of
Municipal Funding Agreement be received; and

That Council gives 3 readings to By-law No. 2024-044 being a By-law authorizing the entering
into a Municipal Funding Agreement with the Association of Municipalities of Ontario in
order to participate in the Canada Community-Building Fund.

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to recommend that Council enact a By-law authorizing the
entering into a Municipal Funding Agreement (MFA) with the Association of Municipalities of
Ontario (AMO) in order to participate in the Canada Community-Building Fund.

Background

In June of 2024, AMO, along with Canada, Ontario, and the City of Toronto agreed to a 10-year
renewal of the Canada Community-Building Fund (CCBF). Through the negotiations, AMO
worked to ensure that the renewed MFA builds on the success of the CCBF in providing
predictable funding - without the need for application - to be invested into priority
infrastructure projects. The CCBF will remain largely the same, flowing crucial infrastructure
dollars to municipal governments, and supporting the growth and vitality of communities
across Ontario.
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AMO has confirmed that there are minimal changes from the previous 2014 MFA as
summarized below:

e Allocations will follow the existing model (ie. distribution on a per capita basis in
accordance with Census population counts and split 50/50 in two-tier systems).

e The same 18 categories that were eligible in the previous MFA remain eligible. The
disaster mitigation category has been renamed resilience, and the capacity-building
category has been expanded. Funds can be invested across 18 categories of projects (ie.
broadband connectivity, brownfield redevelopment, capacity-building, community
energy systems, cultural infrastructure, drinking water, fire halls, local roads and
bridges, public transit, recreational infrastructure, regional and local airports, resilience,
short-line rail, short-sea shipping, solid waste, sport infrastructure, tourism
infrastructure, and wastewater).

e Terms regarding the use, transfer, and retention of funds are unchanged.

e Asset management will continue to guide CCBF investment. The Township must
continue to develop and implement asset management systems by meeting provincial
targets as set out in Ontario Regulation 588/17 and improving asset data particularly
data describing asset conditions, costs, levels of service, and risks.

e Communications will continue to be a federal government priority (ie. installing federal
infrastructure signage, etc.).

e CCBF funds are still expected to complement (without replacing or displacing) existing
funding for municipal infrastructure.

e Wording has been revised (not content) of many sections to provide greater clarity.

New requirements related to housing have been introduced as summarized below:

e Single-tier and lower-tier municipalities with a 2021 Census population of 30,000 or
more must complete a Housing Needs Assessment by March 2025. This requirement is
not applicable to the Township.

e Housing outcomes resulting from CCBF investment will need to be reported where it
makes sense to do so.

AMO has requested that the Township sign the MFA as soon as possible in order for CCBF funds
to be distributed to the Township in August 2024. The MFA will come into effect on April 1,
2024. The term of the MFA is ten years. AMO has advised that similar to previous MFA’s, the
form and content of the MFA are not subject to negotiation and any changes - other than the
inclusion of signatures - are null and void.

Financial Implications

The confirmed allocations for the 2024 to 2028 period are outlined below and were
incorporated in the Township’s 2024 Capital Budget and Forecast:
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e 2024 - S250K
e 2025 - $260K
e 2026 - $260K
e 2027-S$271K
e 2028-S5271K

Allocations for 2024 to 2028 are based on population data from the 2021 Census. Allocations
for 2029 to 2033 will be based on population data from the 2026 Census.

The Township has typically utilized the CCBF funding for the repaving of existing paved roads
and/or rehabilitation of bridges/culverts.

Applicable Legislation and Requirements

Municipal Act, 2001

Engagement Opportunities

Not Applicable
ATTACHMENTS

Schedule A — MFA on the CCBF
Respectfully submitted:

Mary Hasan
Director of Finance/Treasurer
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MUNICIPAL FUNDING AGREEMENT
ON THE CANADA COMMUNITY-BUILDING FUND

BETWEEN:
THE ASSOCIATION OF MUNICIPALITIES OF ONTARIO
(referred to herein as “AMO”)

AND:
THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH

(a municipal corporation pursuant to the Municipal Act, 2001, referred to herein as the
“‘Recipient”)

WHEREAS the Government of Canada, the Government of Ontario, AMO, and the City of Toronto
are signatories to the Administrative Agreement on the Canada Community-Building Fund
effective April 1, 2024 (the “Administrative Agreement”), which governs the transfer and use of
the Canada Community-Building Fund (“CCBF”) in Ontario;

AND WHEREAS AMO is responsible for the administration of CCBF funding made available to
all Municipalities in Ontario — except the City of Toronto — under the Administrative Agreement,
and will therefore undertake (and require the Recipient to undertake) certain activities as set out
in this Agreement;

AND WHEREAS the Recipient wishes to enter into this Agreement to access CCBF funding;

NOW THEREFORE the Parties agree as follows:
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1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

1.1

Definitions. For the purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the
meanings ascribed to them below:

“Annual Report” means the duly completed report to be prepared and delivered to
AMO as described in Section 6.1.

“Asset Management” is a principle/practice that includes planning processes,
approaches, plans, or related documents that support an integrated lifecycle approach
to the effective stewardship of infrastructure assets to maximize benefits and
effectively manage risk.

“Canada” means the Government of Canada, as represented by the Minister of
Housing, Infrastructure and Communities.

“Canada Community-Building Fund” or “CCBF” means the program established
under section 161 of the Keeping Canada’s Economy and Jobs Growing Act, S.C.
2011, c. 24 as amended by section 233 of the Economic Action Plan 2013 Act, No. 1,
S.C. 2013, c. 33, as the Gas Tax Fund and renamed the Canada Community-Building
Fund in section 199 of Budget Implementation Act, 2021, No. 1.

“Contract” means an agreement between the Recipient and a Third Party whereby
the latter agrees to supply a product or service to an Eligible Project in return for
financial consideration.

“Eligible Expenditure” means an expenditure described as eligible in Schedule B or
deemed eligible by Canada in accordance with Section 4.2.

“Eligible Investment Category” means an investment category listed in Schedule A
or deemed eligible by Canada in accordance with Section 3.2.

“Eligible Project” means a project that fits within an Eligible Investment Category.
“Event of Default” has the meaning given to it in Section 13.1 of this Agreement.

“Funds” mean the funds made available to the Recipient through the CCBF or any
other source of funding as determined by Canada. Funds are made available pursuant
to this Agreement and includes any interest earned on the said Funds. Funds
transferred to another Municipality in accordance with Section 5.3 of this Agreement
are to be treated as Funds by the Municipality to which the Funds are transferred; and
Funds transferred to a non-municipal entity in accordance with Section 5.4 of this
Agreement shall remain as Funds under this Agreement for all purposes and the
Recipient shall continue to be bound by all provisions of this Agreement with respect
to such transferred Funds.
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“Housing Needs Assessment” or “HNA” means a report informed by data and
research describing the current and future housing needs of a Municipality or
community according to guidance provided by Canada.

“Ineligible Expenditures” means those expenditures described as ineligible in
Schedule C or deemed ineligible by Canada in accordance with Section 4.2.

“Infrastructure” means tangible capital assets that are primarily for public use or
benefit in Ontario — whether municipal or regional, and whether publicly or privately
owned.

“Lower-Tier Municipality” means a Municipality that forms part of an Upper-Tier
Municipality for municipal purposes, as defined under the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O.
2001, c. 25.

“Municipal Fiscal Year” means the period beginning January 1st of a year and
ending December 31st of the same year.

“Municipality” and “Municipalities” means every municipality as defined under the
Municipal Act, 2001, S.0O. 2001, c. 25.

“Non-Municipal Transfer By-law” means a by-law passed by Council of the
Recipient pursuant to Section 5.4 of this Agreement.

“Parties” means AMO and the Recipient.

“Prior Agreement” means the municipal funding agreement for the transfer of federal
gas tax funds entered into by AMO and the Recipient, effective April 2014 and with an
expiry date of March 31, 2024.

“Single-Tier Municipality” means a Municipality, other than an Upper-Tier
Municipality, that does not form part of an Upper-Tier Municipality for municipal
purposes, as defined under the Municipal Act, 2001, S.0O. 2001 c. 25.

“Third Party” means any person or legal entity, other than the Parties to this
Agreement, who participates in the implementation of an Eligible Project by means of
a Contract.

“Transfer By-law” means a by-law passed by Council of the Recipient pursuant to
Section 5.3 of this Agreement.

“Unspent Funds” means the amount reported as unspent by the Recipient as of
December 31, 2023 in the Recipient’s 2023 Annual Report (as defined under the Prior
Agreement).
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“Upper-Tier Municipality” means a Municipality of which two or more Lower-Tier
Municipalities form part for municipal purposes, as defined under the Municipal Act,
2001, S.0. 2001 c. 25.

Interpretations

a) “Agreement” refers to this agreement as a whole, including the cover and
execution pages and all of the schedules hereto, and all amendments made
hereto in accordance with the provisions hereof.

b) The words “herein”, “hereof” and “hereunder’ and other words of similar
import refer to this Agreement as a whole and not any particular schedule,
article, section, paragraph or other subdivision of this Agreement.

c) The term “including” or “includes” means including or includes (as
applicable) without limitation or restriction.

d) Any reference to a federal or provincial statute is to such statute and to the
regulations made pursuant to such statute as such statute and regulations may
at any time be amended or modified and in effect and to any statute or
regulations that may be passed that have the effect of supplementing or
superseding such statute or regulations.

2. TERM OF THE AGREEMENT

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

Term. Subject to any extension or termination of this Agreement or the survival of any
of the provisions of this Agreement pursuant to the provisions contained herein, this
Agreement shall come into effect as of April 1, 2024 up to and including March 31,
2034.

Review. This Agreement will be reviewed by AMO by June 30, 2027.

Amendment. This Agreement may be amended at any time in writing as agreed to
by AMO and the Recipient.

Notice. Any of the Parties may terminate this Agreement on two (2) years written
notice.

Prior Agreement. The Parties agree that the Prior Agreement, including Section 15.5
thereof, is hereby terminated. Notwithstanding the termination of the Prior Agreement,
including Section 15.5, the reporting and indemnity obligations of the Recipient
thereunder with respect to expended Funds governed by the Prior Agreement as set
forth in Sections 5, 7, 10.3, 10.4 and 10.5 of the Prior Agreement shall survive the
said termination.
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3. ELIGIBLE PROJECTS

3.1

3.2

3.3

Eligible Projects. Eligible Projects are those that fit within an Eligible Investment
Category. Eligible Investment Categories are listed in Schedule A.

Discretion of Canada. The eligibility of any investment category not listed in
Schedule A is solely at the discretion of Canada.

Recipient Fully Responsible. The Recipient is fully responsible for the completion
of each Eligible Project in accordance with Schedule A and Schedule B.

4. ELIGIBLE EXPENDITURES

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Eligible Expenditures and Ineligible Expenditures. Eligible Expenditures are
described in Schedule B. Ineligible Expenditures are described in Schedule C.

Discretion of Canada. The eligibility of any item not listed in Schedule B or Schedule
C to this Agreement is solely at the discretion of Canada.

Reasonable Access. The Recipient shall allow AMO and Canada reasonable and
timely access to all documentation, records and accounts and those of their respective
agents or Third Parties related to the receipt, deposit and use of Funds and Unspent
Funds, and any interest earned thereon, and all other relevant information and
documentation requested by AMO or Canada or their respective designated
representatives for the purposes of audit, evaluation, and ensuring compliance with
this Agreement.

Retention of Receipts. The Recipient will keep proper and accurate accounts and
records of all Eligible Projects including invoices and receipts for Eligible Expenditures
for at least six (6) years after the completion of the project.

Contracts. The Recipient will award and manage all Contracts in accordance with its
relevant policies and procedures and, if applicable, in accordance with any domestic
or international trade agreements, and all other applicable laws. The Recipient will
ensure any of its Contracts for the supply of services or materials to implement its
responsibilities under this Agreement will be awarded in a way that is transparent,
competitive, consistent with value for money principles and pursuant to its adopted
procurement policy.

5. FUNDS

5.1

Use of Funds. The Recipient acknowledges and agrees the Funds are intended for
and shall be used only for Eligible Expenditures in respect of Eligible Projects.
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5.2 Unspent Funds. Any Unspent Funds, and any interest earned thereon, will be subject
to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and will no longer be governed by the
terms and conditions of the Prior Agreement.

53 Transfer of Funds to a Municipality. Where a Recipient decides to allocate and
transfer Funds to another Municipality (the “Transferee Municipality”):

a)

b)

The allocation and transfer shall be authorized by a Transfer By-law. The
Transfer By-law shall be passed by the Recipient’s council and submitted to
AMO as soon thereafter as practicable. The Transfer By-law shall identify the
Transferee Municipality and the amount of Funds the Transferee Municipality
is to receive for the Municipal Fiscal Year(s) specified in the Transfer By-law.

The Recipient is still required to submit an Annual Report in accordance with
Section 6.1 hereof with respect to the Funds transferred.

No transfer of Funds pursuant to this Section 5.3 shall be effected unless and
until the Transferee Municipality has either (i) entered into an agreement with
AMO on substantially the same terms as this Agreement, or (ii) has executed
and delivered to AMO a written undertaking to assume all of the Recipient’s
obligations under this Agreement with respect to the Funds transferred, such
as undertaking in a form satisfactory to AMO.

5.4 Transfer of Funds to a Non-Municipal Entity. Where a Recipient decides to support
an Eligible Project undertaken by a non-municipal entity (whether a for profit, non-
governmental, or not-for profit organization):

a)

b)

The provision of such support shall be authorized by a Transfer By-law (a
“Non-Municipal Transfer By-law”). The Non-Municipal Transfer By-law shall be
passed by the Recipient’s council and submitted to AMO as soon as
practicable thereafter. The Non-Municipal Transfer By-law shall identify the
non-municipal entity, and the amount of Funds the non-municipal entity is to
receive for that Eligible Project.

The Recipient shall continue to be bound by all the provisions of this
Agreement notwithstanding any such transfer.

No transfer of Funds pursuant to this Section 5.4 shall be effected unless and
until the non-municipal entity receiving the Funds has executed and delivered
to AMO a written undertaking to assume all of the Recipient’s obligations under
this Agreement with respect to the Funds transferred, in a form exclusively
satisfactory to AMO.

5.5 Payout of Funds. Subject to Sections 5.14 and 5.15, AMO will transfer Funds twice
yearly, on or before the dates agreed upon by Canada and AMO.
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Deposit of Funds. The Recipient will deposit the Funds in:
a) An interest-bearing bank account; or
b) An investment permitted under:
i. The Recipient’s investment policy; and
ii. Provincial legislation and regulation.

Interest Earnings and Investment Gains. Interest earnings and investment gains
will be:

e Proportionately allocated to the CCBF when applicable; and
¢ Applied to Eligible Expenditures for Eligible Projects.

Funds Advanced. Funds shall be spent (in accordance with Sections 3 and 4) or
transferred (in accordance with Sections 5.3 or 5.4) within five (5) years after the end
of the year in which Funds were received. Unexpended Funds shall not be retained
beyond such five (5) year period without the documented consent of AMO. AMO
reserves the right to declare that unexpended Funds after five (5) years become a
debt to Canada which the Recipient will reimburse forthwith on demand to AMO for
transmission to Canada.

Expenditure of Funds. The Recipient shall expend all Funds by December 31, 2038.

HST. The use of Funds is based on the net amount of harmonized sales tax to be
paid by the Recipient net of any applicable tax rebates.

Limit on Canada’s Financial Commitments. The Recipient may use Funds to pay
up to one hundred percent (100%) of Eligible Expenditures of an Eligible Project.

Federal Funds. The Recipient agrees that any Funds received will be treated as
“federal funds” for the purpose of other federal infrastructure programs.

Stacking. If the Recipient is receiving federal funds under other federal infrastructure
programs in respect of an Eligible Project to which the Recipient wishes to apply
Funds, the maximum federal contribution limitation set out in any other federal
infrastructure program agreement made in respect of that Eligible Project shall
continue to apply.

Withholding Payment. AMO may, in its exclusive discretion, withhold Funds where
the Recipient is in default of compliance with any provisions of this Agreement.

Insufficient Funds Provided by Canada. Notwithstanding the provisions of Section
2, if Canada does not provide sufficient funds to continue the Funds for any Municipal
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Fiscal Year during which this Agreement is in effect, AMO may immediately terminate
this Agreement on written notice to the Recipient.

6. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

6.1

6.2

Annual Report. The Recipient shall submit a report to AMO by April 30" each year,
or as otherwise notified by AMO. The report shall be submitted in an electronic format
deemed acceptable by AMO and shall contain the information described in Schedule
D.

Project List. The Recipient shall ensure that projects are reported in advance of
construction. Information required is as noted in Section 2.3 of Schedule E.

7. ASSET MANAGEMENT

7.1

7.2

Implementation of Asset Management. The Recipient will develop and implement
an Asset Management plan, culture, and methodology in accordance with legislation
and regulation established by the Government of Ontario (e.g., O. Reg. 588/17).

Asset Data. The Recipient will continue to improve data describing the condition of,
long-term cost of, levels of service provided by, and risks associated with
infrastructure assets.

8. HOUSING NEEDS ASSESSMENT

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

Requirement. While an HNA is encouraged for all Municipalities, the Recipient must
complete a HNA if it had a population of 30,000 or more on the 2021 Census of
Canada and is a Single-Tier Municipality or a Lower-Tier Municipality.

Content of the HNA. The Recipient will prepare the HNA in accordance with the
guidance provided from time to time by Canada.

Use of HNA. The Recipient is expected to prioritize projects that support the growth
of the housing supply. The HNA is to be used by Municipalities to prioritize, where
possible, Infrastructure or capacity building projects that support increased housing
supply where it makes sense to do so.

Publication of the HNA. The Recipient will publish the HNA on its website.

HNA reporting requirements. The Recipient will send to AMO by March 31, 2025,
unless otherwise agreed upon:

a) Acopy of any HNA it is required to complete in accordance with Section 8.1;
and
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b) The URL to the published HNA on the Recipient’s website.

COMMUNICATIONS REQUIREMENTS

9.1

The Recipient will comply with all communication requirements outlined in Schedule
E.

RECORDS AND AUDIT

10.1

10.2

10.3

Accounting Principles. All accounting terms not otherwise defined herein have the
meanings assigned to them; all calculations will be made and all financial data to be
submitted will be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) in effect in Ontario. GAAP will include, without limitation, those
principles approved or recommended for local governments from time to time by the
Public Sector Accounting Board or the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada
or any successor institute, applied on a consistent basis.

Separate Records. The Recipient shall maintain separate records and
documentation for the Funds and keep all records including invoices, statements,
receipts, and vouchers in respect of Funds expended on Eligible Projects in
accordance with the Recipient’s municipal records retention by-law. Upon reasonable
notice by AMO or Canada, the Recipient shall submit all records and documentation
relating to the Funds for inspection or audit.

External Auditor. AMO or Canada may request, upon written notice to Recipient, an
audit of Eligible Project(s) or Annual Report(s). AMO shall retain an external auditor
to carry out an audit and ensure that any auditor who conducts an audit pursuant to
this Agreement or otherwise, provides a copy of the audit report to the Recipient.

INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

1.1

Insurance. The Recipient shall put in effect and maintain in full force and effect or
cause to be put into effect and maintained for the term of this Agreement all the
necessary insurance with respect to each Eligible Project, including any Eligible
Projects with respect to which the Recipient has transferred Funds pursuant to
Section 5 of this Agreement, that would be considered appropriate for a prudent
Municipality undertaking similar Eligible Projects, including, where appropriate and
without limitation, property, construction, and liability insurance, which insurance
coverage shall identify Canada and AMO as additional insureds for the purposes of
the Eligible Projects.

Certificates of Insurance. Throughout the term of this Agreement, the Recipient shall
have a valid certificate of insurance that confirms compliance with the requirements
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of Section 11.1. The Recipient shall produce such certificate of insurance on request,
including as part of any AMO or Canada audit.

AMO Not Liable. In no event shall Canada or AMO be liable for:

e Any bodily injury, death or property damages to the Recipient, its employees,
agents, or consultants or for any claim, demand or action by any Third Party
against the Recipient, its employees, agents, or consultants, arising out of or
in any way related to this Agreement; or

e Anyincidental, indirect, special, or consequential damages, or any loss of use,
revenue or profit to the Recipient, its employees, agents, or consultants arising
out of any or in any way related to this Agreement.

Recipient to Compensate Canada. The Recipient will ensure that it will not, at any
time, hold the Government of Canada, its officers, servants, employees or agents
responsible for any claims or losses of any kind that the Recipient, Third Parties or
any other person or entity may suffer in relation to any matter related to the Funds or
an Eligible Project and that the Recipient will, at all times, compensate Canada, its
officers, servants, employees and agents for any claims or losses of any kind that any
of them may suffer in relation to any matter related to CCBF funding or an Eligible
Project.

Recipient to Indemnify AMO. The Recipient hereby agrees to indemnify and hold
harmless AMO, its officers, servants, employees or agents (each of which is called an
‘Indemnitee”), from and against all claims, losses, damages, liabilities and related
expenses including the fees, charges and disbursements of any counsel for any
Indemnitee incurred by any Indemnitee or asserted against any Indemnitee by
whomsoever brought or prosecuted in any manner based upon, or occasioned by,
any injury to persons, damage to or loss or destruction of property, economic loss or
infringement of rights caused by or arising directly or indirectly from:

e The Funds;

e The Recipient’s Eligible Projects, including the design, construction, operation,
maintenance, and repair of any part or all of the Eligible Projects;

e The performance of this Agreement or the breach of any term or condition of
this Agreement by the Recipient, its officers, servants, employees, and agents,
or by a Third Party, its officers, servants, employees, or agents; and

¢ Any omission or other wilful or negligent act of the Recipient or Third Party and
their respective officers, servants, employees, or agents.
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12. TRANSFER AND OPERATION OF MUNICIPAL INFRASTRUCTURE

13.

121

12.2

12.3

Reinvestment. The Recipient will invest into Eligible Projects, any revenue that is
generated from the sale, lease, encumbrance, or other disposal of an asset resulting
from an Eligible Project where such disposal takes place within five (5) years of the
date of completion of the Eligible Project.

Notice. The Recipient shall notify AMO in writing 120 days in advance and at any time
during the five (5) years following the date of completion of an Eligible Project if it is
sold, leased, encumbered, or otherwise disposed of.

Public Use. The Recipient will ensure that Infrastructure resulting from any Eligible
Project that is not sold, leased, encumbered, or otherwise disposed of, remains
primarily for public use or benefit.

DEFAULT AND TERMINATION

13.1

13.2

13.3

Event of Default. AMO may declare in writing that an Event of Default has occurred
when the Recipient has not complied with any condition, undertaking or term in this
Agreement. AMO will not declare in writing that an Event of Default has occurred
unless it has first consulted with the Recipient. For the purposes of this Agreement,
each of the following events shall constitute an “Event of Default”:

e Failure by the Recipient to deliver in a timely manner an Annual Report or
respond to questionnaires or reports as required;

e Delivery of an Annual Report that discloses non-compliance with any
condition, undertaking or material term in this Agreement;

e Failure by the Recipient to co-operate in an external audit undertaken by
Canada, AMO or their agents;

e Delivery of an external audit report that discloses non-compliance with any
condition, undertaking or term in this Agreement; and

e Failure by the Recipient to expend Funds in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement, including Section 5.8.

Waiver. AMO may withdraw its notice of an Event of Default if the Recipient, within
thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the notice, either corrects the default or
demonstrates, to the satisfaction of AMO in its sole discretion that it has taken such
steps as are necessary to correct the default.

Remedies on Default. If AMO declares that an Event of Default has occurred under
Section 13.1, after thirty (30) calendar days from the Recipient’s receipt of the notice
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of an Event of Default, it may immediately terminate this Agreement or suspend its
obligation to pay the Funds. If AMO suspends payment, it may pay suspended Funds
if AMO is satisfied that the default has been cured.

Repayment of Funds. If AMO declares that an Event of Default has not been cured
to its exclusive satisfaction, AMO reserves the right to declare that prior payments of
Funds become a debt to Canada which the Recipient will reimburse forthwith on
demand to AMO for transmission to Canada.

14. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

14.1

No Conflict of Interest. The Recipient will ensure that no current member of the AMO
Board of Directors and no current or former public servant or office holder to whom
any post-employment, ethics and conflict of interest legislation, guidelines, codes or
policies of Canada applies will derive direct benefit from the Funds, the Unspent
Funds, and any interest earned thereon, unless the provision of receipt of such
benefits is in compliance with such legislation, guidelines, policies or codes.

15. NOTICE

15.1

15.2

15.3

Notice. Any notice, information or document provided for under this Agreement will
be effectively given if in writing and if delivered by hand, or overnight courier, mailed,
postage or other charges prepaid, or sent by email to the addresses in Section 15.3.
Any notice that is sent by hand or overnight courier service shall be deemed to have
been given when received; any notice mailed shall be deemed to have been received
on the eighth (8) calendar day following the day on which it was mailed; any notice
sent by email shall be deemed to have been received on the sender’s receipt of an
acknowledgment from the intended recipient (such as by the “return receipt
requested” function, as available, return email or other written acknowledgment),
provided that in the case of a notice sent by email, if it is not given on a business day
before 4:30 p.m. Eastern Standard Time, it shall be deemed to have been given at
8:30 a.m. on the next business day for the recipient.

Representatives. The individuals identified in Section 15.3 of this Agreement, in the
first instance, act as AMO’s or the Recipient’s, as the case may be, representative for
the purpose of implementing this Agreement.

Addresses for Notice. Further to Section 15.1 of this Agreement, notice can be given
at the following addresses:
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e Ifto AMO:

Executive Director

Canada Community-Building Fund Agreement
Association of Municipalities of Ontario

155 University Avenue, Suite 800

Toronto, ON M5H 3B7

Telephone: 416-971-9856
Email: ccbf@amo.on.ca

e If to the Recipient:

Treasurer

The Township of Puslinch
7404 Wellington Road 34
Puslinch, ON NOB 2J0

16. MISCELLANEOUS

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

Counterpart Signature. This Agreement may be signed (including by electronic
signature) and delivered (including by facsimile transmission, by email in PDF or
similar format or using an online contracting service designated by AMO) in
counterparts, and each signed and delivered counterpart will be deemed an original
and both counterparts will together constitute one and the same document.

Severability. If for any reason a provision of this Agreement that is not a fundamental
term is found to be or becomes invalid or unenforceable, in whole or in part, it will be
deemed to be severable and will be deleted from this Agreement, but all the other
terms and conditions of this Agreement will continue to be valid and enforceable.

Waiver. AMO may waive any right in this Agreement only in writing, and any tolerance
or indulgence demonstrated by AMO will not constitute waiver of rights in this
Agreement. Unless a waiver is executed in writing, AMO will be entitled to seek any
remedy that it may have under this Agreement or under the law.

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of Canada applicable in Ontario.

Survival. The Recipient agrees that the following sections and provisions of this
Agreement shall extend for seven (7) years beyond the expiration or termination of
this Agreement: Sections 4, 5.8, 5.9, 6.1, 1.4, 11.5, 12, 13.4 and 16.8.

AMO, Canada and Recipient Independent. The Recipient will ensure its actions do
not establish or will not be deemed to establish a partnership, joint venture, principal-
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agent relationship, or employer-employee relationship in any way or for any purpose
whatsoever between Canada and the Recipient, between AMO and the Recipient,
between Canada and a Third Party or between AMO and a Third Party.

16.7 No Authority to Represent. The Recipient will ensure that it does not represent itself,
including in any agreement with a Third Party, as a partner, employee, or agent of
Canada or AMO.

16.8 Debts Due to AMO. Any amount owed under this Agreement will constitute a debt
due to AMO, which the Recipient will reimburse forthwith, on demand, to AMO.

16.9 Priority. In the event of a conflict, the part of this Agreement that precedes the
signature of the Parties will take precedence over the Schedules.

16.10 Complementarity. The Recipient is to use the CCBF to complement, without
replacing or displacing, other sources of funding for municipal infrastructure.

16.11 Equity. The Recipient is to consider Gender Based Analysis Plus (“GBA+”) lenses
when undertaking a project.

SCHEDULES

17.1  This Agreement, including:

Schedule A Eligible Investment Categories
Schedule B Eligible Expenditures
Schedule C Ineligible Expenditures

Schedule D The Annual Report
Schedule E Communications Requirements

constitute the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter
contained in this Agreement and supersedes all prior oral or written representations
and agreements.
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18. SIGNATURES

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, AMO and the Recipient have respectively executed, and delivered
this Agreement, effective April 1, 2024.

By:

By:

THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH

Name: Date
Title:
Name: Date
Title:

THE ASSOCIATION OF MUNICIPALITIES OF ONTARIO

Name: Date
Title: Executive Director

Witness: Date
Title:
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SCHEDULE A:
ELIGIBLE INVESTMENT CATEGORIES

Broadband connectivity — investments in the construction, material enhancement, or
renewal of infrastructure that provides internet access to residents, businesses, and/or
institutions in Canadian communities.

Brownfield redevelopment — investments in the remediation or decontamination of a
brownfield site within municipal boundaries — provided that the site is being redeveloped
to construct a public park for municipal use, publicly owned social housing, or
Infrastructure eligible under another investment category listed in this schedule.

Capacity-building — investments that strengthen the Recipient’s ability to develop long-
term planning practices as described in Schedule B, item 2.

Community energy systems — investments in the construction, material enhancement,
or renewal of infrastructure that generates energy or increases energy efficiency.

Cultural infrastructure — investments in the construction, material enhancement, or
renewal of infrastructure that supports the arts, humanities, or heritage.

Drinking water — investments in the construction, material enhancement, or renewal of
infrastructure that supports drinking water conservation, collection, treatment, and
distribution systems.

Fire halls — investments in the construction, material enhancement, or renewal of fire halls
and fire station infrastructure.

Local roads and bridges — investments in the construction, material enhancement, or
renewal of roads, bridges, tunnels, highways, and active transportation infrastructure.

Public transit — investments in the construction, material enhancement, or renewal of
infrastructure that supports a shared passenger transport system that is available for
public use.

Recreational infrastructure — investments in the construction, material enhancement, or
renewal of recreational facilities or networks.

Regional and local airports — investments in the construction, material enhancement, or
renewal of airport-related infrastructure (excluding infrastructure in the National Airports
System).

Resilience — investments in the construction, material enhancement, or renewal of built
and natural infrastructure assets and systems that protect and strengthen the resilience
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of communities and withstand and sustain service in the face of climate change, natural
disasters, and extreme weather events.

13. Short-line rail — investments in the construction, material enhancement, or renewal of
railway-related infrastructure for carriage of passengers or freight.

14. Short-sea shipping — investments in the construction, material enhancement, or renewal
of infrastructure related to the movement of cargo and passengers around the coast and
on inland waterways, without directly crossing an ocean.

15. Solid waste — investments in the construction, material enhancement, or renewal of
infrastructure that supports solid waste management systems (including the collection,
diversion, and disposal of recyclables, compostable materials, and garbage).

16. Sport infrastructure — investments in the construction, material enhancement, or renewal
of amateur sport infrastructure (facilities housing professional or semi-professional sports
teams are ineligible).

17. Tourism infrastructure — investments in the construction, material enhancement, or
renewal of infrastructure that attracts travelers for recreation, leisure, business, or other
purposes.

18. Wastewater — investments in the construction, material enhancement, or renewal of
infrastructure that supports wastewater and storm water collection, treatment, and
management systems.

Note: Investments in health infrastructure (e.g., hospitals, long-term care facilities, convalescent
centres, and senior centres) are not eligible.
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SCHEDULE B:
ELIGIBLE EXPENDITURES

Eligible Expenditures will be limited to the following:

1.

Infrastructure investments — expenditures associated with acquiring, planning,
designing, constructing, or renovating a tangible capital asset and any related debt
financing charges specifically identified with that asset.

Capacity-building costs — for projects eligible under the capacity-building category only,
expenditures associated with the development and implementation of:

e Capital investment plans, integrated community sustainability plans, integrated
regional plans, housing needs assessments, or asset management plans;

o Studies, strategies, systems, software, third-party assessments, plans, or training
related to asset management;

o Studies, strategies, systems, or plans related to housing or land use;

o Studies, strategies, or plans related to the long-term management of infrastructure;
and

o Other initiatives that strengthen the Recipient’s ability to improve local and regional
planning.

Joint communications and signage costs — expenditures directly associated with joint
federal communication activities and with federal project signage.

Employee costs — the costs of the Recipient’s employees for projects eligible under the
capacity-building category only — provided that the costs, on an annual basis, do not
exceed the lesser of:

e 40% of the Recipient’s annual allocation (i.e., the amount of CCBF funding made
available to the Recipient by AMO under Section 5.5 of this Agreement); or

e $80,000.



Schedule A to Report FIN-2024-015

SCHEDULE C:
INELIGIBLE EXPENDITURES

The following are deemed Ineligible Expenditures:

1. Costs incurred before the Fund was established — project expenditures incurred before
April 1, 2005.

2. Costs incurred before categories were eligible — project expenditures incurred:

o Before Aprii 1, 2014 - wunder the broadband connectivity, brownfield
redevelopment, cultural infrastructure, disaster mitigation (now resilience),
recreational infrastructure, regional and local airports, short-line rail, short-sea
shipping, sport infrastructure, and tourism infrastructure categories; and.

e Before April 1, 2021 — under the fire halls category.

3. Internal costs — the Recipient’s overhead costs (including salaries and other employment
benefits), operating or administrative costs (related to planning, engineering, architecture,
supervision, management, and other activities normally carried out by the Recipient’s
staff), and equipment leasing costs — except in accordance with Eligible Expenditures
described in Schedule B.

4. Rebated costs — taxes for which the Recipient is eligible for a tax rebate and all other
costs eligible for rebates.

5. Land costs — the purchase of land or any interest therein and related costs.
6. Legal fees.

7. Routine repair or maintenance costs — costs that do not result in the construction,
material enhancement, or renewal of a tangible capital asset.

8. Investments in health infrastructure — costs associated with health infrastructure or
assets (e.g., hospitals, long-term care facilities, convalescent centres, and senior centres).

9. Investments in professional or semi-professional sports facilities — costs associated
with facilities used by professional or semi-professional sports teams.
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SCHEDULE D:
ANNUAL REPORT

The Annual Report may include — but is not necessarily limited to — the following information
pertaining to the previous fiscal year:

1. Financial information — and particularly:
¢ Interest earnings and investment gains — in accordance with Section 5.7;
e Proceeds from the disposal of assets — in accordance with Section 12.1;
¢ Outgoing transfers — in accordance with Sections 5.3 and 5.4;
¢ Incoming transfers — in accordance with Section 5.3; and
¢ Amounts paid — in aggregate for Eligible Expenditures on each Eligible Project.

2. Project information — describing each Eligible Project that started, ended, or was
ongoing in the reporting year.

3. Results — and particularly:
o Expected outputs and outcomes for each ongoing Eligible Project;

o Outputs generated and outcomes achieved for each Eligible Project that ended
construction in the reporting year; and

¢ Housing outcomes resulting from each Eligible Project that ended construction in
the reporting year, and specifically:

i. The number of housing units enabled, supported, or preserved; and
ii. The number of affordable housing units enabled, supported, or preserved.
4. Other information — such as:

e Progress made in the development and implementation of asset management
plans and systems; and

e The impact of the CCBF on housing pressures tied to infrastructure gaps, the
housing supply, and housing affordability.
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SCHEDULE E:
COMMUNICATIONS REQUIREMENTS

COMMUNICATIONS ACTIVITIES

1.1

1.2

Scope. The provisions of this Schedule apply to all communications activities related
to any Funds and Eligible Projects.

Definition. Communications activities may include (but are not limited to) public or
media events, news releases, reports, web articles, blogs, project signs, digital signs,
publications, success stories and vignettes, photo compilations, videos, advertising
campaigns, awareness campaigns, editorials, award programs, and multi-media
products.

INFORMATION SHARING REQUIREMENTS

2.1

2.2

2.3

Notification requirements. The Recipient must report all active Eligible Projects to
AMO in advance of construction each year. Reports must be submitted in an
electronic format deemed acceptable by AMO.

Active Eligible Projects. Active Eligible Projects are those Eligible Projects that
either begin in the current calendar year or are ongoing in the current calendar year.

Information required. The report must include, at a minimum, the name, category,
description, expected outcomes, anticipated CCBF contribution, anticipated start
date, and anticipated end date of each active Eligible Project.

PROJECT SIGNAGE REQUIREMENTS

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Installation requirements. Unless otherwise approved by Canada, the Recipient
must install a federal sign to recognize federal funding for each Eligible Project in
accordance with design, content, and installation guidelines provided by Canada.

Permanent signs, plaques, and markers. Permanent signage, plaques, and
markers recognizing municipal or provincial contributions to an Eligible Project must
also recognize the federal contribution and must be approved by Canada.

Responsibilities. The Recipient is responsible for the production and installation of
Eligible Project signage in accordance with Section 3 of this Schedule E, except as
otherwise agreed upon.

Reporting requirements. The Recipient must inform AMO of signage installations in
a manner determined by AMO.
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4. DIGITAL COMMUNICATIONS REQUIREMENTS

41

4.2

Social media. AMO maintains accounts dedicated to the CCBF on several social
media networks. The Recipient must @mention the relevant account when producing
content that promotes or communicates progress on one or more Eligible Projects.
AMO’s CCBF-dedicated social media accounts are identified on
www.buildingcommunities.ca.

Websites and webpages. Websites and webpages created to promote or
communicate progress on one or more Eligible Projects must recognize federal
funding using either:

a) Adigital sign; or

b) The Canada wordmark and the following wording (as applicable):
i. “This project is funded in part by the Government of Canada”; or
ii. “This project is funded by the Government of Canada”.

The Canada wordmark or digital sign must link to www.infrastructure.gc.ca.
Guidelines describing how this recognition is to appear and language requirements
are posted at http://www.infrastructure.gc.ca/pub/signage-panneaux/intro-eng.html.

5. REQUIREMENTS FOR MEDIA EVENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

5.5

Definitions. Media events and announcements include, but are not limited to, news
conferences, public announcements, and the issuing of news releases to
communicate the funding of Eligible Projects or achievement of key milestones (such
as groundbreaking ceremonies, grand openings, and completions).

Authority. Canada, AMO, or the Recipient may request a media event or
announcement.

Notification requirements. Media events and announcements must not proceed
without the prior knowledge and agreement of AMO, Canada, and the Recipient.

Notice. The requester of a media event or announcement must provide at least fifteen
(15) business days’ notice to other parties of their intention to undertake such an event
or announcement. If communications are proposed through a news release with no
supporting event, Canada additionally requires five (5) business days with the draft
news release to secure approvals and confirm the federal representative’s quote.

Date and location. Media events and announcements must take place at a date and
location that is mutually agreed to by the Recipient, AMO and Canada.
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5.7
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5.10
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Representatives. The Recipient, AMO, and Canada will have the opportunity to
participate in media events and announcements through a designated representative.
Each Party will choose its own designated representative.

Responsibilities. AMO and the Recipient are responsible for coordinating all onsite
logistics for media events and announcements unless otherwise agreed on.

No unreasonable delay. The Recipient must not unreasonably delay media events
and announcements.

Precedence. The conduct of all joint media events, announcements, and supporting
communications materials (e.g., news releases, media advisories) will follow the Table
of Precedence for Canada.

Federal approval. All joint communications material related to media events and
announcements must be approved by Canada and recognize the funding of all
contributors.

Federal policies. All joint communications material must reflect Canada’s Policy on
Official Languages and the Policy on Communications and Federal Identity.

Equal visibility. The Recipient, Canada, and AMO will have equal visibility in all
communications activities.

PROGRAM COMMUNICATIONS

6.1

6.2

Own communications activities. The Recipient may include messaging in its own
communications products and activities with regards to the use of Funds.

Funding acknowledgements. The Recipient must recognize the funding of all
contributors when undertaking such activities.

OPERATIONAL COMMUNICATIONS

7.1

7.2

Responsibilities. The Recipient is solely responsible for operational communications
with respect to the Eligible Projects, including but not limited to, calls for tender,
construction, and public safety notices. Operational communications as described
above are not subject to the federal official languages policy.

Federal funding acknowledgement. Operational communications should include,
where appropriate, the following statement (as appropriate):

a) “This project is funded in part by the Government of Canada”; or

b) “This project is funded by the Government of Canada”.
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Notification requirements. The Recipient must share information promptly with AMO
should significant emerging media or stakeholder issues relating to an Eligible Project
arise. AMO will advise the Recipient, when appropriate, about media inquiries
received concerning an Eligible Project.

COMMUNICATING SUCCESS STORIES

8.1

Participation requirements. The Recipient must work with Canada and AMO when
asked to collaborate on communications activities — including, but not limited to,
Eligible Project success stories (including positive impacts on housing), Eligible
Project vignettes, and Eligible Project start-to-finish features.

ADVERTISING CAMPAIGNS

9.1

9.2

Responsibilities. The Recipient may, at its own cost, organize an advertising or
public information campaign related to the use of the Funds or Eligible Projects,
provided that the campaign respects the provisions of this Agreement.

Notice. The Recipient must inform Canada and AMO of its intention to organize a
campaign no less than twenty-one (21) working days prior to the launch of the
campaign.
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PUSLINCH
TO: Mayor and Members of Council
PREPARED BY: Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer
Mike Fowler, Director of Public Works, Parks and Facilities
PRESENTED BY: Andrea Dwight, Principal of Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc.
MEETING DATE: July 10, 2024
SUBJECT: Energy Conservation and Demand Management Plan
File No. E17 ENE
RECOMMENDATIONS

THAT Report FIN-2024-016 entitled 2024 Energy Conservation and Demand Management Plan
be received; and

That the Township’s 2024 Energy Conservation and Demand Management Plan attached as
Schedule A to Report FIN-2024-016 be approved; and

That Council approve the projects outlined in Schedule A to Report FIN-2024-016 subject to
further annual review during the budget process.

Purpose
The purpose of this report is to obtain Council approval to implement the 2024 Energy

Conservation and Demand Management Plan (ECDMP) as outlined in Schedule A to Report FIN-
2024-016 subject to further annual review during the budget process.

Background

Ontario Regulation 25/23 of the Electricity Act, 1998 requires that all municipalities develop and
publish an ECDMP every five years.

The Township’s previous ECDMP was passed on July 17, 2019 through Council Resolution No.
2019-282. The 2019 ECDMP is attached as Schedule B to this Report.
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The Township engaged Local Authority Services (LAS) in partnership with Blue Sky Energy
Engineering and Consulting Inc. to complete the 2024 ECDMP for the Township.

Financial Implications

The ECDMP as outlined in Schedule A will be reviewed in conjunction with the Township’s
annual budgeting processes.

Applicable Legislation and Requirements

Ontario Regulation 25/23 of the Electricity Act, 1998

Engagement Opportunities

The ECDMP and yearly energy consumption reporting are posted on the Township’s website on
the Energy Conservation Page on Puslinch.ca.

Attachments

Schedule A: Energy Conservation and Demand Management Plan — 2024 — 2029
Schedule B: Energy Conservation and Demand Management Plan — 2019 — 2024
Respectfully submitted:

Mary Hasan

Director of Finance/Treasurer

Mike Fowler
Director of Public Works, Parks and Facilities
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1. Introduction

1.1 Background

This report presents the 2024 — 2029 Energy Conservation and Demand Management Plan (ECDMP)
for the Township of Puslinch (the Township). Energy management at the Township has become
increasingly important as the cost of energy continues to rise and our commitment to reducing our
environmental impact increases. The Township is committed to the energy conservation journey to
ensure municipal funds are used wisely, and the impact of the Township’s services on greenhouse gas
(GHG) production is minimized.

As part of this commitment, Regulation 25/23 of the Electricity Act requires all municipalities across
Ontario to develop and publish an Energy Conservation and Demand Management Plan (ECDMP) every
five years.

The plan includes the following key elements:

e Our commitment - a corporate vision and policy that includes objectives, targets and
strategic priorities,

e A summary of past conservation improvements and successes,

e Our energy baseline and detailed energy metrics summarizing our progress towards targets;
and,

e Specific and actionable inventory of energy conservation projects planned for the next five
(5) years.

Over the last 5 year period, the Township has been successful in reducing energy consumption by over
22%, and GHG emissions by close to 40% through our conservation efforts and will continue to seek to
improve through the implementation of this new plan.

The plan has been developed to support, focus, communicate and celebrate our energy conservation
efforts. The Township intends on revisiting and updating the ECDMP every five years as required under
the regulation.

1.2 Ontario Regulation 25/23 of the Electricity Act

In 2008, Ontario’s 445 municipalities spent $680 million on electricity, equating to 4.3% of Ontario’s
consumption (Power Application Group 2008). In response, Ontario’s Green Act was created to expand
renewable energy generation, encourage energy conservation and promote the creation of green energy
jobs (Ministry of Energy 2014).

Under the Green Energy Act, Ontario Regulation 397/11 was introduced for public agencies-
municipalities, municipal service boards, universities, colleges, hospitals and school boards to apply the
Act’s principles. This Regulation is now part of the Electricity Act, Ontario Regulation 25/23.

Under this Regulation, public agencies must report annual energy consumption and GHG emissions for

buildings that have heating and cooling and for operations related to water and sewer services. Public
agencies must also create an ECDMP, which requires updating every five years.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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1.3 Facilities Included in the Plan

The Regulation states that energy use and GHG emissions must be reported for buildings or facilities the
Township owns or leases.

The full list of facilities included in the ECDMP can be found in Table 1.1 below. In addition to the
mandatory facilities required by the regulation, the Township has also included Streetlighting and the
following smaller locations: Outdoor Tennis Court, Morriston Meadows Baseball Diamond, Old Morriston
Baseball Diamond, Aberfoyle Baseball Diamond and the Railway Crossing.

Table 1.1: Puslinch Facilities and Infrastructure included in the ECDMP

Name Address Use Area (m?)
MANDATORY FACILITIES

Optimist Recreation Centre 23 Brock Road South Outdoor Arena and Gymnasium 1,152
Puslinch Community Centre 23 Brock Road South Community Centre 777
Puslinch Community Centre Shed | 23 Brock Road South Storage Facility 140
Puslinch Fire Hall 7404 Wellington Road 34 | Fire Station 245
Public Works Shop 7404 Wellington Road 34 | Equipment/Vehicle Maintenance 961
Public Works Storage Shed 7404 Wellington Road 34 | Storage Facility 465
Municipal Complex 7404 Wellington Road 34 | Administrative Office 407
ADDITIONAL LOCATIONS

Old Morriston Baseball Diamond 11 Main Street Recreation N/A
Aberfoyle Baseball Diamond 23 Brock Road South Recreation N/A
Tennis Courts 23 Brock Road South Recreation N/A
M.orriston Meadows Baseball Currie Drive Recreation N/A
Diamond

Railway Crossing Watson Road South Roads and Transportation N/A
STREETLIGHTS

Streetlights Various Other N/A

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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2. Our Commitment to Energy Conservation

Declaration of Commitment

The Township commits to the allocation of the necessary
resources to implement the ECDMP.

Vision

The Township’s vision is to be as energy efficient as possible by leveraging our organization and by
using new and efficient technology wherever it is cost effective to do so. We will wisely and continually
seek to reduce energy consumption while maintaining an effective level of service to our customers and
the general public.

Objectives and Goals

e Create a culture of conservation across Township operations

¢ Increase the visibility of facility energy consumption data to the senior management team through
enhanced monitoring and tracking

¢ Finish retrofitting all lighting fixtures with high efficiency lighting technologies

¢ Incorporate energy efficiency criteria into capital equipment purchasing practices.

Energy Conservation Target

Our target is to reduce our consumption of fuels and electricity in all Township operations by 3% (31.6
eMWh) by 2029 compared to the 2023 annual energy consumption of 1,052 eMWh.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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3. Responsibility for Energy Conservation

The team, described below, will be responsible for delivering this plan’s objectives and goals as well as
maintaining the Township’s focus on energy management in the years to come.

Responsibilities:

The role of Finance is to provide clear guidance and support to the energy conservation team on internal
and external funding mechanisms, and to include the senior leadership team in relevant decision-making
and budget discussions. Finance is also responsible for providing the energy consumption data to the
Director of Public Works, Parks and Facilities and Council for review.

The Director of Public Works, Parks and Facilities and facilities staff will have direct knowledge of the
Township’s major energy-using facilities and assets and are responsible for developing and maintaining
the focus on energy conservation. This team will ensure the delivery of energy conservation measures in
each of the facilities. As such, they will be tasked with reviewing facility energy consumption data and
managing energy issues as required.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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4. Current Energy Consumption at the Township

4.1. Energy Baseline

In order to track progress, an energy baseline was established from which annual energy consumption
can be compared. Energy consumption data was provided through the Local Authority Service’s (LAS)
Energy Planning Tool (EPT) system which currently tracks both electricity and natural gas for each of the
Township’s buildings.

The resulting dataset represents the Township’s baseline and current level of energy performance.
Table 4.1 below presents the Township’s 2023 energy data by fuel type expressed in equivalent kilowatt
hours (ekWh), compared to the baseline year of 2013 and midterm year 2019.

Table 4.1: Puslinch Energy Consumption Compared to Baseline

% Change % Change

Account

Centre STEE 1 vs 2019 vs 2013
Natural Gas (m?®) 64,865 80,916 64,644 -20.1% -0.3%
- Electricity (kWh) 436,220 325,050 334,981 3.1% -23.2%
Facilities
Subtotal Energy o o
(ekWh)' 1,106,275 1,160,917 1,002,753 13.6% 9.4%
Streetlights Electricity (kWh) 247,386 104,891 49,335 -53.0% -80.1%
Total Energy (ekWh) 1,353,661 1,265,808 1,052,088 -16.9% -22.3%
Total GHG (tCOz2e) 2255 167.9 135.7 19.2% -39.8%
Emissions

Note 1: ekWh (equivalent kWh) is a calculated value using Natural Gas’s thermal content to convert consumption in
volume units to “equivalent” kWh for comparison.

Note 2: The baseline of 2013 was selected instead of the standard 2012 because Streetlighting data was
unavailable.

Table 4.1 above illustrates that the Township has reduced its overall energy use by over 22% and
reduced GHG emissions by almost 40%. This is a significant achievement by the Township team.

Although the baseline year for ultimate comparison is 2013, for the purposes of this report, 2029 targets
will be set against the 2023 consumption levels.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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4.2. Historical Energy Breakdown

This section outlines the energy consumption picture at the Township over the last decade and provides
a detailed breakdown of the current 2023 results.

Figure 4.1 below illustrates energy consumed by the Township broken down by fuel type for 2023.

Total Annual Energy Consumption by Fuel Source
2023 = 1,052 eMWh

Electricity (kWh),
37%

Natural Gas
(ekWh), 63%

M Electricity (kWh)  ® Natural Gas (ekWh)

Figure 4.1: Total Township Energy Consumption Breakdown by Fuel Source 2023

Figure 4.2 below illustrates the total energy consumed (ekWh) at the Township each year between 2013
and 2023. The graph shows the significant reduction (22%) in energy consumption over the period,
mainly the result of the successful change in streetlighting technology to LED.

Total Annual Energy Consumption by Fuel Source
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Figure 4.2: Total Annual Energy Consumption (ekWh) 2013 - 2023

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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Electricity:

Figure 4.3 below shows the electricity consumed in 2023 by facility, and Figure 4.4 shows consumption
at the Township over time (from 2013-2023) by division. The highest electricity consumers in the
Township are the Optimist Recreation Centre, the Puslinch Community Centre and the streetlights.

Electricity Consumption by Facility (kWh) 2023

Optimist Recreation Centre
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Old Morriston Baseball Diamond 1
Morriston Meadowns Baseball Diamond
Puslinch Community Centre Shed
Tennis Courts
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Electricity (kwh)

Figure 4.3 2023 Electricity Consumption by Facility

Annual Electricity Consumption by Division
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Figure 4.4 Annual Electricity Consumption by Division

Figure 4.4 above, shows a significant improvement in electricity consumption between 2013 and 2023.
The 44% (300 MWh/hour) improvement was due primarily to the streetlighting upgrade to LED and the
energy conservation efforts of Township staff.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)



Schedule A to Report FIN-2024-016
Township of Puslinch - 2024 Energy Conservation and Demand Management Plan Page |8

Natural Gas:

Figures 4.5 and 4.6 below show the consumption of natural gas by Township facilities. The first illustration
shows the natural gas consumption in order of greatest use, for 2023. The second figure trends this
consumption by facility from 2013 to 2023.

Natural Gas Consumption by Building (m?3) 2023

Public Works Garage 15—
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Figure 4.5 2023 Natural Gas Consumption by Facility
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Figure 4.6 Annual Natural Gas Consumption by Facility
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4.3 Carbon Emissions

The carbon footprint related to the energy used by the Township is tracked. The rate of GHG production
varies by energy source and is directly affected by the emissions conversion factors and the Township
consumption. Emission conversion factors used in the ECDMP were published values for Ontario and
can vary year to year based on how clean the energy generation is.

The GHG emissions resulting from Township energy use are broken down by fuel source in Figure 4.7.

GHG Emissions by Fuel Source 2023
135.7 etCO,

Electricity

. 115
8%

Natural Gas
124.2
92%

= Electricity = Natural Gas

Figure 4.7 Total Annual GHG Emissions for 2023 by Energy Source

Note that although natural gas provides 63% of the total energy needs for the Township, it is responsible
for 92% of the GHG emissions. It is for this reason that GHG emissions reduction plans must include a
strategy for the reduction of consumption of natural gas.

Total Annual Emissions by Fuel Source (tCO.e)

2200 225.5

200.0

150.0 135.7
100.0
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Figure 4.8 Total Annual GHG Emissions from 2013 to 2023 by Fuel Source
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Figure 4.9 below lists the GHG emissions by facility for 2023. The four largest emitters are the Public
Works Shop, Puslinch Community Centre, Optimist Recreation Centre and the Municipal Complex. As
indicated by the previous figures, the larger GHG emission levels are due to the consumption of natural
gas in these facilities.

Annual GHG Emissions by Facility 2023
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Figure 4.9 Annual GHG Emissions by Facility 2023
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5. Our Conservation Successes

Township staff have been continuously delivering upgrades to facilities and processes which contribute
to lower energy consumption and costs. As mentioned previously, the Township has reduced its overall
energy use by over 22% and reduced GHG emissions by almost 40% in the last five years. This is a
significant achievement, and the following section outlines a few of the improvements made.

One of the most significant energy conservation improvements over the last five years was the
replacement of the street lighting with both decorative and standard LED lighting fixtures. This project
was completed in 2019. Figure 5.1 below illustrates the significant electricity savings realized in 2020
onward compared to previous years. This improvement resulted in an 80% reduction in annual electricity
consumption from street lighting.

Puslinch Streetlights Annual Electricity Consumption
300,000

250,000 247,386 244,663

200,000
150,000
104,891
100,000
50,527 49,335
50,000 I I I I
0

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Electricity Consumption (kWh)

Figure 5.1: Total Annual Electricity Consumption - Streetlights

Lighting improvements were made in several other facilities:

e Puslinch Community Centre and Optimist Recreation Centre Light Fixtures to LED
¢ Old Morriston Baseball Diamond: Light Fixtures to LED
e Senior Soccer Field: Light Fixtures to LED

Other energy conservation of measures that were delivered in the Township include:

e Puslinch Community Centre - accessible front doors (reduced air infiltration)
¢ Municipal Complex upgrades (improved efficiency)

o New condenser units

o New John Woods boiler.

e Arena Curtains around outdoor rink (reduces the impact of solar heat gains on ice surface)

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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Figures 5.2, 5.3 and 5.4 below, illustrate several of the completed energy conservation upgrades.

Figure 5.2 Energy Efficient Upgrades at the Puslinch Community Centre

Figure 5.3 New Curtains at the Optimist Recreation Centre Outdoor Rink

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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Old Morriston PCC -Soccer

Figure 5.4 Senior Soccer Field and Old Morriston Baseball Diamond LED
Lighting Retrofit

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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6. Renewable Energy

The Township does not currently have significant renewable energy technologies installed nor any short-
term plans to install renewable energy generation in the next few years.

The Township however has 10-15 solar powered digital and lit traffic signs throughout the Township.
Figure 6.1 below are images of solar powered lit stop signs.

Maltby&Watson

Tl NNARRITEN T B -, o)

Figure 6.1: Stop Signs with Solar Powered Lights

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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7. ECDMP Action Plan

The Township has developed an ECDMP action plan which will support the achievement of the energy
reduction goals outlined in Section 2. The programs and projects will build on the accomplishments of
previous plans and will not only drive improvements to energy efficiency, but will help build awareness,
while showing our commitment to protecting the environment for future generations.

The plan will focus on three main areas as follows:

Capital Planning — Energy Efficient Guidelines and Standards

The Township will develop an energy efficiency standard for future capital purchases covering various
topics including:

e Heating systems - boilers, packaged rooftop units, heat pumps
e Refrigeration and cooling systems — space cooling, refrigerators, freezer chests
e Building Controls

Building and Operational Improvements (Upgrades)

Energy savings will be delivered through the identification and implementation of projects which reduce
energy consumption across the facility portfolio. The majority of the projects fall into one of the following
categories:

e Heating systems - boilers, packaged rooftop units
e Refrigeration and cooling systems — space cooling, refrigerators, freezer chests

¢ Air Handling
e Building Envelope
e Lighting

e Domestic Hot Water

Building and Process Controls

The Township will leverage existing building controls to optimize building performance and eliminate
energy waste. Schedules and setpoints will be reviewed and optimized, and older building thermostats
upgraded to provide better thermal control.

The detailed list of projects included in the ECDMP, which covers a period from July 2024 to June 2029,
can be found in Appendix A.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)



Schedule A to Report FIN-2024-016
Township of Puslinch - 2024 Energy Conservation and Demand Management Plan Page |16

8. Update and Review Process

As part of any energy management strategy, continuous monitoring, verification, and reporting is an
essential tool to track consumption and cost savings/avoidance as a result of implemented initiatives.

The monitoring and reporting for this plan will align with the requirements of Regulation 25/23 of the
Electricity Act and/or any subsequent legislation related to energy management.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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Appendix A:

2024-2029 Energy Conservation and Demand Management

Action Plan

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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Corporation of the Township of Puslinch: Energy Conservation & Demand Management Action Plan

VISION: To be as energy efficient as possible by leveraging our organization and by using new and efficient technology wherever it is
cost effective to do so. We will wisely and continually seek to reduce energy consumption while maintaining an effective level of
service to our customers and the general public.

TARGET: Our target is to reduce our consumption of fuels and electricity in all Township operations by 3% (31.6 eMWh) by 2029
compared to the 2023 annual energy consumption of 1,052 eMWh.

Projects and Programs

- . e Capltal_l Forecasted
Facility Strategic Focus Measure Type Description Notes Operating Timin
Budget 9
Develop energy efficient technical guidelines as part of capital
. . design works for purchasing of heating system equipment . .
Al Capital Planning Standards (packaged HVAC units, boilers, fans, heat pumps (ground and air Capital Ongoing
source), controls).
. . Study the feasibility of purchasing hybrid vehicles for Township . .
All Capital Planning Standards fleet. Review criteria on a case-by-case basis., Operating Ongoing
. N - Take thermal infrared (IR) images of all outer facility walls to help .
Various Investigation Building Envelope identify infiltration and thermal bridging issues Operating 2025
Optimist Rec Centre | Controls HVAC ;J;);;gzde gym thermostat and move from back utility room to main Operating 2025
Optimist Rec Centre | Upgrade HVAC Install destratification fans in gymnasium Capital 2027
Investigate the possibility of adding a heat reclaim system for the
Optimist Rec Centre | Upgrade Rink rink compressors: heat could be used for change rooms or other Capital 2027
spaces.
. . . Review water quantity needed per flood. Fill ice resurfacer with . .
Optimist Rec Centre | Operations Rink only what is required avoiding unnecessary water heating. Operating Ongoing
Upgrade thermostats on unit heaters with programmable
Public Works Shed Controls Heating models. Program temperature setbacks for space heating during Operating 2025
unoccupied periods.
Public Works Shed Upgrade Lighting Upgrade interior fluorescent lighting to LED. Note 1 Capital 2025
Public Works Shop Upgrade Lighting Upgrade interior fluorescent lighting to LED. Note 1 Capital 2025

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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TF . o Capltal! Forecasted
Facility Strategic Focus Measure Type Description Notes Operating Timin
Budget 9
Public Works Shop Upgrade Building Envelope | Replace/maintain weather stripping on roll up doors as required. Operating 2026
Replace older thermostats with programmable models. Program
Public Works Shop Controls HVAC temperature setbacks for space heating during unoccupied Note 1 Operating 2025
periods.
Install interlocks between bay doors and ceiling heating units
Public Works Shop Controls HVAC (infrared (IR) heaters) to prevent heaters from running when bay Note 1 Capital 2025
doors are open.
. . Replace exterior door in shop with insulated version to reduce .
Public Works Shop Upgrade Building Envelope infiltration and heat fransfer. Note 1 Capital 2025
Township Office Upgrade Building Envelope :;l]glg:::ggnexterlor windows and doors to reduce heat transfer and Note 1 Capital 2025
Township Office Upgrade Heating E:;)tl:rcse plug in floor heaters with low wattage radiant panel Note 1 Capital 2025
Township Office Upgrade Lighting ;Jé)r?srg;jse interior fluorescent lighting to LED and add motion Note 1 Capital 2025
Township Office Upgrade Building Envelope ﬁgn;ﬂi;mﬁa”mg air curtain on front doors of office to reduce Note 1 Capital 2025
Township Office Upgrade Building Envelope | Replace windows and doors Note 1 Capital 2025
Township Office Upgrade Building Envelope | Inspect and improve wall and roof insulation as required Note 1 Capital 2025
Township Office Upgrade HVAC HVAC system upgrade Note 1 Capital 2025
Puslinch Community S Upgrade exterior windows and doors to reduce heat transfer and .
Centre Upgrade Building Envelope infiltration. Capital 2025
Puslinch Community - . . ) .
Centre Upgrade Lighting Upgrade parking lot light fixtures Capital 2024
Puslinch Community Investigate enhanced thermostats control which allow automatic .
Centre Controls HVAC return to temperature setpoints Operating 2025
) . Review and maintain weather stripping and sealing around exterior .
Fire Hall Upgrade Building Envelope person doors as necessary in bay area, and around building. Operating 2026
Replace older thermostats on bay radiant natural gas heaters with
Fire Hall Controls Heating programmable. Program temperature setback for space heating Operatin 2025
p g
during unoccupied periods.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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Capital/
Facility Strategic Focus Measure Type Description Notes Operating _I:_?r:‘?;:asted
Budget 9
) Ensure that temperature setbacks have been programmed for .
Fire Hall Controls HVAC unoccupied periods in office area using existing thermostat. Operating 2025
Fire Hall Upgrade Lighting Convert existing fluorescent fixtures in bay area to LED. Note 1 Capital 2025
. R Convert existing fluorescent fixtures in office/kitchen/common .
Fire Hall Upgrade Lighting areas 1o LED. Note 1 Capital 2025

Note 1: Project to be completed with the Municipal Administration and Operations Facility renovation.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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1. Introduction

Energy management has become increasingly important across Ontario Municipalities as
energy prices continue to rise and our interest in reducing our environmental impact increases.
The Township of Puslinch (“Township”) is committed to the energy conservation journey to
ensure municipal funds are used wisely and the impact of the Township’s services on
greenhouse gas (GHG) production is minimized.

As part of this commitment across Ontario, Regulation 507/18 of the Electricity Act requires all
municipalities to develop and publish a Corporate Energy Conservation and Demand
Management Plan (CEMP) every five years. The plan, which helps support energy conservation
efforts at the Township, is accompanied by a regulated annual report which publishes the total
annual energy consumed for each of the buildings and facilities at the Township.

The Township has developed the CEMP (this plan) to support, focus, communicate and
celebrate our energy conservation efforts.

The plan includes the following key elements:

e Aclear corporate vision and policy that includes objectives, targets and strategic
priorities;

e A summary of past conservation improvements and successes;

e Detailed energy metrics summarizing energy consumed and progress towards
targets; and,

e Specific and actionable inventory of energy conservation projects planned for the
next five (5) years.

The Township intends on revisiting and updating this Plan every five years as required under
O.Reg. 507/18.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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2. Our Commitment to Energy Conservation

2.1. Declaration of Commitment

The Township commits to the allocation of the necessary resources to implement the CEMP.

2.2. Vision

The Township’s vision is to be as energy efficient as possible by leveraging our organization and
by using new and efficient technology where ever it is cost effective to do so. We will wisely
and continually seek to reduce energy consumption while still maintaining an effective level of
service to our customers and the general public.

2.3. Objectives and Goals

e Create a culture of conservation across Township operations;

e Increase the visibility of facility energy consumption data to the senior management
team through enhanced monitoring and tracking;

e Implement energy audits on all municipal facilities during the next five years;

e Finish retrofitting all lighting fixtures with high efficiency lighting technologies;

e Incorporate energy efficiency criteria (life cycle costing) into capital equipment
purchasing practices.

2.4. Targets

Our target is to reduce our consumption of fuels and electricity in all municipal operations by an
average of 10% (127 eMWh) over a five-year period compared to 2017 levels.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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3. Our Energy Report Card

3.1. Facilities Included in the Plan

The requirements of Regulation 507/18 of the Electricity Act specify that the plan is to cover
only the built environment (facilities that are heated), whose facilities are currently owned and
operated by the Township. The full list of the Township’s facilities included in the plan can be
found in Table 1 below. Street lights, as an exception to this rule, have been included in this

plan as they are a significant consumer of energy, on a relative basis.

TABLE 1: Puslinch Facilities and Infrastructure within the Boundaries of this Plan

Name Address Use Area (m?)

FACILITIES

Community Centre 23 Brock Road Community Centre 777

Community Centre Shed 23A Brock Road Storage Facility 140

Township Office 7404 Wellington Rd Administrative Office 407

Optimist Recreation Centre 23 Brock Road Other 1,152

Public Works Shed 7404 Wellington Rd Community Centre 465
7404 Wellington Rd Equipment or Vehicle 961

Public Works Shop Maintenance

Puslinch Fire Hall 7404 Wellington Rd Fire Station 245

STREET LIGHTS

Street Lights ‘ Various ‘ Other -

3.2. Energy Consumption at the Township

In order to track progress, an energy baseline was established from which annual energy
consumption was compared. Energy consumption data was provided through the Local
Authority Service’s (LAS) Energy Planning Tool (EPT) system which currently tracks both
electricity and natural gas for each of the Township’s buildings.

The resulting dataset represents the Township’s baseline and current level of energy
performance. Table 2 below presents the Township’s 2017 energy data by fuel type expressed
in equivalent kilowatt hours (ekWh), compared to the baseline year of 2013. The energy
consumption data shown below does not include some of the Township’s smaller accounts like
outdoor park lighting and facilities that are not heated (see Table 1 for a full list of included
facilities). Additionally, the data has not been corrected for yearly weather variations.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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. . 2017 Total 2013

Electricity Natural Natural Gas .
Account Centre (Kwh) Gas (m?) (ekWh)! Energy Baseline % Change

(ekwWh) (ekWh)?
Facilities 356,448 65,756 679,259 1,035,708 1,104,348 -6.2 |
Streetlights 239,203 N/A N/A 239,203 241,352 -0.9 J
Total (ekWh) 595,651 65,756 679,259 1,274,911 1,345,700 -5.3.J
Total Greenhouse Gas Emissions 131.0 163.8 -20% 4,
(tonnes)

Note 1: ekWh (equivalent kWh) is a calculated value using Natural Gas’s thermal content to convert consumption

in volume units to “equivalent” kWh for comparison.

Note 2: The baseline of 2013 was selected instead of the standard 2012 because Streetlighting data was

unavailable.

In 2013, the Township consumed approximately 1,345 eMWh and was responsible for 163.8

tonnes of associated GHG emissions. As indicated in Table 2 above, Puslinch achieved an 5.3%

reduction in energy consumption and 20% reduction in GHG emissions over the five-year period
ending in 2017 (using 2013 as a baseline).

This improvement does not include the additional, and significant, savings that will be

measurable in 2019 and beyond, through the recent streetlighting upgrade.

The following figures illustrate energy use broken down by facility and fuel type. As indicated

above, the Township consumes two main fuels, electricity and natural gas. The breakdown is

shown in Figure 1 below.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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Energy Consumption Breakdown
by Fuel Type 2017

Electricity = Natural Gas

Figure 1: Energy Consumption Breakdown by Fuel Type.

Figure 2 below indicates the total energy consumed at the Township (reported buildings only)
by year. The graph indicates a significant reduction in energy consumption over the five-year
period.

Total Annual Energy Consumption

1,600,000

1,400,000 2013 Baseline = 1,345,700 ekWh
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400,000
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Energy Consumption (ekWh)

M Streetlighting - Electricity = Facilities - Electricity ™ Facilities - Natural Gas

Figure 2: Total Annual Energy Consumption (ekWh) for all Reported Puslinch Facilities

As shown in Figure 2 above, facilities (electricity and natural gas combined) consume
approximately 82% of the energy, the remainder is used by street lighting. Over the five-year
period, approximately 70,789 ekWh were avoided compared to the baseline year of 2013. This

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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translates to an overall GHG reduction of 32.8 tonnes over the five-year period, equalling 6.3
cars removed from the road for one year or 492 trees being planted.

Figure 3 below, shows energy consumption at various Township facilities over a five-year
period. The Optimist Recreation Centre is the largest energy consumer in the Township.

Total Energy Consumed by Facility over 5 Year Period (ekWh)

Community Centre Shed

Public Works Storage Shed || m 2013
Puslinch Fire Hall 1l W m 2014
Public Works Garage NN I 2015
Municipal Complex NN L m 2016
Street Lights NN [ 2017
Community Centre NN |
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0 400,000 800,000 1,200,000 1,600,000
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Figure 3: Total Energy Consumption by Facility over a 5 Year Period
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Figure 4: Annual Energy Consumption by Facility
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4. Our Conservation Successes

Township staff have been continuously delivering upgrades and changes to facilities and
processes which contribute to lower energy consumption and costs. The following section
outlines a few of the improvements made.

By far the largest project has been the past year’s project of replacing all of the streetlighting
with high efficiency LED cobra heads and decorative fixtures. Figure 5 below shows several of
the new streetlight fixtures.

Figure 5: Photographs of the new LED outdoor street lighting

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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There have been several energy upgrades to the Community Center over the past five years

which are listed below and shown in Figure 6:

New high efficiency HVAC unit

Replacement of two water heaters with one on-demand high efficiency natural gas
water heater

New LED outdoor lighting

Replacement of incandescent pot lighting with LED

New weather stripping around exterior doors

Motion sensors

Analysing the monthly electricity consumption for the Community Centre and factoring out the
effect of weather, a 33,700 kWh savings was measured over the four month period between
November 2017 and the end of February 2018 compared to previous years. This equates to
over a $3,700 savings (assuming 11¢/kWh) for this four month period which will be realized

every heating season going forward and can be attributed directly to the HVAC upgrades.

Figure 6: Photographs of the new high efficiency HVAC unit, instantaneous water heater and a motion
sensor installed at the Community Centre.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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The Township Offices and Fire Hall have also installed several energy measures recently as
shown in Figure 7 below.

e LED outdoor lighting
o New weather stripping around exterior doors

FIRE DEPT.

Figure 7: Photographs of the new LED outdoor wall lighting at the Fire Hall. This lighting was also
installed on several other buildings including the Township Office and Community Centre.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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5. The Energy Conservation Team

The facility staff at the Township have provided the leadership required to achieve energy
conservation savings across the built environment. The team, described below, will be
responsible for delivering this plan’s objectives and goals as well as maintaining the Township’s
focus on energy management in the years to come.

5.1. Energy Conservation Leader - Finance

The role of Finance is to provide clear guidance, assistance and support to the energy
conservation team on internal and external funding mechanisms and to include the team in
relevant decision-making and budget discussions.

Finance will also be responsible for providing the energy consumption data to the facilities staff
and Council for review.

Finance will support the use of life cycle costing and discounted cash flow-based assessments
for capital projects and will include energy efficiency in procurement criteria where relevant. In
addition, Finance will ensure that suppliers offer energy efficient alternatives/options where
available and include energy criteria/performance in service contracts.

5.2. Energy Conservation Team — Facilities Staff and Fire Chief

The Energy Conservation Team will have direct knowledge of the Township’s major energy-
using facilities and assets and are responsible for developing and maintaining the focus on
energy conservation. The conservation team will ensure the delivery of energy conservation
measures in each of the facilities and will be responsible for the consumption of energy within
their respective departments. As such, they will be tasked with reviewing facility energy
consumption data and managing energy issues as required.

6. Renewable Energy

The Township does not currently have any installed renewable energy technologies nor any
short-term plans to install renewable energy generation in the next few years.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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7. Update and Review Process

Energy Plan Review: As part of any energy management strategy, continuous monitoring,
verification, and reporting is an essential tool to track consumption and cost savings/avoidance
as a result of implemented initiatives.

The monitoring and reporting for this plan will align with the requirements of Regulation 507/18
of the Electricity Act and/or any subsequent legislation related to energy management.

8. Energy Conservation Action Plan

The Township has developed a key project list which will help ensure our energy reduction
goals are met.

The plan includes projects that will support several pillars of a strong energy management plan:

e Detailed list of specific actions needed to achieve the desired goals and objectives;
e Monitoring and tracking mechanisms; and,
e Communication and organizational development.

8.1. Projects

The detailed list of projects included in the plan, which covers a period from July 2019 to June
2024, can be found in Appendix A.

The projects fall under the following broad categories; lighting, HVAC, building envelope, and
general equipment improvements. The following items can be found in the action plan:

e Upgrading space heating and cooling controls with programmable thermostats;
e Replacing older interior lighting systems with LED;

e Installing motion sensors where possible;

e Replacing plug in floor heaters with low wattage radiant panel heaters; and,

e Upgrading windows and doors with high efficiency replacements.

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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Appendix A: Puslinch Energy Conservation Action List

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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Township of Puslinch
Corporate Energy Manangement Plan - Action List
Total
Forecasted Cost Estimate| Estimated Payback
No. |Facility Project Type Measure Description Timing Quantity (S) Cost Incentives Period
$1,850 per
Upgrade exterior windows and doors to reduce heat transfer and 4 doors (3 :gg;go::
1 [Township Office Building Envelope  |Windows/Doors |- 8"2°¢ 2024 single, 1 double)| 0" P $19,250 N/A TBD
infiltration. 12 windows double door,
$850 per
window
2 |Township Office Heating Upgrade Replace plug in floor heaters with low wattage radiant panel heaters. 2020/2021 1 $140 each $140 N/A 1.5 years
Assuming 35 Yes, included
3 |Township Office Lighting Upgrade Upgrade interior fluorescent lighting to LED. 2020/2021 4x4' T8 Fixtures | $140 each $4,900 iln rice 5 years
to LED P
| tigate installi ti for lighting located in the back
4 |Township Office Lighting Controls nvestigate Installing motion sensors for fighting located In the bac 2020/2021 TBD TBD T8D T8D T8D
area of the Township Office towards the washrooms.
Consider installing air curtain on front doors of office to reduce $3,500 for 72"
5 |T hip Offi Building Envel New Technol 2024 1 3,500 Yes, $600 9
ownship Ultice uficing Envelope ew Technology infiltration. Up to $1,000 in incentives from Union Gas. door > es, years
$1,850 per
Upgrade exterior wind dd to reduce heat transf d 4 single d ingle door,
6 |Community Centre Building Envelope  |Windows/Doors |~ F5 coc exteriorwindows and doors to reduce heat transter an 2024 single doors | single door, 1«19 g5 N/A 8D
infiltration. 5 windows $850 per
window
Assuming 19 Yes, included
7 |Community Centre Lighting Upgrade Upgrade interior fluorescent lighting to LED. 2020/2021 4x4' T8 Fixtures | $140 each $2,660 iln rice 3 years
to LED P
Consider installing air curtain on front doors and exterior doors off of $3,500 for 72"
8 [Community Centre Building Envelope  |New Technology main community room to reduce infiltration. Up to $1,000 in 2024 1 ! door $3,500 Yes, $600 9 years
incentives from Union Gas.
Revi d maintai ther strippi d seali d exteri
9 [Fire Hall Building Envelope  [Weather Stripping eviewand maintain wea .er stripping and sealing arf)u.n exterior 2024 1 $100 $100 N/A 2 years
person doors as necessary in bay area, and around building.
10 |[Fire Hall Building Envelope  [Controls Install remote controls for bay doors to reduce time doors are open. 2020 3 $750 each $2,250 N/A TBD
Replace older thermostats on bay radiant natural gas heaters to a
11 |Fire Hall Heating Controls programmable model. Program temperature setback for space 2020 2 $200 each $400 N/A 2.0 year
heating during unoccupied periods.
. X X Ensure ceiling fans in equipment bay are on all the time during the .
12 |Fire Hall Heating Operation X N/A N/A S0 S0 N/A Immediate
heating season.
E thatt t tbacks have b d fi
13 |Fire Hall HVAC Controls nsure that temperature setbacks have been programmed for N/A N/A S0 S0 N/A Immediate
unoccupied periods in office area using existing thermostat.
Assuming 21 Yes, included
14 |Fire Hall Lighting Upgrade Convert existing fluorescent fixtures in bay area to LED. 2020/2021 4x4' T8 Fixtures | $140 each $2,940 iln rice 8 years
to LED P
Convert existing fluorescent fixtures in office/kitchen/common areas Assuming 16 Yes, included
15 |Fire Hall Lighting Upgrade g 2020/2021 4x4' T8 Fixtures | $140 each $2,240 N 8 years
to LED. in price
to LED
16 |Fire Hall Lighting Controls Install motion sensors in washrooms for lighting and fan. 2020/2021 2 $100 each $200 Yes 2 years
| tigate installi ti for lighti th t
17 |Fire Hall Lighting Controls f:;’:: gate installing motion sensors for fighting on the apparatus 2020/2021 8D TBD 8D TBD TBD

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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Township of Puslinch
Corporate Energy Manangement Plan - Action List
Total
Forecasted Cost Estimate| Estimated Payback
No. |Facility Project Type Measure Description Timing Quantity ($) Cost Incentives Period
18 |Optimist Recreation Centre HVAC New Install demand controlled ventilation in gymnasium. 2020 1 $1,200 $1,200 Yes, $500 4 years
Assuming 9 4x4' .
. . . L ) Yes, included
19 |Optimist Recreation Centre Lighting Upgrade Upgrade gym lighting from fluorescent to LED. 2020/2021 T8 fixtures to $140 each $1,260 in orice 2 years
LED P
Assuming 42 Yes. included
inclu
20 |Optimist Recreation Centre Lighting Upgrade Upgrade outdoor rink lighting from fluorescent to LED. 2020/2021 4x4' T8 Fixtures | $140 each $5,880 i'n rice 6 years
to LED P
Public Works Shed (7404 A Upgrade thermostats on unit heaters with pro.gramm_able models_.
21 Wellington) Heating Controls Program temperature setbacks for space heating during unoccupied 2020 2 $200 each $400 N/A 2 years
g periods.
. Assuming 12 .
Public Works Shed (7404 Yes, included
22 Y I,c orks Shed ( Lighting Upgrade Upgrade interior fluorescent fixtures with LED. 2020/2021 4x4' T8 Fixtures | $140 each $1,680 es. |nc.u © 6 years
Wellington) in price
to LED
23 |Public Works Shop Building Envelope |Weather Stripping  |Replace/maintain weather stripping on roll up doors as required. 2024 1 $100 $100 N/A 2.5 years
Repl terior door in sh ith insulated model to red
24 |Public Works Shop Building Envelope  |Door neplace exterior doorin shop with Insuiated modet to recuce 2024 1 $1,000 $1,000 N/A TBD
infiltration and heat transfer.
Replace older thermostats with programmable models. Program
25 |Public Works Shop HVAC Controls P Wwith programma rrogra 2020 4 $200 each $800 N/A 2 years
temperature setbacks for space heating during unoccupied periods.
Assuming 39
u de interior fl t lighting to LED. | tigate wheth Yes, included
26 [Public Works Shop Lighting Upgrade pg_'a € Interlor tluorescen |g_ -|ng ° L nvestigate whether 2020/2021 4x4' T8 fixtures | $140 each $5,460 es_ |nc_u © 5 years
motion sensors could be beneficial at this time. to LED in price

Blue Sky Energy Engineering & Consulting Inc., Local Authority Services (LAS)
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REPORT FIN-2024-017

PUSLINCH
TO: Mayor and Members of Council
PREPARED BY: Michelle Cassar, Deputy Treasurer
PRESENTED BY: Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer
MEETING DATE: July 10, 2024
SUBJECT: First Quarter Financial Report — 2024

File: FO5 —BUD

RECOMMENDATIONS

THAT Report FIN-2024-017 entitled First Quarter Financial Report — 2024 be received.

DISCUSSION

Purpose

The purpose of this report is to provide Council a summary of the Township finances for the
First Quarter of 2024 (January, February, March).

Background

Council receives a summary of the Township finances on a quarterly basis as required by the
Township’s annual audit. This report is prepared in consultation with department heads.

Financial Implications

Discussed throughout the Report and within the Schedules attached to the Report.

Applicable Legislation and Requirements

None



Engagement Opportunities

N/A

Attachments

Schedule A — Departmental Detail

Schedule B — Expense and Revenue Summary

Schedule C — Other Financial Data

Respectfully submitted:

Michelle Cassar
Deputy Treasurer

REPORT NO. FIN-2024-017
Page 2 of 2

Reviewed by:

Mary Hasan
Director of Finance/Treasurer



Report FIN-2024-017 - First Quarter Financial Report - 2024
Schedule A - Departmental Detail

Current Quarter S Budget

Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining
Building
Expenditures
Building Maintenance
Municipal Office Costs Recovered from Building SO SO $20,289 $20,289 100%
Contract Services/Professional Fees
Contract Services $22,587 $22,587 $61,689 $84,276 73%
Professional Fees - Audit S0 S0 $6,600 $6,600 100%
Professional Fees - Engineering & Environmental SO SO $5,000 $5,000 100%
Professional Fees - Legal S608 S608 $34,392 $35,000 98%
Materials and Supplies
Advertising $170 $170 $728 $898 81%
Clothing, Safety Allowance SO SO $980 $980 100%
Office Equipment and Supplies
Computer Software & Hardware SO SO $300 $300 100%
Office Supplies & Equipment $314 $314 $1,186 $1,500 79%
Professional Development
Professional Development $1,834 $1,834 $9,570 $11,404 84%
Travel - Meals SO SO $100 $100 100%
Travel - Accommodations & Parking SO SO $2,000 $2,000 100%
Membership & Subscription Fees $1,705 $1,705 $3,726 $5,431 69%
Salaries, Wages and Benefits
FT Wages $79,685 $79,685 $327,952 $407,637 80%
Group Benefits $9,290 $9,290 $37,750 $47,039 80%
OT Wages SO S0 $500 $500 100%
PT Wages SO SO SO SO N/A
WSIB $2,078 $2,078 $10,778 $12,856 84%
FT Wage Related Expenses $15,576 $15,576 $59,666 $75,242 79%
PT Wage Related Expenses SO SO SO SO N/A
Utilities
Emergency Management $101 $101 S465 S566 82%




Report FIN-2024-017 - First Quarter Financial Report - 2024
Schedule A - Departmental Detail

Current Quarter S Budget
Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining
Fuel S0 S0 $2,116 $2,116 100%
Insurance $14,601 $14,601 -$93 $14,509 -1%
Postage $810 $810 S40 $850 5%
Communication (phone,fax,internet) $1,105 $1,105 $3,292 $4,397 75%
Bank Service Charges $1,204 $1,204 $3,896 $5,100 76%
Vehicles and Equipment
Mileage SO S0 $750 $750 100%
Vehicle Maintenance SO SO $1,000 $1,000 100%
Vehicle Plates SO SO $125 $125 100%
Expenditures Total $151,669 $151,669 $594,795 $746,465 80%
Revenues
Recoveries
Other Recoveries -$3,000 -$3,000 $2,500 -$500 -500%
User Fees, Licenses and Fines
Alternative Solution Application SO SO -$586 -$586 100%
Demolition Permits -$905 -$905 -$995 -$1,900 52%
Designated Structures Permit SO SO -$2,000 -$2,000 100%
Farm Building Permits -$3,434 -$3,434 -$16,566 -$20,000 83%
Institutional, Commercial & Industrial Building Permits -$1,038 -$1,038 -$198,962 -$200,000 99%
Occupancy Permits -$1,267 -81,267 -$4,433 -$5,700 78%
Online Service Fee -$174 -$174 -$2,826 -$3,000 94%
Re-inspection fees S0 S0 -$362 -$362 100%
Residential Building Permits -$132,946 -$132,946 -$275,054 -$408,000 67%
Revision to a Permit -$1,329 -$1,329 -$2,671 -$4,000 67%
Septic System Permit - Alter -$1,827 -$1,827 -$3,113 -$4,940 63%
Septic System Permit - New -$3,655 -$3,655 -$30,345 -$34,000 89%
Sign Permits SO S0 -$1,000 -$1,000 100%
Tent or Marquee Fee SO SO -$1,500 -$1,500 100%
Transfer of Permit SO SO -$181 -$181 100%
Reproduction of Digital Drawings Fees SO SO -$100 -$100 100%
Revenues Total -$149,574 -$149,574 -$538,195 -$687,769 78%
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Schedule A - Departmental Detail

Current Quarter S Budget

Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining
By-law
Expenditures
Contract Services/Professional Fees
Contract Services $1,198 $1,198 $26,526 $27,725 96%
Livestock Loss S0 S0 $353 $353 100%
Professional Fees - Engineering & Environmental SO SO $22,000 $22,000 100%
Professional Fees - Legal $1,155 $1,155 $74,845 $76,000 98%
Materials and Supplies
Advertising $20 $20 $980 $1,000 98%
Clothing, Safety Allowance SO SO $260 $260 100%
Public Education SO SO S500 $500 100%
Signage $40 $40 $1,160 $1,200 97%
Office Equipment and Supplies
Office Supplies & Equipment $59 $59 S91 $150 60%
Professional Development
Professional Development $1,355 $1,355 $2,276 $3,631 63%
Travel - Meals S0 SO $100 $100 100%
Travel - Accommodations & Parking SO SO $250 $250 100%
Membership & Subscription Fees $534 S534 $118 $652 18%
Salaries, Wages and Benefits
FT Wages $14,052 $14,052 $69,923 $83,976 83%
Group Benefits $1,355 $1,355 $5,831 $7,187 81%
OT Wages SO S0 $500 $500 100%
PT Wages SO SO $700 $700 100%
WSIB $322 $322 $2,424 $2,745 88%
FT Wage Related Expenses $2,602 $2,602 $13,113 $15,715 83%
Utilities
Fuel SO SO $2,117 $2,117 100%
Insurance $11,886 $11,886 S177 $12,064 1%
Communication (phone,fax,internet) $134 $134 $1,010 $1,144 88%
Vehicles and Equipment
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Schedule A - Departmental Detail

Current Quarter S Budget
Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining
Mileage S0 S0 $250 $250 100%
Vehicle Maintenance $1,236 $1,236 -$736 $500 -147%
Vehicle Plates S0 S0 $125 $125 100%
Expenditures Total $35,950 $35,950 $224,893 $260,843 86%
Revenues
Recoveries
Engineering, Environmental, and Legal Fees Recovered $743 $743 -$32,243 -$31,500 102%
Ontario Wildlife Damage Compensation S0 ) -$353 -$353 100%
Other Recoveries S0 S0 -$588 -$588 100%
User Fees, Licenses and Fines
Dog Tags and Kennel Licences -$2,254 -$2,254 -$11,834 -$14,088 84%
Fence Viewer's Application SO SO SO SO N/A
Filming Permit Fee SO SO -$587 -$587 100%
Inspection Permit - LCBO SO SO -$182 -$182 100%
Lottery Licences S0 ) -$50 -$50 100%
Municipal addressing signs -$357 -$357 -$1,293 -$1,650 78%
Pool Enclosure Permit -§251 -§251 -$5,749 -$6,000 96%
Property Standards Appeal Fee SO S0 -$299 -$299 100%
Septic Compliance Letter -§176 -§176 -$824 -$1,000 82%
Sign Permits S0 SO -$116 -8116 100%
Site Alteration Agreement -$50 -$50 -$19,950 -$20,000 100%
Special Events Permit -$264 -$264 -$736 -$1,000 74%
Reinspection Fee SO SO -§77 -$77 100%
Publicized Display Fees SO SO -$154 -$154 100%
Revenues Total -$2,609 -$2,609 -$75,034 -$77,644 97%
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Current Quarter

S Budget

Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining
Fire and Rescue
Expenditures
Contract Services/Professional Fees
Contract Services $14,857 $14,857 $149,524 $164,381 91%
Materials and Supplies
Advertising SO S0 $500 $500 100%
Clothing, Safety Allowance $17,455 $17,455 $3,797 $21,252 18%
Oxygen & Medical Supplies $1,258 $1,258 $1,842 $3,100 59%
Public Education $1,893 $1,893 $1,107 $3,000 37%
Office Equipment and Supplies
Office Supplies & Equipment $185 $185 $815 $1,000 81%
Professional Development
Professional Development $3,786 $3,786 $14,584 $18,370 79%
Travel - Meals SO SO $700 $700 100%
Travel - Accommodations & Parking S0 SO $200 $200 100%
Membership & Subscription Fees $805 $805 $2,935 $3,740 78%
Salaries, Wages and Benefits
FT Wages S0 S0 $105,914 $105,914 100%
Group Benefits $10,987 $10,987 $18,605 $29,591 63%
WSIB $2,498 $2,498 $14,166 $16,665 85%
Remuneration $127,054 $127,054 $279,795 $406,850 69%
FT Wage Related Expenses SO SO $19,029 $19,029 100%
Remuneration Related Expenses $8,944 $8,944 $30,075 $39,019 77%
Utilities
Fuel SO S0 $20,318 $20,318 100%
Insurance $59,432 $59,432 $887 $60,318 1%
Communication (phone,fax,internet) $3,939 $3,939 $1,749 $5,688 31%
Vehicles and Equipment
Equipment Maintenance & Supplies $8,920 $8,920 $13,080 $22,000 59%
Mileage $80 $80 $1,420 $1,500 95%
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Schedule A - Departmental Detail

Current Quarter S Budget

YTD Actuals Remaining

2024 Budget % Remaining

Permits $565 $565 -$24 $541 -4%
Vehicle Maintenance $5,891 $5,891 $46,109 $52,000 89%
Vehicle Plates S0 S0 $265 $265 100%
Expenditures Total $268,550 $268,550 $727,390 $995,940 73%
Revenues
Grants
Office of Fire Marshal Grants SO SO SO SO N/A
Recoveries
Other Recoveries -$3,000 -$3,000 -$6,437 -$9,437 68%
User Fees, Licenses and Fines
Boarding up or Barricading S0 SO SO SO N/A
Burning Permit Violations SO SO -$543 -§543 100%
Fire Alarm False Alarm Calls SO SO SO SO N/A
Fire Extinguisher Training SO SO -$264 -$264 100%
Fire Safety Plan Review SO SO -$140 -$140 100%
Fireworks Permits SO SO -$116 -§116 100%
Information/Fire Reports -$264 -$264 -$352 -$616 57%
Inspections S0 S0 S0 S0 N/A
Key Boxes SO S0 -$173 -$173 100%
Motor Vehicle Emergency Responses -$84 -$84 -$93,276 -$93,361 100%
Occupancy Load S0 S0 S0 S0 N/A
Open Burning Permit and Inspection -§7,738 -§7,738 -$7,262 -$15,000 48%
Post Fire Watch SO SO SO SO N/A
Water Tank Locks SO SO -$21 -$21 100%
Revenues Total -$11,086 -$11,086 -$108,584 -$119,670 91%
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Current Quarter S Budget

Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining
Administration
Expenditures
Community Grants
Heritage Financial Incentive Program SO SO $10,600 $10,600 100%
Contract Services/Professional Fees
Contract Services $10,695 $10,695 $23,698 $34,394 69%
Professional Fees - Engineering & Environmental -$346 -$346 $23,491 $23,145 101%
Professional Fees - Legal $799 $799 $52,701 $53,500 99%
Professional Fees - Township-wide Groundwater Monitoring SO SO $4,000 $4,000 100%
Materials and Supplies
Advertising $229 $229 $2,486 $2,715 92%
Clothing, Safety Allowance SO SO $2,710 $2,710 100%
Events and Other $1,065 $1,065 $11,245 $12,310 91%
Office Equipment and Supplies
Office Supplies & Equipment $374 $374 $1,376 $1,750 79%
Professional Development
Professional Development $3,830 $3,830 $14,791 $18,621 79%
Travel - Air Fare SO SO $200 $200 100%
Travel - Meals S0 SO $S400 $S400 100%
Travel - Accommodations & Parking SO SO $200 $200 100%
Membership & Subscription Fees $11,959 $11,959 $5,323 $17,282 31%
Salaries, Wages and Benefits
FT Wages $89,534 $89,534 $379,406 $468,939 81%
Group Benefits $11,298 $11,298 $45,095 $56,393 80%
OT Wages SO S0 $500 $500 100%
PT Wages $2,071 $2,071 $7,057 $9,128 77%
WSIB $2,022 $2,022 $12,280 $14,303 86%
FT Wage Related Expenses $16,838 $16,838 $64,821 $81,659 79%
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Current Quarter

Actuals

Schedule A - Departmental Detail

S Budget

YTD Actuals Remaining

2024 Budget

% Remaining

PT Wage Related Expenses $165 $165 $1,590 $1,755 91%

Utilities

Insurance $41,994 $41,994 $9,902 $51,896 19%

Communication (phone,fax,internet) $107 $107 $1,467 $1,574 93%

Vehicles and Equipment

Mileage S0 S0 $100 $100 100%
Expenditures Total $192,633 $192,633 $675,439 $868,072 78%

Revenues

Recoveries

Engineering, Environmental, and Legal Fees Recovered SO SO -$10,000 -$10,000 100%

Nestle Agreement SO SO -$500 -$500 100%

Other Recoveries -$3,000 -$3,000 $2,500 -$500 -500%

Recoveries from Staff Events S0 SO -$1,000 -$1,000 100%

User Fees, Licenses and Fines

Signature of Commissioner and FOI Requests -$6,325 -$6,325 $4,102 -$2,223 -185%
Revenues Total -$9,325 -$9,325 -$4,898 -$14,223 34%




Corporate
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Expenditures

Contract Services/Professional Fees

Conservation Authorities Levy Payment $70,710 $70,710 $121,412 $192,122 63%
Writeoffs
Taxes written off (Twp share only) $721 $721 $31,279 $32,000 98%
Tax write off Accrual SO SO SO SO N/A
Expenditures Total $71,431 $71,431 $152,691 $224,122 68%
Revenues
Grants
Operating Donations SO SO SO SO N/A
Provincial OMPF Operating Grant -$108,450| -$108,450 -$325,350 -$433,800 75%
Payments-in-Lieu of Taxes and Other Levies
PIL Mun Tax Assistance SO SO -$29,066 -$29,066 100%
PIL Transportation Ministry SO SO -$36,410 -$36,410 100%
PIL Hydro One SO S0 -$11,950 -$11,950 100%
PIL Greater Toronto Transit Authority SO SO -$13,744 -$13,744 100%
IH Municipal Retained Portion S0 SO -$6,310 -$6,310 100%
PIL Guelph Junction Railway SO SO -$718 -§718 100%
PIL County of Wellington Landfill SO SO -$8,732 -$8,732 100%
PIL City of Guelph SO S0 -$37,684 -$37,684 100%
PIL University of Guelph SO SO -$1,123 -$1,123 100%
PIL Canadian National Railway SO SO -$311 -8311 100%
PIL Canadian Pacific Railway SO SO -$1,052 -$1,052 100%
Penalties and Interest
Interest - Tax Arrears -$63,128 -$63,128 -$91,872 -$155,000 59%
Interest on Cash and Equivalents -$50,451 -$50,451 -$159,549 -$210,000 76%
Penalties - Property Taxes -$10,952 -$10,952 -$64,048 -$75,000 85%
Property Taxes
Supplemental Billings S0 SO -$366,000 -$366,000 100%
User Fees, Licenses and Fines
Other Revenues SO SO SO SO N/A
Revenues Total -$232,982 -$232,982| -$1,153,919 -$1,386,901 83%
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Quarte Budge
A D A 024 Bua ;
Council
Expenditures
Office Equipment and Supplies
Office Supplies & Equipment S0 S0 $200 $200 100%
Professional Development
Professional Development $939 $939 $561 $1,500 37%
Travel - Air Fare SO SO $200 $200 100%
Travel - Meals SO SO $100 $100 100%
Travel - Accommodations & Parking $1,242 $1,242 $259 $1,500 17%
Salaries, Wages and Benefits
Group Benefits $5,516 $5,516 $15,585 $21,100 74%
Remuneration $23,728 $23,728 $90,089 $113,818 79%
Remuneration Related Expenses $1,320 $1,320 $7,671 $8,992 85%
Vehicles and Equipment
Mileage $13 $13 $187 $200 93%
Expenditures Total $32,758 $32,758 $114,852 $147,609 78%
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Elections

Expenditures

Contract Services/Professional Fees

Professional Fees - Audit S0 S0 S0 S0 N/A

Contract Services $1,883 $1,883 SO $1,883 0%

Materials and Supplies

Advertising SO SO SO SO N/A

Signage S0 S0 S0 S0 N/A

Office Equipment and Supplies

Office Supplies & Equipment S0 S0 S0 S0 N/A

Professional Development

Professional Development SO SO SO SO N/A

Salaries, Wages and Benefits

Per Diems SO SO SO SO N/A

Utilities

Postage S0 S0 S0 S0 N/A
Expenditures Total $1,883 $1,883 SO $1,883 0%

Revenues

Recoveries

Election - Other Recoveries S0 S0 S0 S0 N/A

Nomination Fees SO SO SO SO N/A
Revenues Total S0 1] S0 S0 N/A
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Quarte Budge

: D A Buds
Finance
Expenditures
Community Grants
Community Grants SO SO $16,870 $16,870 100%
Contract Services/Professional Fees
Contract Services $10,881 $10,881 $77,556 $88,438 88%
Environmental Service - Garbage Bags $2,400 $2,400 $4,088 $6,488 63%
Professional Fees - Audit S0 S0 $15,400 $15,400 100%
Debt - Penalties and Interest
Debt Interest Repayment SO SO SO SO N/A
Principal Repayment SO SO SO SO N/A
Materials and Supplies
Advertising and Tax Sale Expenses $520 $520 $13,474 $13,994 96%
Office Equipment and Supplies
Computer Software & Hardware SO SO $1,000 $1,000 100%
Office Supplies & Equipment $641 $641 $4,359 $5,000 87%
Professional Development
Travel - Meals SO SO $100 $100 100%
Travel - Accommodations & Parking SO SO $300 $300 100%
Membership & Subscription Fees S645 S645 $1,508 $2,153 70%
Professional Development SO SO $3,868 $3,868 100%
Salaries, Wages and Benefits
FT Wages $73,771 $73,771 $328,696 $402,467 82%
OT Wages SO S0 $500 $500 100%
Group Benefits $9,986 $9,986 $35,922 $45,908 78%
WSIB $1,931 $1,931 $10,439 $12,370 84%
PT Wages $12,776 $12,776 -$12,776 S0 N/A
FT Wage Related Expenses $14,434 $14,434 $59,901 $74,335 81%
PT Wage Related Expenses $1,546 $1,546 -$1,546 S0 N/A
Utilities
Communication (phone,fax,internet) $2,228 $2,228 $3,892 $6,119 64%
Postage $5,340 $5,340 $7,960 $13,300 60%
Emergency Management $236 $236 $1,085 $1,322 82%
Bank Service Charges $2,807 $2,807 $8,193 $11,000 74%
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Mileage SO S0 $100 $100 100%

Writeoffs

Other Write-offs SO SO SO SO N/A
Expenditures Total $140,143 $140,143 $580,888 $721,031 81%

Revenues

Recoveries

Advertising, Legal, and Realtax Fees Recovered -$8,548 -$8,548 -$11,452 -$20,000 57%

Garbage bags -$3,387 -$3,387 -$3,101 -$6,488 48%

Other Recoveries -$3,079 -$3,079 $2,079 -$1,000 -208%

User Fees, Licenses and Fines

NSF Fees -$306 -$306 -$394 -$700 56%

Tax Certificates -$1,386 -$1,386 -$8,114 -$9,500 85%

Online Service Fee -$764 -$764 -$1,736 -$2,500 69%
Revenues Total -$17,471 -$17,471 -$22,717 -$40,188 57%
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Heritage Committee

Expenditures

Office Equipment and Supplies

Office Supplies & Equipment SO S0 $100 $100 100%

Professional Development

Professional Development SO SO $1,000 $1,000 100%

Travel - Meals SO SO S50 S50 100%

Travel - Accommodations & Parking SO SO $500 $500 100%

Membership & Subscription Fees $202 $202 -$25 $177 -14%

Salaries, Wages and Benefits

WSIB S0 S0 $232 $232 100%

PT Wage Related Expenses SO S0 $1,374 $1,374 100%

Per Diems and PT Wages $205 $205 $10,781 $10,986 98%

Vehicles and Equipment

Mileage S0 S0 $300 $300 100%
Expenditures Total $407 $407 $14,312 $14,719 97%

Revenues

Grants

Federal Young Canada Works Operating Grant SO SO -$6,000 -$6,000 100%

Recoveries

Doors of Puslinch Posters SO SO -$4,248 -$4,248 100%
Revenues Total SO S0 -$10,248 -$10,248 100%
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Municipal Office

Expenditures

Building Maintenance

Cleaning, Maintenance & Supplies - Interior $2,033 $2,033 $20,567 $22,600 91%

Outdoor Maintenance S0 S0 $1,000 $1,000 100%

Contract Services/Professional Fees

Contract Services $175 $175 $5,855 $6,030 97%

Water Protection $34 S34 $1,166 $1,200 97%

Office Equipment and Supplies

Kitchen Supplies & Equipment 5814 $814 $4,186 $5,000 84%

Utilities

Heat $8,124 $8,124 $4,476 $12,600 36%

Hydro $3,761 $3,761 $12,439 $16,200 77%

Waste Removal $1,137 $1,137 $1,863 $3,000 62%
Expenditures Total $16,078 $16,078 $51,552 $67,630 76%

Revenues

Recoveries

Municipal Office Costs Recovered from Building Department SO SO -$20,289 -$20,289 100%
Revenues Total S0 1] -$20,289 -$20,289 100%




PDAC

Report FIN-2024-017 - First Quarter Financial Report - 2024
Schedule A - Departmental Detail

Expenditures

Office Equipment and Supplies

Office Supplies & Equipment SO S0 $100 $100 100%

Professional Development

Professional Development SO S0 $500 $500 100%

Travel - Meals SO SO S50 S50 100%

Travel - Accommodations & Parking S0 S0 $200 $200 100%

Salaries, Wages and Benefits

Per Diems $410 $410 $4,710 $5,120 92%

Vehicles and Equipment

Mileage SO S0 $150 $150 100%
Expenditures Total $410 $410 $5,710 $6,120 93%




Recreation Committee
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Expenditures

Office Equipment and Supplies

Office Supplies & Equipment SO S0 $100 $100 100%

Professional Development

Professional Development SO S0 $500 $500 100%

Travel - Meals SO SO S50 S50 100%

Travel - Accommodations & Parking SO S0 $200 $200 100%

Salaries, Wages and Benefits

Per Diems $103 $103 $3,311 $3,413 97%

Vehicles and Equipment

Mileage S0 S0 $150 $150 100%
Expenditures Total $103 $103 $4,311 $4,413 98%




Youth Committee

Report FIN-2024-017 - First Quarter Financial Report - 2024

Schedule A - Departmental Detail

Expenditures

Office Equipment and Supplies

Office Supplies & Equipment S0 S0 $500 $500 100%

Professional Development

Professional Development SO SO $428 $428 100%

Vehicles and Equipment

Mileage S0 S0 $160 $160 100%
Expenditures Total SO S0 $1,088 $1,088 100%
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Current Quarter S Budget
Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining
Parks and Recreation
Library
Expenditures
Utilities
Water Protection $335 $335 $2,165 $2,500 87%
Library Historical Society Rent $1,294 $1,294 $4,146 $5,440 76%
Expenditures Total $1,629 $1,629 $6,311 $7,940 79%
Revenues
Recoveries
Costs Recovered from County SO SO -$3,472 -$3,472 100%
Revenues Total S0 S0 -$3,472 -$3,472 100%
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Parks

Expenditures

Contract Services/Professional Fees

Contract Services SO S0 $2,294 $2,294 100%
Water Protection SO SO $200 $200 100%
Materials and Supplies
Advertising SO S0 $1,000 $1,000 100%
Outdoor Maintenance $538 $538 $12,462 $13,000 96%
Salaries, Wages and Benefits
FT Wages S0 S0 $119,359 $119,359 100%
Group Benefits S0 S0 $15,485 $15,485 100%
OT Wages SO S0 $1,000 $1,000 100%
PT Wages SO SO SO S0 N/A
WSIB SO S0 $3,912 $3,912 100%
FT Wage Related Expenses SO S0 $22,746 $22,746 100%
PT Wage Related Expenses SO S0 S0 S0 N/A
Utilities
Fuel SO S0 $3,711 $3,711 100%
Hydro $566 $566 $2,234 $2,800 80%
Insurance $11,886 $11,886 $177 $12,064 1%
Vehicles and Equipment
Equipment Maintenance & Supplies $790 $790 $2,010 $2,800 72%
Mileage SO SO SO SO N/A
Vehicle Maintenance SO SO $350 $350 100%
Expenditures Total $13,780 $13,780 $186,940 $200,720 93%
Revenues
Recoveries
Other Recoveries SO SO SO SO N/A
User Fees, Licenses and Fines
Aberfoyle/Morriston Ball Park/ Morriston Meadows SO SO -$10,277 -$10,277 100%
Horse Paddock Rental SO SO -S74 -$74 100%
Picnic Shelter SO S0 -$1,159 -$1,159 100%
Soccer Field Rentals SO SO -$3,609 -$3,609 100%
Tennis Court Rentals SO SO -$800 -$800 100%
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Current Quarter S Budget
Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining

Revenues Total SO S0 -$15,919 -$15,919 100%

Optimist Recreation Center

Expenditures

Building Maintenance

Cleaning, Maintenance & Supplies - Interior $3,696 $3,696 $2,804 $6,500 43%

Outdoor Maintenance $1,554 $1,554 $6,446 $8,000 81%

Contract Services/Professional Fees

Contract Services SO SO $1,471 $1,471 100%

Water Protection $249 $249 $751 $1,000 75%

Materials and Supplies

Advertising SO SO $1,000 $1,000 100%

Clothing, Safety Allowance SO SO S600 S600 100%

Office Equipment and Supplies

Office Supplies & Equipment S83 $83 S17 $100 17%

Professional Development

Professional Development SO SO SO SO N/A

Travel - Meals SO SO S50 S50 100%

Membership & Subscription Fees SO SO SO SO N/A

Salaries, Wages and Benefits

FT Wages $12,443 $12,443 548,833 $61,277 80%

Group Benefits $2,496 $2,496 $7,451 $9,947 75%

OT Wages $943 $943 $3,057 $4,000 76%

WSIB $746 $746 $2,261 $3,008 75%

PT Wages $17,888 $17,888 $9,386 $27,274 34%

FT Wage Related Expenses $2,278 $2,278 $9,911 $12,189 81%

PT Wage Related Expenses $1,805 $1,805 $3,438 $5,243 66%

Utilities

Heat $3,653 $3,653 $1,847 $5,500 34%

Hydro $18,555 $18,555 $6,445 $25,000 26%

Insurance $11,886 $11,886 S177 $12,064 1%

Waste Removal $913 $913 $1,487 $2,400 62%

Communication (phone,fax,internet) $1,034 $1,034 $1,726 $2,760 63%

Vehicles and Equipment

Equipment Maintenance & Supplies $372 $372 $8,628 $9,000 96%
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Current Quarter S Budget
Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining
Mileage S0 S0 $100 $100 100%
Expenditures Total $80,595 $80,595 $117,887 $198,482 59%
Revenues
Recoveries
Other Recoveries -61,322 -61,322 $922 -$400 -231%
User Fees, Licenses and Fines
Arena Summer Rentals SO SO -$10,310 -$10,310 100%
Gymnasium Rental -$9,781 -§9,781 -$15,994 -$25,775 62%
Ice Rental - Non-Prime -$99 -$99 -$548 -$647 85%
Ice Rental - Prime -$32,113 -$32,113 -$5,987 -$38,100 16%
Rink Board and Ball Diamond Advertising SO SO -61,235 -61,235 100%
Revenues Total -$43,316 -$43,316 -$33,151 -$76,467 43%
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Puslinch Community Center
Expenditures
Building Maintenance
Cleaning, Maintenance & Supplies - Interior S274 $274 $6,226 $6,500 96%
Outdoor Maintenance SO SO $4,400 $4,400 100%
Contract Services/Professional Fees
Contract Services $230 $230 $4,803 $5,033 95%
Water Protection $562 $562 $3,138 $3,700 85%
Materials and Supplies
Advertising SO SO $1,000 $1,000 100%
Clothing, Safety Allowance SO SO $260 $260 100%
Office Equipment and Supplies
Office Supplies & Equipment SO SO $100 $100 100%
Kitchen Supplies & Equipment SO SO $1,500 $1,500 100%
Professional Development
Professional Development SO SO SO SO N/A
Travel - Meals SO SO SO SO N/A
Travel - Accommodations & Parking SO SO SO SO N/A
Membership & Subscription Fees SO SO $S500 $500 100%
Salaries, Wages and Benefits
FT Wages $15,436 $15,436 $116,582 $132,018 88%
Group Benefits $2,597 $2,597 $15,030 $17,627 85%
OT Wages $268 $268 $232 $500 46%
WSIB $386 $386 $3,921 $4,307 91%
PT Wages $332 $332 -$332 S0 N/A
FT Wage Related Expenses $2,751 $2,751 $22,225 $24,976 89%
PT Wage Related Expenses S14 S14 -S14 SO N/A
Utilities
Heat $3,498 $3,498 $1,002 $4,500 22%
Hydro $3,552 $3,552 $8,448 $12,000 70%
Insurance $11,886 $11,886 S177 $12,064 1%
Waste Removal $3,654 $3,654 $5,846 $9,500 62%
Communication (phone,fax,internet) $980 $980 $1,468 $2,448 60%
Vehicles and Equipment
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Current Quarter S Budget
Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining
Mileage SO SO SO SO N/A
Expenditures Total $46,420 $46,420 $196,512 $242,932 81%
Revenues
Grants
Small Water Works Funding SO SO -$85,167 -$85,167 100%
Recoveries
Other Recoveries -$360 -$360 -$4,640 -$5,000 93%
User Fees, Licenses and Fines
Alf Hales Room -$2,702 -$2,702 -$10,725 -$13,427 80%
Archie MacRobbie Hall - Non-Prime -$2,946 -$2,946 -$17,488 -$20,434 86%
Archie MacRobbie Hall - Prime -$3,404 -$3,404 -$31,335 -$34,739 90%
Commercial Rentals SO SO -$1,547 -$1,547 100%
Kitchen Facilities -$1,700 -$1,700 -$870 -$2,570 34%
Licensed Events Using Patio SO SO -$130 -$130 100%
Revenues Total -$11,112 -$11,112 -$71,902 -$83,014 87%
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Current Quarter

S Budget

Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining

Planning

Expenditures

Community Grants

CIP Grants and other Economic Development Programs SO SO $19,854 $19,854 100%

Contract Services/Professional Fees

Contract Services SO S0 $42,440 $42,440 100%

Professional Fees - Engineering & Environmental $51,170 $51,170 $152,365 $203,536 75%

Professional Fees - Legal $S608 $608 $51,392 $52,000 99%

Professional Fees - Mini Lakes Water Monitoring SO SO $3,000 $3,000 100%

Materials and Supplies

Advertising S0 S0 $5,000 $5,000 100%

Office Equipment and Supplies

Office Supplies & Equipment S53 $53 $147 $200 74%

Professional Development

Professional Development SO SO $800 $S800 100%

Travel - Meals SO SO S50 S50 100%

Travel - Accommodations & Parking SO SO $200 $200 100%

Membership & Subscription Fees $1,512 $1,512 -§795 s717 -111%

Salaries, Wages and Benefits

FT Wages $22,973 $22,973 $91,400 $114,373 80%

Group Benefits $1,201 $1,201 $8,545 $9,746 88%

OT Wages SO S0 $500 $500 100%

WSIB $431 $431 $3,302 $3,733 88%

Group Benefits PT SO SO SO SO N/A

FT Wage Related Expenses $4,235 $4,235 $16,995 $21,230 80%

Utilities

Communication (phone,fax,internet) SO SO $100 $100 100%

Vehicles and Equipment

Mileage SO S0 $100 $100 100%
Expenditures Total $82,184 $82,184 $395,396 $477,580 83%

Revenues

Recoveries
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Current Quarter S Budget
Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining
Engineering, Environmental, and Legal Fees Recovered $4,992 $4,992 -$181,690 -$176,698 103%
User Fees, Licenses and Fines
Agreements -$292 -$292 -$2,343 -$2,635 89%
Consent Review and Clearance -$580 -$580 -$2,600 -$3,180 82%
Garden Suites and Renewals (Zoning) SO SO SO SO N/A
Lifting of Holding Designation Fee (Zoning) SO SO -$1,472 -$1,472 100%
Minor Variance Application -$1,636 -$1,636 -$20,734 -$22,370 93%
Ownership List Confirmation -$316 -$316 -$869 -$1,185 73%
Part Lot Control Exemption By-law S0 SO SO SO N/A
Pre-Consultation -$2,104 -$2,104 -$17,884 -$19,988 89%
Site Plan Control SO SO -$7,730 -$7,730 100%
Telecommunication Tower Proposals S0 S0 -$2,890 -$2,890 100%
Zoning By-law Amendment SO SO -§7,731 -$7,731 100%
Zoning By-law Amendment - Aggregate S0 S0 -$17,641 -$17,641 100%
Compliance Letter -$922 -$922 -$3,143 -$4,065 77%
Revenues Total -$858 -$858| -$266,727 -$267,585 100%
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Current Quarter S Budget

Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining
Public Works
Expenditures
Contract Services/Professional Fees
Contract Services $13,383 $13,383 $61,395 $74,778 82%
Professional Fees - Engineering & Environmental SO SO $1,000 $1,000 100%
Materials and Supplies
Advertising S0 S0 $1,500 $1,500 100%
Clothing, Safety Allowance S0 S0 $2,800 $2,800 100%
Signage $1,933 $1,933 $12,567 $14,500 87%
Office Equipment and Supplies
Office Supplies & Equipment SO S0 $150 $150 100%
Professional Development
Professional Development $1,130 $1,130 $70 $1,200 6%
Travel - Meals S0 S0 $350 $350 100%
Membership & Subscription Fees $729 $729 -$20 $709 -3%
Roads and Related Costs
Calcium SO S0 $76,000 $76,000 100%
Maintenance Gravel SO SO $75,000 $75,000 100%
Pavement Markings SO SO $35,500 $35,500 100%
Permits SO S0 $100 $100 100%
Road Maintenance Supplies $3,350 $3,350 $32,050 $35,400 91%
Shop Overhead $2,532 $2,532 $4,868 $7,400 66%
Sidewalk Repairs S0 SO $5,000 $5,000 100%
Speed Monitor SO SO SO SO N/A
Tree Maintenance Program SO SO $32,000 $32,000 100%
Winter Maintenance $136,037 $136,037 $113,963 $250,000 46%
Railway Maintenance and Upgrades SO SO $5,000 $5,000 100%
Street Lights: Repairs and Hydro Expenses $2,973 $2,973 $11,877 $14,850 80%
Municipal Street Naming S0 SO $1,000 $1,000 100%
Salaries, Wages and Benefits
FT Wages $125,197 $125,197 $405,777 $530,974 76%
Group Benefits $19,738 $19,738 $44,106 $63,845 69%
OT Wages $19,518 $19,518 $8,277 $27,795 30%
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Current Quarter S Budget

Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining

Seasonal Wages

$27,795

$27,795

-$6,960

$20,835

-33%

WSIB $4,245 $4,245 $13,827 $18,072 77%
FT Wage Related Expenses $25,937 $25,937 $74,210 $100,146 74%
Seasonal Wage Related Benefits $4,270 $4,270 -$264 $4,005 7%
Utilities
Fuel $34,553 $34,553 $64,213 $98,766 65%
Hydro $156 $156 $544 $700 78%
Insurance $83,204 $83,204 $1,241 $84,446 1%
Waste Removal SO S0 $1,300 $1,300 100%
Communication (phone,fax,internet) $487 S487 $1,613 $2,100 77%
Vehicles and Equipment
Equipment Maintenance & Supplies $345 $345 $1,705 $2,050 83%
Mileage S0 S0 $100 $100 100%
Vehicle Maintenance $7,224 $7,224 $34,776 $42,000 83%
Vehicle Plates S0 S0 $6,595 $6,595 100%
Expenditures Total $514,735 $514,735| $1,123,231 $1,637,966 69%
Revenues
Recoveries
Other Recoveries SO SO -$48,516 -$48,516 100%
Third Party Cost Recovery S0 SO -$100 -$100 100%
User Fees, Licenses and Fines
Entrance Permit -$828 -$828 -$2,368 -$3,196 74%
Oversize-Overweight Load Permits -§116 -§116 -$116 -§232 50%
Municipal Street Naming S0 SO -$1,000 -$1,000 100%
Revenues Total -$944 -$944 -$52,100 -$53,044 98%
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Current Quarter S Budget

Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining

Source Water Protection

Source Water Protection
Expenditures

Contract Services/Professional Fees

Contract Services SO SO $9,878 $9,878 100%
Expenditures Total SO S0 $9,878 $9,878 100%

Revenues

Recoveries

Other Recoveries SO SO -$19,912 -§19,912 100%
Revenues Total S0 S0 -$19,912 -$19,912 100%
Grand Total $1,172,081| $1,172,081| $2,787,008 $3,959,089 70%
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Current 2023 - First

Quarter $ Budget Quarter %

Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining Remaining
Administration $192,633 $192,633 $675,439 $868,072 78% 80%
Building $151,669 $151,669 $594,795 $746,465 80% 81%
By-law $35,950 $35,950 $224,893 $260,843 86% 72%
Corporate $71,431 $71,431 $152,691 $224,122 68% 78%
Council $32,758 $32,758 $114,852 $147,609 78% 81%
Elections $1,883 $1,883 S0 $1,883 0% 100%
Finance $140,143 $140,143 $580,888 $721,031 81% 77%
Fire and Rescue $268,550 $268,550 $727,390 $995,940 73% 72%
Heritage Committee $407 $407 $14,312 $14,719 97% 99%
Library $1,629 $1,629 $6,311 $7,940 79% 82%
Municipal Office $16,078 $16,078 $51,552 $67,630 76% 78%
Parks $13,780 $13,780 $186,940 $200,720 93% 93%
PDAC $410 $410 $5,710 $6,120 93% 100%
Planning $82,184 $82,184 $395,396 $477,580 83% 73%
Public Works $514,735 $514,735( $1,123,231 $1,637,966 69% 68%
Recreation Committee $103 $103 $4,311 $4,413 98% 82%
Source Water Protection S0 S0 $9,878 $9,878 100% 100%
Optimist Recreation Center $80,595 $80,595 $117,887 $198,482 59% 63%
Puslinch Community Center $46,420 $46,420 $196,512 $242,932 81% 78%
Youth Committee SO S0 $1,088 $1,088 100% 100%
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Current 2023 - First

Quarter $ Budget Quarter %

Actuals YTD Actuals Remaining 2024 Budget % Remaining Remaining

Revenues

Administration -$9,325 -$9,325 -$4,898 -$14,223 34% 97%
Building -$149,574| -$149,574 -$538,195 -$687,769 78% 86%
By-law -$2,609 -$2,609 -$75,034 -$77,644 97% 78%
Corporate -$232,982| -$232,982| -$1,153,919 -$1,386,901 83% 75%
Elections S0 $0 S0 SO|N/A N/A
Finance -$17,471 -$17,471 -$22,717 -$40,188 57% 54%
Fire and Rescue -$11,086 -$11,086 -$108,584 -$119,670 91% 95%
Heritage Committee SO SO -$10,248 -$10,248 100% 100%
Library S0 S0 -$3,472 -$3,472 100% 100%
Municipal Office SO S0 -$20,289 -$20,289 100% 100%
Parks S0 S0 -$15,919 -$15,919 100% 100%
Planning -$858 -$858 -$266,727 -$267,585 100% 90%
Public Works -$944 -$944 -$52,100 -$53,044 98% 99%
Source Water Protection SO SO -$19,912 -$19,912 100% 100%
Optimist Recreation Center -$43,316 -$43,316 -$33,151 -$76,467 43% 59%
Puslinch Community Center -$11,112 -§11,112 -$71,902 -$83,014 87% 91%

Revenues Total

-$479,277  -$479,277 -$2,397,068 -$2,876,345 83%

Grand Total

$1,172,081| $1,172,081| $2,787,008 $3,959,089 70% 67%




Report FIN-2024-017 - First Quarter Financial Report - 2024
Schedule C - Other Financial Data

31/Jan/24 31/Jan/23 28/Feb/24 28/Feb/23 31/Mar/24 31/Mar/23
Total Taxes Billed $0 S0 $7,421,911 $7,031,923 $7,421,911 $7,031,923
In-year Township Tax Adjustments
Taxes Written Off -$321 -$1,930 -$721 -$2,038 -$721 -$4,979
Supplemental Billings $0 S0 $o0 S0 $0 S0
Net Taxes Billed -$321 -$1,930 $7,421,190 $7,029,885 $7,421,190 $7,026,944
[Total Outstanding Taxes & Interest | $1,399,558| $880,926)| $2,677,180| $1,875,310 $1,510,074| $559,188|
Cash, Temporary Investments, and Interest Income
Unrestricted Cash $1,159,101 $3,298,222 $9,161,502 $9,846,914 $3,384,463 $4,975,075
Unrestricted Temporary Investments $2,196,121 $2,138,112 $2,196,121 $2,138,112 $2,200,016 $2,138,112
Unrestricted Interest Income -$26,194 -$25,060 -$32,639 -$39,163 -$50,451 -$89,420
Restricted Cash $4,647,467 $2,378,611 $2,753,793 $1,558,666 $2,791,740 $1,586,750
Restricted Temporary Investments $1,436,097 $1,377,168 $1,436,097 $1,377,168 $1,436,097 $1,377,168
Restricted Interest Income -$20,732 -$8,887 -$41,557 -$18,174 -$58,435 -$25,658
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of Puslinch Heritage
Permit By-law

July 10, 2024




Proposed Heritage Permit By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

1. Reporting of approved Heritage Permit Waivers: That in addition to
quarterly reporting to the Heritage Advisory Committee regarding issuance
of Heritage Permits that the Heritage Advisory Committee be circulated
notice for approved Heritage Permit Waivers.

Staff Recommendation:

dSection 1.3(c)(vii) has been added as follows “Will provide notice of the
Puslinch Heritage Advisory Committee for approved Heritage Permit
Waivers issues under this delegated authority.”
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Proposed Heritage Permit By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

. Heritage Alteration Permit: That the Municipal Clerk be delegated the
authority to deem applications complete and request additional
information for an application.

Staff Recommendation:

. Staff have amended the by-law to provide the delegated authority to
the Municipal Clerk to deem applications complete and request
additional information for Heritage Alteration Permits.
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Proposed Heritage Permit By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:
. Creation of a Heritage Permit Application Guide

Staff Recommendation:

. Staff are in the process of finalizing a Heritage Permit Application guide
to accompany the Heritage Permit By-law. This will be live in the next
two weeks along with the various applications on the Township’s

website.
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THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH

BY-LAW NUMBER 0XX-2024

Being a by-law to establish a Heritage Permit Process and a by-law
to delegate the power to grant Heritage Permits for the alteration
of designated heritage properties.

WHEREAS Sections 33(15) and 33(16) of the Ontario Heritage Act. R.S.0. 1990, c. 0.18, as amended
(“the Act”), the Council of a municipality may by by-law delegate the power to consent to alterations to
property designated under Part IV to an employee or official of the municipality after having consulted
with its municipal heritage committee;

AND WHEREAS Section 23.2(1)(c) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.0. 2001, c.25, as amended (“the
Municipal Act”), permits a municipality to delegate certain legislative and quasi-judicial powers to an
individual who is an officer, employee or agent of the municipality;

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch has consulted with the
Heritage Advisory Committee;

NOW THEREFORE the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch hereby enacts as follows:
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1. GENERAL
1.1. Short Title

(a)

This By-law may be referred to as the “Heritage Permit By-law”

1.2. Administration

(a)

(b)

The Municipal Clerk or their designate shall be responsible for the administration of this By-
law.

This By-law applies to all Property in the Corporation of the Township of Puslinch (the
Township) in accordance with Ontario Heritage Act. R.S.0. 1990, c. 0.18, as amended

1.3. Delegated Authority

(a)

(b)

The Municipal Clerk or their designate is authorized and has the delegated authority to:

(i) _Consent to the alteration of properties designated under Part IV of the Act, through the
granting of Heritage Permit Waiver;

(i) Deem applications for Heritage Permits complete;

(iii) Extend the timeline in which alterations proposed in a previously approved Heritage
Alteration Permit_and Heritage Permit Waiver can be undertaken if the Owner is not
able to complete the works within the required timeline.

{idiv) Appoint a peer review consultant or other technical expert to fulfill the role or
duties of an inspector for the purposes of this By-law;
{HB(v) Permit alterations required for an emergency repair or to address health and

safety or security issues with or without submission of an application. All emergency
approvals shall be reported to the next Council and Committee meeting.

The delegated authority in Section 1.3.(a)(i) and (ii) is limited to the following alterations to
properties designated under Section 29 of Part IV of the Act which do not impact Heritage
Attributes identified in the “Statement of Cultural Heritage Value or Interest” adopted as
part of the Heritage Designation By-law:

(i) Exterior repainting of part or the whole of a building or structure;

(ii) Alterations to roofing material and colour;

(iii) Addition/removal/replacement of, or alterations to, permanent hard landscaping
features, including but not limited to walkways, driveways, patios, planters, fences,
gates, walls, trellises, arbours and gazebos;

(iv) Addition/removal/replacement of, or alteration to, signage;

(v) Addition/removal/replacement of, or alteration to, exterior lighting;

(vi) Addition/removal/replacement of, or alteration to, basement windows and window
wells;

(vii) Addition/removal/replacement of, or alteration to non-heritage features, including but
not limited to doors, trim, shutters, railings, stairs, porch flooring, columns, brackets,
and decorative features;

(viii) Addition/removal/replacement of, or alteration to non-heritage features, including
additions or outbuildings;

(ix) Construction of detached accessory structures, which do not impact the heritage

attributes of the property; and,

(x) Temporary measures reasonably necessary to deal with an emergency which puts the
security or integrity of a building or structure at risk of damage.

In exercising the delegated authority in Section 1.3.(a) the Municipal Clerk:

(i) May grant a Heritage Permit Waiver to alter a Designated Heritage Property; or

(i) May grant an extension or re-issuance of Heritage Permits previously considered by the
Committee and approved by Council, where the proposal and relevant policy framework
are substantially unchanged since the initial approval;

(iii) May refer a Heritage Permit Waiver application to alter a Designated Heritage Property
to the Committee and Council;

(iv) Shall prescribe and supply the forms required to apply for a Heritage Permit
Waiver,Heritage Alteration Permit and Heritage Demolition and Removal Permit;

(v) May issue, receive and process notices under any section of the Act;



(vi) May receive and issue notices of complete or incomplete application for Heritage
Permits pursuant to Section 33 and Section 34 of the Act;

fi(vii) Will provide notice to the Puslinch Heritage Advisory Committee for approved
Heritage Permit Waivers issued under this delegated authority.

Lyiy(viii)  Will bring an information report to the Puslinch Heritage Advisory Committee
once_quarterly-every- during the calendar year, outlining_Heritage Alteration Permits,
Heritage Demolition and Removal Permits and Heritage Permit Waivers issued under
this delegated authority;

(d) In addition, the Municipal Clerk or Council may require:

(i) A Heritage Conservation Plan or Heritage Impact Assessment, prepared by a qualified
architect and/or engineer licensed to practice in the Province of Ontario or heritage
consultant specializing in the subject heritage resource.

(i) Any other information relating to the application may be required by the Municipal
Clerk or Council.

(e) Notwithstanding Section 1.3(a) of this by-law, Council shall retain all powers and authority
under the Act, for the following matters:
(i) Refusal of a Heritage Permit under 33(6)(a)(iii) of the Act;
(ii) Approval of applications to demolish or remove properties designated under Part IV of
the Act.

1.4. Severability
(a) If a court of competent jurisdiction declares any section, or any part of any section, of this
By-law to be invalid, or to be of no force or effect, it is the intention of the Township that
every other provision of this By-law be applied and enforced in accordance with its terms to
the extent possible according to law.

1.5. Responsibility for Other Obligations
(a) Compliance with this By-law does not relieve the Owner from any responsibility to obtain
any other approvals as required from any other government or authority, or compliance
with any other obligations.

DEFINITIONS

(a) “Act” means the Ontario Heritage Act, R.S.0. 1990, C.0.18, as amended from time to time; and
all definitions included therein;

(b) “Alter” means to change in any manner and includes to restore, renovate, repair or disturb but
does not include to demolish or remove a heritage attribute.

(c) “Applicant” means the Owner of a Property and includes a Person authorized in writing to act
on behalf of the Owner of the Property to apply for a Permit.

(d) “Application” means a written submission to request or amend a permit, in a form prescribed
by the Township.

(e) “Building” means a permanent or temporary enclosed structure with exterior walls and a roof,
and including all attached equipment and fixtures that cannot be removed without cutting into
roof or ceiling, floors, or walls.;

(f) “Municipal Clerk” means the “Municipal Clerk” for the Township of Puslinch.

(g) “Committee” means the Township of Puslinch Heritage Advisory Committee.

(h) “Council” means the Council of the Township.

(i) “Designated Property” means real property in the Township, including all buildings, structures,
and other features thereon, that has been designated under Part IV of the Act, or is subject to a



Notice of Intention to Designate under Section 29 of Part IV of the Act, for having cultural
heritage value or interest.

(j) “Heritage Attribute” means, in relation to real property, and to the buildings and structures on
the real property, the attributes of the property, buildings and structures that contribute to
their cultural heritage value or interest.

(k) “Heritage Designation By-law” means a designation by-law adopted by Council in accordance
with Section 29 of Part IV of the Act.

() “Heritage Permit” means a Heritage Permit Waiver, Heritage Alteration Permit and Heritage
Demolition and Removal Permit issued by the Township pursuant to the provisions of this by-
law.

(m) "Inspector" means any person designated by this or any other By-law(s) of the Township as an
Inspector or agent of the Township or any persons appointed for the purposes of enforcing this
By-law, and includes the Chief Building Official, Building Inspectors, and By-law Enforcement
Officers.

(n) “Maintenance” means the routine, cyclical, non-destructive actions, necessary to slow the
deterioration of the Designated Property including the following:
a. gardening and repair of landscape features;
b. repainting where there is little or no change in colour;
c. caulking and weather proofing.

(o) “Owner” means the registered Owner(s) of the Property.
(p) “Permit” means a formal authorization issued by the Township under this By-law.

(q) “Person” includes an individuals, firms, sole proprietorships, partnerships, associations, trusts,
corporations, directors and officers of corporations, trustees, and agents, and the heirs,
executors, assigns or other legal representatives of a person to whom the context can apply in
law.

3. EXEMPTIONS
3.1. Exemptions in this By-law
(a) An owner of a designated heritage property does not require a heritage permit for the
following:

(i) All interior work, except where specifically designated by designation by-law or
easement passed under the Act;

(ii) Typical backyard features that are not readily visible from the public realm such as a
patio, garden and tool shed, gazebo, dog house and other small outbuildings less
than 10 square metres in size;

(iii) Landscaping which does not require heavy machinery and which will not significantly
change the appearance of the property; and

(iv) Maintenance as defined in this by-law.

(b) Consultation with staff on the need for an application is recommended.

4. APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS AND PROCESS
4.1. Heritage Permit Waiver
(a) A Heritage Permit Waiver may be applied for where:
(i) For the alteration, construction and demolition of buildings and structures on
properties designated under Section 29 of Part IV of the Act which do not impact
Heritage Attributes identified in the “Statement of Cultural Heritage Value or
Interest” adopted as part of the Heritage Designation By-law.
(b) Application Requirements for a Heritage Permit Waiver:
(i) A complete application must be submitted using the prescribed form, as amended
from time to time;
(ii) There shall be no application or administrative fee for a Heritage Permit Waiver;



(iii) The Owner shall be responsible for any third-party cost and recoveries if an external
review is required as determined by the Municipal Clerk;

(iv) A site plan or sketch showing the location of the proposed work on the property;

(v) A statement of the proposed work including an indication if the proposed alteration
is likely to affect the property’s heritage attributes;

(vi) Any drawings, specifications, photographs, paint chips, or additional notes as
necessary to fully explain the work to be undertaken;

(vii) Approvals of authorities having jurisdiction (Conservation Authority, Source Water
Protection); and,

(viii) An affidavit or a sworn declaration by the Owner/applicant certifying that the
information required and provided is accurate.
(c) Approval/Refusal Process for a Heritage Permit Waiver:

(i) All Heritage Permit Exemption Waiver are subject to the Municipal Clerk’s review.

(ii) The Municipal Clerk shall upon receiving all information and material required serve
notice on the applicant informing them that the application is deemed complete.

(iii) The Municipal Clerk shall make a decision to approve or deny the permit within 10
business days of deeming the application complete. If the Municipal Clerk denies the
permit, it will be automatically referred to-er+eferthe-permit the Heritage Advisory
Committee for comment and Council for decision within 30 calendar days of the
Municipal Clerks decision to deny the application. application—being—deemed
complete:

4.2. Heritage Alteration Permit
(a) A Heritage Alteration Permit must be applied for where:

(i) For the construction or alteration of building or structures on properties designated
under Section 29 of Part IV of the Act which impact Heritage Attributes identified in
the “Statement of Cultural Heritage Value or Interest” adopted as part of the
Heritage Designation By-law.

(b) Application Requirements for a Heritage Alteration Permit:

(i) A complete application must be submitted using the prescribed form, as amended
from time to time;

(ii) There shall be no application or administrative fee for a Heritage Alteration Permit;

(iii) The Owner shall be responsible for any third-party cost and recoveries if an external
review is required as determined by the Municipal Clerk;

(iv) A site plan or sketch showing the location of the proposed work on the property;

(v) A statement of the proposed work including an accompanying brief rationale which
addresses alterations likely to affect the property’s heritage attributes as described
in the designation by-law;

(vi) Any drawings, specifications, photographs, paint chips, or additional notes as
necessary to fully explain the work to be undertaken;

(vii)As may be required, a Heritage Conservation Plan by a Built Heritage Specialist;

(viii) As may be required, a Heritage Impact Statement prepared by a Built Heritage
Specialist;

(ix) Approvals of authorities having jurisdiction (Conservation Authority, Source Water
Protection);

(x) An affidavit or a sworn declaration by the Owner/applicant certifying that the
information

(xi) required and provided is accurate; and,

(xii) Any other information related to the application as required by the Municipal Clerk
or Council.

(c) Approval/Refusal Process for a Heritage Permit:

(i) Council approval is required for all Heritage Permit Applications.

(i) The Municipal Clerk Cewnei—shall upon receiving all information and material
required, serve notice on the applicant informing them that the application is
deemed complete.

(iii) The Municipal Clerk €euneil shall provide the application and supporting materials
once deemed complete to the —eensut—with-its-Heritage Advisory Committee_who
shall provide their opinion to Council when it makes a decision. -meeting-prierto

making-a-decision:




(iv) Council shall make a decision in accordance with the legislated timelines under
Section 33(7) of the Act and issue notice in accordance with Section 33(6).

(v) If Council approves a permit with conditions or refuses a permit, the Owner, within
30 days after receipt of the notice may appeal Council’s decision to the Tribunal by
giving notice of the appeal to the Tribunal and the Municipal Clerk of the
municipality setting out the objection to the decision and the reasons in support of
the objection, accompanied by the fee charged by the Tribunal.

4.3. Heritage Demolition or Removal Permit
(a) A Heritage Demolition or Removal Permit must be applied for where:

(i) For the demolition or removal of buildings or structures on properties designated
under Section 29 of Part IV of the Act impact Heritage Attributes identified in the
“Statement of Cultural Heritage Value or Interest” adopted as part of the Heritage
Designation By-law.

(b) Application Requirements for a Heritage Demolition or Removal Permit:

(i) A complete application must be submitted using the prescribed form, as amended
from time to time;

(i) There shall be no application or administrative fee for a Heritage Demolition or
Removal Permit;

(iii) The Owner shall be responsible for any third-party cost and recoveries if an external
review is required as determined by the Municipal Clerk;

(iv) A site plan or sketch showing the location of the proposed demolition or removal
within the property;

(v) Photographs showing the existing building or structure including all elevations, as
well as their condition and context;

(vi) Drawings and written specifications of the proposed demolition or removal. As may
be required, a building condition assessment prepared by a qualified Engineer of the
building or structure or material part thereof which is proposed to be demolished or
removed;

(vii)The reasons for the proposed demolition or removal and the potential impacts to
the heritage attributes of the property or the heritage conservation district. As may
be required, a Heritage Impact Statement prepared by a Built Heritage Specialist;

(viii)  Any technical cultural heritage studies that are relevant to the proposed
demolition or removal; and

(ix) Any other information related to the application as required by the Municipal Clerk
or Council.

(c) Approval/Refusal Process for a Heritage Demolition or Removal Permit:
(i) Council approval is required for all Heritage Permit Applications.
(i) The Municipal Clerk €euneit shall, following Council deeming the application
complete, -upenreceivingatHnformationand-materialrequired-shall serve notice on
the applicant informing them that the application is complete.

(iii) The Municipal Clerk €euncil-shall provide the application and supporting materials
once deemed complete to the —eensultwith—its-Heritage Advisory Committee who
shall provide their opinion to Council when it makes a decision. meetingpriorto
making-a-decision:

(iv) Council shall make a decision in accordance with the legislated timelines under
Section 34(4.3) of the Act and issue notice in accordance with Section 34(4.2).

(v) If Council approves the demolition or removal with conditions or refuses a
demolition or removal, the Owner, within 30 days after receipt of the notice my
appeal Council’s decision to the Tribunal by giving notice of the appeal to the
Tribunal and the Municipal Clerk of the municipality setting out the objection to the
decision and the reasons in support of the objection, accompanied by the fee
charged by the Tribunal.

5. ABANDONMENT, EXPIRY, RENEWAL, TRANSFER, REVOCATION, AMENDMENT AND CLOSURE OF
PERMITS
5.1. Abandoned Application
(@) An Application for a Heritage Permit Waiver or Heritage Alteration Permit will be deemed
abandoned and the Application and respective file will be closed, where a period of twelve



(12) months has elapsed during which all information, document or fees as required have
not been provided to the Township or where the application has not seeing meaningful
progress through submissions towards the issuance of a permit.

5.2. Expiry
(a) A Heritage Permit Waiver, Heritage Alteration Permit and Heritage Removal or Demolition
Permit will be issued for a period of two (2) years and expires on the date set-out in the
permit, unless otherwise specified as a condition of the permit.

5.3. Transfer
(a) If title to the Property for which a Heritage Permit has been issued is transferred while the
Heritage Permit is in effect, the Heritage Permit shall be automatically revoked unless the
new Owner, prior to the time of the transfer, provides the Township with an undertaking, to
the satisfaction of the Municipal Clerk, to comply with all Conditions under which the
Permit was issued.

5.4. Revocation

(a) The Municipal Clerk may revoke a Permit for any of the following reasons:
(i) It was obtained based on mistaken, false or incorrect information;
(ii) It was issued in error;
(iii) The Owner and/or Permit holder requests in writing that it be revoked;
(iv) The Permit holder has failed to comply with any of the Conditions of the Permit; or
(v) The Permit holder is unwilling or unable to comply with the Conditions of the

Permit.

5.5. Amendment
(a) A Owner may submit a request in writing to the Municipal Clerk for an amendment to a
Heritage Permit Waiver. A Owner may submit in writing an application to for an
amendment to a Heritage Alteration Permit and Heritage Removal or Demolition Permit for
consideration by Council.

5.6. Renewal
(a) A Owner may submit a request in writing to the Municipal Clerk for a renewal of a Heritage
Permit Waiver and Heritage Alteration Permit if the only change from the initial Application
and Permit is the expiry date. A Owner may make a request in writing to Council for
extention for Heritage Removal or Demolition Permits if the only change from the initial
Application and Permit is the expiry date.

5.7. Closure
(a) A Heritage Permit is considered closed when all the Conditions related to the Heritage
Permit have been fulfilled to the satisfaction of the Municipal Clerk.

6. ENFORCEMENT
6.1. Entry and Inspection
(a) Inspectors and the Municipal Clerk may, at any reasonable time:

(i) Enter and inspect Property to determine compliance with the provisions of this By-
law, or any Condition of a Permit, or Order issued under this By-law. This power of
entry does not allow entry into any dwelling;

(i) Require the production of documents for inspection or things relevant to the
inspection, inspect and remove documents or things relevant to the inspection for
the purpose of making copies or extracts.

7. OFFENCE AND RESTORATION PROVISIONS
(a) Every person who knowingly furnishes false information in an application made pursuant to
this By-law, or who fails to comply with any order, direction or requirement made pursuant
to this By-law, or who contravenes any provision of this By-law or the Act, is guilty of an



offence and on conviction is liable to a fine or to imprisonment as provided by Section 69 of
the Ontario Heritage Act, R.S.0. 1990, c.0.18, as amended.

(b) If this By-law is contravened and a conviction entered, the Court in which the conviction
was entered or any Court of competent jurisdiction may, in addition to any other remedy,
and to any penalty that is imposed, make an order prohibiting the continuation or
repetition of the offence by the person convicted.

(c) Where a designated heritage property is altered in contravention of this By-law, in addition
to any other penalty imposed pursuant to the provisions of Section 69 of the Act, or
pursuant to the Township’s other by-laws, as the case may be, the Township may restore
the property as nearly as possible to its previous condition, if it is practicable to do so, and
may recover the cost of the restoration from the Owner of the property pursuant to the
Act.

(d) Where an order to restore the property is issued, Council may authorize any person in
writing to enter on the property to carry out the restorations.

(e) Notwithstanding clause (d) above, and in accordance with the provisions of Section 69 of
the Act, the Township shall not restore the property if, in the opinion of the Township, the
property is in an unsafe condition or incapable of repair or the alteration was carried out for
reasons of public health or safety or for the preservation of the property.

(f) Where the provisions of this By-law have been contravened, the process to address the
contravention shall be as follows:
(i) The Municipal Clerk shall conduct an investigation to determine the circumstances
and nature of the contravention;
(ii) Based on the results of the investigation pursuant to (i) above and a determination
that there has been a breach of the law, the Municipal Clerk shall review with Legal
Counsel who may determine whether formal processes are warranted as follows:

a. A prosecution may be initiated in accordance with the provisions of the Act
and this By-law;

b. A Property Standards Order may be issued pursuant to the provisions of the
Township’s Property Standards By-law, as amended, and the Building Code
Act;

c. Where warranted and it is practicable to do so, recommend that the
property be restored as nearly as possible to its previous condition. Any such
recommendation for restoration shall be referred by the Municipal Clerk to
Council for approval;

d. The Municipal Clerk may exercise discretion in consultation with Legal
Counsel to resolve the contravention by alternative means. The Municipal
Clerk may meet with the Owner to discuss the contravention, the penalties
that could be imposed and to ensure that the Owner is aware of the
requirement to obtain a heritage permit for any future alterations.

8. EFFECTIVE DATE
(a) This by-law shall come into effect on ENTER DATE.

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME AND FINALLY PASSED THIS XXX OF MONTH 2024.

James Seeley, Mayor

Justine Brotherston, Interim Municipal Clerk
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Proposed Sign By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

. Definition Projecting Sign: Is projecting sign the same as blade sign or
perpendicular sign? If so consider adding under this definition.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff have amended the definition to include the following wording
““Projecting Sign” means a Sign attached to and which projects out
horizontally from an exterior wall or a building in a perpendicular
manner including a blade sign or perpendicular sign. This definition
does not include Awning Sign, Gas Bar Canopy Sign or Fascia(Wall) Sign;”

rrrrrrrrrr

sssssss



Proposed Sign By-law

Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:
Council feedback:

. Definition Billboard Sign: The use of the word “Ground Sign” is
confusing as part of the definition.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff have amended the definition to include the following wording:

“Billboard” means a Sign in a fixed location supported by uprights, braces, or a
supported structure, which is in turn embedded into the ground that is owned and
maintained by a Person engaged in the rental or leasing of the Sign Face Area for
advertising goods, services, or facilities that are not sold or offered on the Property

where the Sign is Displayed and is single faced, is not illuminated and does not
include Electronic Billboard
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Proposed Sign By-law

Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

. Delegated Authority (Section 4.3.1 %): “authorize and/or hire such agents,
contractors, and other Persons to perform work, as required”

Elvxllhat ty;?e of work is to be anticipated?; presumably corporate procurement policy will
also apply

consider adding a flow chart to simply understanding of the bylaw submission process
for various types of signs including those that do not require approval

Staff Recommendation:

dThe work referred to under this section would be related to enforcement of
the by-law. For example hiring a contractor to remove a sign from a property
which was not permitted and could not be permitted under the by-law. The
Corporate Procurement Policy would apply as applicable under this
circumstance.

AStaff will be developing a guide to accompany the by-law to outline the
application process and requirements. PUSLINCH
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Proposed Sign By-law

Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

1. Responsibility for costs associated with application and review of Sign
Variance Applications for Electronic Billboard Signs (Section 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and
Electronic Billboard Guide): Consider adding wording that the proponent is
responsible to pay for any studies required by the Township to determine that
the installed electronic sign meets the requirements under section 3 of the
Electronic Billboard Guide.

Staff Recommendation:

EIStafcllc_have amended Variance sections 4.4.2 b) to include the following
wording:
Additional in/formation or studies ma)'/ be required by the Sign Administration or Council

and the applicant is responsible for the cost of the studies preparation and any cost
associated with any external review as may be required.

Staff ha’\’/e included the same wording under Section 4.4.1 excluding “or
Council™ PUSLINCE
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Proposed Sign By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

. Unauthorized Signs(Section 5.2): “l) A Bag Sign, with the exception of
those used as Real Estate Signs or Election Signs;”; consider adding a
temporary business sign while work is in progress Staff
Recommendation:

Staff have amendment the aforementioned section as follows:

A Bag Sign, with the exception of those used as Real Estate Signs, Temporary
Business Signs or Election Signs;

dFurther, staff have added a definition for Temporary Business Sign and
Section 7.1.3 to provide provisions for how the signs must be installed
similar to Real Estate Signs. PUSLINCH
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Proposed Sign By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

. Puslinch Design Guidelines (Section 5.10): How will the Puslinch

Design Guidelines Impact the Signage in the Aberfoyle and Morriston
Corridor

Staff Recommendation:

AStaff are of the opinion that the provision regarding conformity where
possible with the Puslinch Designh Guidelines will provide applicants with

direction as to the Township’s vision for development of its streetscapes
in Aberfoyle and Morriston.

rrrrrrrrrr
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Proposed Sign By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

.Impacts of By-law on Aberfoyle and Morriston: How will the proposed
Sign By-law impact the in stallion of Signs in Aberfoyle and Morriston

Staff Recommendation:

Staff completed a walkthrough of Aberfoyle and Morriston to review
how the provisions of the by-law would impact signage in Aberfoyle and
Morriston have recommended a number of changes to provisions under
the following sections:
(16.4.4 Awning Signs
(16.4.5 Projecting Signs
Jd7.1.6 A-Frame or T-Frame Sign i
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Proposed Sign By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

. llluminated Signs (Section 6.1): “g) Every Ground Sign that is greater
than 2.5m in height shall only be internally llluminated.”infers that all
signs greater that 2.5m requires illumination and any other lesser sized
sign can have external illumination. Consider stating “g) Every Ground
Sign requiring illumination shall only be internally llluminated.”

Staff Recommendation:

Staff have amended the wording as follows:

Any llluminated Ground Sign that is greater than 2.5m in height shall only be
llluminated internally.

rrrrrrrrrr
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Proposed Sign By-law

Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

. Billboard Signs and Electronic Billboard Signs(Sections 5.2, 6.2):
Consider separating Billboard Signs from Electronic Billboard Signs

Staff Recommendation:

AStaff have amended the by-law to remove Billboards as an unauthorized
and the requirement to submit a variance to Council. Further staff have
added Section 6.4.2 to provide the specifications for installation,
alteration and maintenance of a Billboard.

(dBased on feedback from the EngagePuslinch Survey staff have not
included a provision restricting Billboards from promoting businesses
located on a different property from where the billboard is installed.

Staff are seeking further Council direction regarding this provision. =
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Proposed Sign By-law

Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

1. Electronic Billboards (Section 6.2 and Electronic Billboard Guide):
Electronic Billboards be limited to Highway 401, Highway 6 and
Commercial/Industrial Zoning. Consider requirement to prohibit sign
transitions.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff have amended the Electronic Billboard Guide to be used by Council
when considering Electronic Billboard Variances to only consider Electronic
Billboards in aforementioned locations and to reflect the same provisions as
Billboards in Section 6.4.2. Further, staff have amended the guide to limit sign
transitions to once per 30 calendar days and prohibit animations.

AStaff have included the results of the survey on EngagePuslinch for Council’s
consideration as Schedule ‘C’.

rrrrrrrrrr
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Proposed Sign By-law

Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:
Council feedback:

. Billboards (Section 6.4.2 and Electronic Billboard Guide): Clarification

regarding why billboards and Electronic Billboards must be setback 400
m from County/Highways

Staff Recommendation:

dThe County of Wellington’s Sign By-law does not permit signs greater
than 9m? within 400 m of any limit of a County line. Similarly the MTO
requires an MTO Sign Permit for any signage within 400 m and visible
from MTO Property limits prior to installation. Therefore staff
recommend the amending the wording as follows:

A Billboard shall not be located within 400 m of any limit of a County Road or MTO
Highway without written permission from the appropriate road authority.

rrrrrrrrrr
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Proposed Sign By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

. Electronic Message Centre on Designated Heritage Properties
(Section 6.3, Table 6.3): Include wording that electronic message
centres may be permitted on Heritage Properties through a variance
approved by Council.

Staff Recommendation:

AStaff have amended table 6.3 Location Restrictions to include the
following: Electronic Message Centres(Digital Signs) shall not be located
on a Heritage Property without receiving a variance from Council.

rrrrrrrrrr
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Proposed Sign By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

. Electronic Message Centre (Section 6.3, Table 6.3): Is there a
requirements for the background colour for digital signs?

Staff Recommendation:

dThe By-law does not regulate the background colour for digital signs,
however it does regular the brightness of illumination for digital signs to

permit 5000Nits between Sunrise and Sunset and 200 Nits between
Sunset and sunrise.

rrrrrrrrrr
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Proposed Sign By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

. Farm Produce Signs (7.1.5): Permit Farm Produce Signs All Year Round
Staff Recommendation:

dThe By-law permits Farm Produce Signs to be displayed only when
produce is for sale. If items are available all year round the signage is
permitted to be posted year round.

rrrrrrrrrr
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Proposed Sign By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

e .A-Frame or T-Frame Sign(7.1.6): “iv. In a manner so that at least 2.0m
width of the sidewalk/walkway remains unencumbered” may not be
practical as our sidewalks are narrower

Staff Recommendation:

dDuring staff’s walkthrough of Morriston it was identified that this is
requirement is achievable on various areas of the street by placing the
A-Frame or T-Frame on the paved boulevard. Staff have included a
provision to require insurance should a property owner pursue this
route. It is staff’s recommendation that this provision remain in order to
ensure sidewalks maintain there current levels of accessibility.
Appropriate signage will vary depending on individual properties. .
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Proposed Sign By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

* Feather Banner Signs (7.1.10): “e) No Feather Banner Sign shall be
located or permitted to be located within: i. 1.0 of the Street Line;”;
consider adding m; also 1m would not be practical where there is a
sidewalk front of a business — consider amending such as 1m behind the

curb line
Staff Recommendation:

Staff have removed the reference to 1.0m of the Street Line; and
amended this section as follows:
i. In such a way that it impedes a driver visibility or sightlines;

rrrrrrrrrr
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Proposed Sign By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

JCommunity Event Signs & Directional Signs (7.1.13 & 7.1.14):
Community Event Sign re “a Non-Profit Organization, may require a Sign
Permit, and must be Installed as follows:”; why is it conditional when
Table 7.0 says it is required? Also if a sigh permit is not required Is there

a process cited in the bylaw to have organizers contact staff ie Clerk,
Building, Works?

Staff Recommendation:

AStaff have revised these sections to state that a sigh permit is required.
Further, staff have amended the language to waive sign permit fees but
all other permit requirements remain in place. e
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Proposed Sign By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

(JRecovery of Costs(Section 10.2): “10.2 The Township may recover all
costs associated with doing the matter or thing, including administrative
fees, by action or it may collect them in a like manner as municipal
taxes.”; don’t we want to recover all costs so that we are held harmless?

Consider changing the word may to will

Staff Recommendation:

dThe Township completed a legal review on a different Township By-law
on the Township’s ability to recover costs and the wording under Section
10.2 is consistent with what has been recommended in the past. In
general the Township seeks to recover costs, however the wording in
Section 10.2 provides the opportunity for discretion as may be required

from time to time. PUSLINCH



Proposed Sign By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

(JRecovery of Costs(Section 10.3): “10.3 Failure to pay any invoice
associated with doing the work, within thirty (30) days, the costs may be
collected in a like manner as municipal taxes from the Owner of the
Property on which the Sign is located”; isn’t this statement covering the
same issue as 10.2 ie the work is the same as matter or thing?

Staff Recommendation:

] Staff have amended this section as follows to be consistent with other
Township By-laws as follows:

The Township may recover its costs of remedying a violation of this By-law by
invoicing the Owner, by instituting court proceedings or by adding the cost,
including interest, to the tax roll, and the exercise of any other available remedly.

rrrrrrrrrr
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Proposed Sign By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

[ Penalty and Offence (Section 11.4): “11.4 Upon conviction, any
penalty imposed under this By-law may be collected under the authority
of the Provincial Offences Act, R.S.0. 1990, c.P.33, as amended.”
Shouldn’t we say will?

Staff Recommendation:

1 Staff have amended the wording to be consistent with other
Township’s By-laws as follows:

11.4 Upon conviction, any penalty imposed under this By-law shall be collected
under the authority of the Provincial Offences Act, R.S.0. 1990, c.P.33, as amended.

rrrrrrrrrr
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Proposed Sign By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

. Develop visuals and guidance documents
Staff Recommendation:

AStaff are in the process of developing an application guide. Permanent
Sign application will be completed through CloudPermit and Temporary

Sign Applications will be completed through forms on the Township’s
website.

rrrrrrrrrr
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Proposed Sign By-law
Summary of Feedback and Staff Recommendations:

Council feedback:

. Prohibition of election signs on Municipal Property and on Polling
Station Properties and that the County be requested to include similar
provisions in their Sign By-law.

Staff Recommendation:

Staff are recommending that a separate by-law be adopted with respect

to Election Signs and this will be incorporated in the 2025 Corporate
work plan.
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EngagePuslinch Survey Results

The EngagePuslinch Survey was launched on April 19, 2024 and ran until
May 17, 2024.

* The Survey promoted as follows:
* Banner on Township Website
* Social media
* Emailed directly to Township businesses

* Viewed 61 times with 14 surveys were submitted
 Summary of survey results attached as Schedule ‘C’
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Timeline and Next Steps

e April 10, 2024 First Draft presented to Council

* April 19 — May 17, 2024 EngagePuslinch Survey
e July 10, 2024 Second Draft presented to Council
* Fall 2024 Final Draft and Adoption by Council

rrrrrrrrrr
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Schedule ‘A’
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH
BY-LAW NUMBER 2024-xx

A By-law regulate the Installation, Display, Alteration, repair, maintenance
and removal of Signs within the Township of Puslinch and a By-law to
repeal By-laws 9/91, 49/14, 21/18 and 021-2022

WHEREAS the Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, c.25, Section 8, provides that the Act shall be
interpreted broadly so as to confer board authority on municipalities to enable
municipalities to govern their affairs as they consider appropriate and enhance their
ability to respond to municipal issues;

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act, S.0. 2001, ¢.25, Section 9, provides that a
municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural person for the
purpose of exercising its authority under the Act;

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act, S.0. 2001, c¢.25, Section 11, provides that a lower-
tier municipality may provide any service or thing that the municipality considers
necessary or desirable for the public, including Signs;

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, c.25, Section 23.2 authorizes the
Township to delegate its powers to an officer, employee, or agent of a municipality;

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, c.25, Section 63, provides that a by-law
may prohibit or regulate the placing or standing of an object on or near a Highway, and
may provide for the removal and impounding or restraining and immobilizing of an
object placed or standing on or near a Highway;

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, c.25, Section 99 sets out rules which
apply to a by-law of a municipality respecting advertising devises, including Signs;

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, c¢.25, Section 425 establishes that any
person who contravenes any by-law of the municipality, may be, passed under the Act,
is guilty of an offence;

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act, S.0. 2001, c.25, Section 426(4) establishes that
any Person that hinders or obstructs, or attempts to hinder or obstruct, any Person who
is exercising or performing a duty under this By-law created under the Act is guilty of an
offence;

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Act, S.O. 2001, c.25, Section 446 of the Municipal Act
gives the Township the authority to direct or require a person to do a matter or, thing,
the municipality may also provide that, in default of it being done by the person directed
or required to do it, the matter or thing shall be done at the person’s expense. For these
purposes, the Township may enter upon land at any reasonable time. The Township
may recover the costs of doing a matter or, thing from the person directed or required to

1



do it by action or by adding the costs to the tax roll and collecting them in the same
manner as property taxes;

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch
hereby enacts as follows:
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